
emawn
Text Box
(pages 3-18)

emawn
Text Box
(pages 19-74)



emawn
Text Box
(pages 75-101)

emawn
Text Box
(pages 102-111)

emawn
Text Box
(pages 112-161)

emawn
Text Box
(pages 162-171)

emawn
Text Box
(pages 172-252)

emawn
Text Box
(pages 253-302)



Local Tax Relief Options:

Community Preservation 
Surcharge Exemption
(G.L. c. 44B §3(e)(1))

Town of Brewster Finance Team

A  R E V I E W  F O R  T A R G E T E D  T A X  

R E L I E F

J U L Y  1 2 ,  2 0 2 3



Existing 
(Adopted) 
Local Options

Senior Exemptions:  Clause 17D and 41C

Senior Deferrals:  Clause 41A

Veterans Exemptions:  Clause 22, 22A-22G

Blind Exemptions:  Clause 37A

Senior & Veteran Workoffs:  Chap 59 Sec 5K & 
5N

7 / 1 2 / 2 0 2 3B R E W S T E R  T A X  R E L I E F  O P T I O N S



Senior 
Exemptions
(Both were originally adopted in 
1987, local options to adjust both 
for maximum relief were adopted 
in 2002 & 2018)

Clause 41C:

•$1,000 Exemption

•Age 65 & up

• Income Limit:  $30,700* (single) - $46,000* (married)

•Asset Limit:  $50,000* (single) - $68,800* (married)

•Domicile Requirement:  10 yrs in MA, 5 yrs of ownership in MA, at subject 
as of July 1

Clause 17D:

•$220* Exemption

•Age 70 & up

• Income Limit:  None

•Asset Limit:  $69,700*

•Domicile Requirement:  at subject property not less than 5 years

*Denotes an amount that is rounded for this presentation, 
and adjusted annually by CPI per DOR

7 / 1 2 / 2 0 2 3B R E W S T E R  T A X  R E L I E F  O P T I O N S



Disabled 
Veterans, 
Blind

Disabled Veteran Exemptions range from $400 to 
$1,500 based on qualifications

100% Exemption for surviving spouses of a veteran 
who died as a proximate result of injuries sustained 
or illnesses contracted during active-duty service

Blind Exemption:  $500

7 / 1 2 / 2 0 2 3B R E W S T E R  T A X  R E L I E F  O P T I O N S



Senior & 
Veteran 
Workoffs
Seniors adopted in 2001
Veterans adopted in 2018

Senior Workoff

(Age 60 & Up)

Veteran Workoff

Current practice is option of $500 for 33.5 
hours or $1,000 for 67 hours.

Current policy sets a combined allowance of 
$25,000 per year for these programs.

7 / 1 2 / 2 0 2 3B R E W S T E R  T A X  R E L I E F  O P T I O N S



Funding 
Sources for 
Existing 
Local Options

Senior Exemptions (17D & 41C) – OVERLAY

Veteran Exemptions (22, 22A-22G) – OVERLAY

Blind Exemptions (37A) – OVERLAY

Senior & Veteran Workoffs (5K & 5N) – OVERLAY

OVERLAY is the allowance for abatements & exemptions.  It is spread 
across all classes of property.  The amount reserved for overlay is 
funded in the annual operating budget and reduces levy capacity.

7 / 1 2 / 2 0 2 3B R E W S T E R  T A X  R E L I E F  O P T I O N S



For your 
consideration:

Community 
Preservation 
Surcharge 
Exemption
(G.L. c. 44B §3(e)(1))

Low Income 
Residents 

& 

Low-Moderate 
Income Seniors

7 / 1 2 / 2 0 2 3B R E W S T E R  T A X  R E L I E F  O P T I O N S



Low Income Resident CPA Exemption &
Low-Moderate Income Senior CPA Exemption

B R E W S T E R  T A X  R E L I E F  O P T I O N S 7 / 1 2 / 2 0 2 3

Exempts the entire 3% CPA 
Surcharge for qualifying 

primary resident homeowners:

Seniors (Age 60 & Up): 
Income limit is 100% of the 
Area Wide Median Income 
(Low-Moderate Income)

Non-Seniors (below 60):  
Income limit is 80% of the 
Area Wide Median Income 
(Low Income)

Income limits are 
adjusted annually 
based on median area 
income and are further 
adjusted based on 
household size.  See 
chart on next slide for 
FY2024 limits.

Funding Source:  None –  
this is a reduction in CPA 

surcharge.

FY2023 Median Single 
Family Tax Bill was 
$4,450.53;

the Median CPA 
Surcharge was $133.52.



Annual Income Limits by Household Type and Size
FY2024 US HUD AWMI for Barnstable County is $124,300

7 / 1 2 / 2 0 2 3B R E W S T E R  T A X  R E L I E F  O P T I O N S

Property owned by senior (60 or older) Property owned by non-senior (under 60)

Household 
Size 100% AWMI

Household 
Multiplier

FY2024 Annual 
Income Limit

Household 
Size 80% AWMI

Household 
Multiplier

FY2024 Annual 
Income Limit

1 $            124,300 0.7 $             87,010 1 $        99,440 0.7 $             69,608 

2 $            124,300 0.8 $             99,440 2 $        99,440 0.8 $             79,552 

3 $            124,300 0.9 $           111,870 3 $        99,440 0.9 $             89,496 

4 $            124,300 1 $           124,300 4 $        99,440 1 $             99,440 

5 $            124,300 1.08 $           134,244 5 $        99,440 1.08 $           107,395 

6 $            124,300 1.16 $           144,188 6 $        99,440 1.16 $           115,350 

7 $            124,300 1.24 $           154,132 7 $        99,440 1.24 $           123,306 

8 $            124,300 1.32 $           164,076 8 $        99,440 1.32 $           131,261 



Potential CPA Surcharge Reductions due to 
Exemption “Back of the Napkin”

12.5%

12.5%

10%

15%

25%

25%

50%

50% 50% 50%

22.5%

77.5%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Residency Residency/Age Residency/Age/Income Total

Non-qualifying property

Estimated Qualified Property

Non-Resident

Resident

Resident Senior

Resident Non-Senior

Non-qualifying Resident  Non-Senior

Income Eligible Resident Non-Senior

Non-qualifying Resident Senior

Income Eligible Resident Senior

7 / 1 2 / 2 0 2 3B R E W S T E R  T A X  R E L I E F  O P T I O N S



Potential CPA Surcharge Reductions

• Although we estimate that up 22.5% percent of residential properties may qualify for the CPA 

Exemption, we don’t expect that all potentially qualifying properties will apply for the exemption.

• The application involves a full financial income review of all household members.

• All seniors who currently qualify for the existing senior real estate tax exemption under Clause 

41C will automatically qualify for the CPA exemption.  We average around 40 applicants per year 

(less than 1% of residential properties).

• Provincetown and Chatham have both adopted the CPA Exemption, they both report that there 

are very few applicants who are not already receiving the senior real estate exemption.

• The CPA exemption is a tool that provides a little extra relief for those that need it.

2 / 6 / 2 0 2 3B R E W S T E R  T A X  R E L I E F  O P T I O N S



Additional 
Topic for 
Discussion: 

Senior Circuit 
Breaker MA 
Income Tax 
Credit

All Brewster Seniors should be encouraged to file for Senior 
Circuit Breaker on MA Income Taxes.  This is an existing state 
program that provides a refundable tax credit up to $1,200

Many of our seniors who currently apply for existing 
exemptions are unaware of the senior circuit breaker and do 
not file income taxes because of their low incomes

The COA Outreach Workers and Tax Filing Assistance Programs 
can be a resource for these seniors so they can file their MA 
income taxes and get their Senior Circuit Breaker Credit.

Because there are seniors that are not filing for the CB, it is 
difficult to project the true financial impacts of these exemption 
options

2 / 6 / 2 0 2 3B R E W S T E R  T A X  R E L I E F  O P T I O N S



Summary – 
The CPA Low Income Resident Exemption 
& Low-Moderate Income Senior 
Exemption, if adopted, could be in place 
in time for FY2025.  This would be an 
exemption of the 3% CPA surcharge to 
Low Income households and Low-
Moderate Income Senior households.  
There is no funding required to offset the 
exemption.  The financial impact is a 
reduction in CPA surcharge revenue.  This 
is true relief and based on residency and 
income.  Applies to all ages.

7 / 1 2 / 2 0 2 3B R E W S T E R  T A X  R E L I E F  O P T I O N S



 

   

Nauset Regional School District, MA 

July 20, 2023 School Const. BAN 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I

05/16/2024 91,000,000.00 5.000% 3,741,111.11 94,741,111.11

Total $91,000,000.00 - $3,741,111.11 $94,741,111.11

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $74,822.22
Average Life 0.822 Years
Average Coupon 5.0000000%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 3.7254054%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 3.6651720%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 3.4815422%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 3.7898591%
 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 3.5010306%
Weighted Average Maturity 0.822 Years

School Construction BAN  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  7/ 6/2023  |  11:21 AM

UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services, Inc.
Page 2

 



 

   

Nauset Regional School District, MA 

July 20, 2023 School Const. BAN 

Sources & Uses 
 Dated 07/20/2023 |  Delivered 07/20/2023

Sources Of Funds 
Par Amount of Bonds $91,000,000.00
Reoffering Premium 1,090,180.00
 
Total Sources $92,090,180.00
 
Uses Of Funds 
Total Underwriter's Discount  (0.150%) 136,500.00
Costs of Issuance 92,500.00
New Money Proceeds 63,137,264.00
Renewal Proceeds 27,862,736.00
Net Premium (offset BAN interest) 861,180.00
Total Uses $92,090,180.00

School Construction BAN  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  7/ 6/2023  |  11:21 AM

UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services, Inc.
Page 1

 





Select Board Meeting 7.24.23 

Consent Agenda Cover Page 

a. Meeting Minutes: June 26 and July 10, 2023 
Draft meeting minutes from the Select Board regular session meetings on June 26 and 
July 10, 2023, have been submitted for approval.  

Administrative Recommendation: 
We recommend the Board approve the draft minutes.  

b. Appointments: Election Workers, Kimberley Crocker Pearson to Pleasant Bay Alliance 
Technical Resource Committee and Water Quality Review Committee; Chris Ellis to 
Pond Property Planning Committee 
The Town Clerk has submitted a list of names to be appointed as Election Personnel, 
effective September 1, 2023, through August 31, 2024.  These names were available in 
the For Your Information packet of the Select Board meeting on July 10, 2023.  

Kimberley Crocker Pearson has been recommended to serve on the Pleasant Bay Alliance 
Watershed Committee as the Brewster representative. This is for a 1-year term ending 
June 30, 2026. Additionally, the Conservation Commission has approved Ms. Pearson as 
the nomination to the Water Quality Review Committee.  She will be replacing 
Conservation Commission member Bruce Evans.  This will be for a 1-year term ending 
June 30, 2024.  

The Recreation Commission has voted Chris Ellis as a voting member of the Pond Parcel 
Planning Committee, this is a 1-year term ending on June 30, 2024.  

Administrative Recommendation: 
We recommend the Board approve these appointments.  

c. Fee Waiver Requests: Eddy Elementary School (Transfer Station) and Natural Resources 
Department (Building Department Fees)  
Both the School Committee and the Principal have approved items from the Eddy 
Elementary School as surplus for disposal.  The Head Custodian is requesting the waiver 
of any fees at the Transfer Station associated with the disposal of the items.  

The Natural Resources Department is requesting the waiver of the Building Department 
permit fee of $125 that is associated with the demolition of the garage located at 359 
Main Street.  

Administrative Recommendation: 
We recommend the Board approve these fee waiver requests.  

d. One Day Entertainment Licenses: Brewster Recreation Department and Northside 
United Methodist Church (and Fee Waiver Request) 
The Brewster Recreation Department will be hosting a family friendly DJ dance party at 
the Bay Property on Thursday July 27 starting at 6pm. The event will have amplified 
music and dancing outdoors.   



Select Board Meeting 7.24.23 

The Northside United Methodist Church is requesting to hold a live musical concert by 
Country & Gospel group Mark209 at the Drummer Boy Park on Wednesday August 23, 
2023, the anticipated time for the concert is 6pm and they expect 100 people to attend.  
The music group consists of 4 singers accompanied by keyboards and guitars.  The music 
will be amplified through their own sound system. 

Both applications request a waiver of the $35 fee for the One Day Entertainment License.   

Please see the cover page for all Department feedback regarding these applications.  

Administrative Recommendation: 
We recommend that the Board approve the One Day Entertainment License for Brewster 
Recreation.  The Board should consider the staff recommendations that were made in 
connection with the Northside United Methodist Church requests.  

e. One Day Liquor License Applications: Chatham Bars Inn Farm, Snowy Owl Coffee 
Roasters, and Susan Connor (Crosby Mansion Event) 
Chatham Bars Inn Farm is requesting a One Day Liquor License for a private farm to table 
dinner on Friday August 11th from 6pm until 9pm. There will be 30 guests and they would 
like to serve beer, wine and liquor. 

Snowy Owl Coffee Roasters is requesting a One Day Liquor License to serve beer and 

wine to 60-70 attendees for their “music night” to be held on Friday August 11th from 

7pm – 10pm.   

Susan Connor will be hosting a wedding event at Crosby Mansion on Saturday August 

12th from 3pm until 8pm.  There will be 70 guests in attendance between 3pm – 8pm.  

Chatham Light Liquors will provide the bartender to serve beer and wine to the guests. 

Please see the cover page for all Department feedback regarding these applications.  

f. Facility Use Application Request for Drummer Boy Park: Northside United Methodist 
Church (with fee waiver request), By the Bay Shows for Summer 2024 and Alzheimer’s 
Family Support Center (with fee waiver request) 
Pastor, Rodney Dobbs from Northside United Methodist Church is requesting the use of 
Drummer Boy Park Gazebo and fields to host a free concert to the public.  The request is 
for Wednesday August 23rd from 3pm until 9pm.  There will be live music performed by 
Country & Gospel group Mark209.  They expect 100 attendees for this event.  The non-
profit organization is requesting a fee waiver for the fees associated with this event (field 
use, gazebo, and electrical services) that totals $550.00. 

Bob Bugle, of By the Bay Shows has submitted applications to host seasonal arts and 

crafts shows at Drummer Boy Park for the 2024 season. Mr. Bugle has held his art shows 

at Drummer Boy Park for several years and is in good standing. The application, 

certificate of liability, site map and deposit check have all been received.   



Select Board Meeting 7.24.23 

The 2024 dates are: 

 Saturday May 25th & Sunday May 26th

 Saturday June 15th & Sunday June 16th

 Friday July 5th (set up day), Saturday July 6th & Sunday July 7th

The Alzheimer’s Family Support Center is requesting the use of the gazebo and adjacent 

field at Drummer Boy Park on Saturday August 19th from 2pm until 7pm to hold a staff 

picnic for about 30 people.  The request also is for a waiver of fees associated with the 

use of the park in the amount of $600.    

Please see the cover page for all Department feedback regarding these applications.  

Administrative Recommendation: 
We recommend the Board approve the facility use applications for By the Bay Shows and 
Alzheimer’s Family Support Center.  The Board should consider the staff 
recommendations that were made in connection with the Northside United Methodist 
Church request.  

g. Grant Application: Water Department Master Plan 
The Water Department Superintendent is requesting permission to submit an application 

for the Asset Management Planning Grant Program with assistance from Environmental 

Partners Group, LLC.  Grant funding is available for preparing Asset Management Plans  

for drinking water, wastewater, and stormwater systems. Environmental Partners scope 

of services will perform the list scope of services for the fee of $9,840.  The due date of 

the grant application is August 11, 2023.  

Administrative Recommendation: 
We recommend the Board approve the grant application request.  

h. Declare Surplus Property: Select Banners in Sea Camps Dining Hall 
The Chair of the Bay Property Planning Committee has requested that select banners 

from the Sea Camps Dining Hall be declared as surplus.  A resident is interested in 

purchasing select surplus banners from the Town, there is no declared value for these 

items.  

Administrative Recommendation: 
We recommend the Board declare the select banners as surplus property.   



Department Feedback on Applicafions

Various department heads had the opportunity to review the applicafions for One Day 
Entertainment Licenses, One Day Liquor Licenses and Facility Use.  The below informafion is for 
review of the Select Board and will be provided to the applicafion if their request is approved.  

One Day Entertainment Licenses:

 Brewster Recreafion
o Fire Department:  Parking in designated spaces only. Fire Lanes and access to 

buildings shall remain clear of vehicles.
o Health Department: If food is offered at any of these events, they will need to 

follow-up with the Health Department for food permits. 

 Northside United Methodist Church 
o Fire Department: Chapter 18 of the Fire Code sfipulates maintain a road width of 

20’ in between the rows of parked vehicles for fire department access. Parking 
permifted along the paved circle in the currently striped area(s) only. No parking 
on interior roadways.

o Town Administrafion:
 A police detail should be obtained, please consult with the Police 

Department.
 Ask guests to be responsible for their own trash removal.
 Any serving of food/food vendors need to be permifted through the 

Board of Health.
 No vehicles are to transverse across the paved walking paths.
 The sale or distribufion of single use plasfic boftled water is prohibited on 

town property.
 Music should end by 8:30pm.
 Nofify surrounding neighbors about the music ahead of the event as we 

only have music at Drummer Boy Park on Town Band night.
 An addifional port-a-john needs to be supplied for the event. 
 A Hawker & Peddler license is required for the sale of merchandise. 
 Any temporary signage must be applied for through the Building 

Department in advance.

 Snowy Owl Coffee Roasters
o No concerns with this applicafion

One Day Liquor Licenses:

 Chatham Bars Inn Farm
o Health Department: If food is offered at any of these events, they will need to 

follow-up with the Health Department for food permits.
o Fire Department: requires that all roadways must remain unobstructed for 

emergency vehicle access. No parking within fire lanes, on interior roads, or 
around main buildings that will inhibit or delay the response of fire apparatus or 
EMS vehicles to an emergency incident.



o The Planning Department noted that CBI Farms has obtained its annual special 
event permit from the Zoning Board of Appeals. 

o Police Department: requests that a barrier or signage should clearly delineate 
where people are permifted to consume the alcohol served.

o Town Administrafion reminds CBI Farm that no more than 30 one day liquor 
licenses can be issued in a calendar year.

 Snowy Owl Coffee Roasters
o Fire Department: parking in designed spaces only. Fire lanes and access to 

buildings shall remain clear of vehicles.

 Susan Connor (Crosby Mansion)
o Fire Department: parking in designed spaces only. Fire lanes and access to 

buildings shall remain clear of vehicles.
o Town Administrafion requires proof of Liquor Liability Insurance.

Facility Use Applicafions- Drummer Boy Park:

 Northside United Methodist Church
o Health Department: If food is offered at any of these events, they will need to 

follow-up with the Health Department for food permits.
o Natural Resources Department: No vehicles across the walking path, including 

during setup and breakdown of the event. 
o Fire Department: Chapter 18 of the Fire Code sfipulates maintaining a road width 

of 20’ in between the rows of parked vehicles for fire department 
access.  Parking permifted along the paved circle in the currently striped area(s) 
only. No parking on interior roadways.

o Town Administrafion:
 Police detail may be required, please consult with the Police Department 
 Ask their vendors/guests to be responsible for their own trash removal. 
 Any serving of food/food vendors needs to be permifted through the 

Board of Health. 
 No vehicles are to transverse across the paved walking paths.
 The sale of single use plasfic boftled water is prohibited on town 

property.
 An addifional port-a-john needs to be supplied for the event.
 Any temporary signage must be applied for through the Building 

Department in advance.  
o Police Department:  contact Lt. Mawn about possibly needing a detail, as most 

guests will arrive and leave around the same fime.  They should also have a 
parking plan and should provide staff to help park vehicles.

 By the Bay Art Shows
o Health Department: If food is offered at any of these events, they will need to 

follow-up with the Health Department for food permits.
o Natural Resources Department: No vehicles across the walking path, including 

during setup and breakdown of the event.



o Fire Department:
 If applicable, all tents shall have a permanently affixed label indicating 

appropriate fire retardant ratings.  
 If applicable, multiple tents placed side by side shall have a 12 ft. fire 

break clearance on all sides for every 700 square feet of tent (Ex. When 
seven 10’ x 10’ (or greater) tents are placed side by side there shall be a 
12’ break every 700’ or less dependent on size of tent. 

 Parked vehicles or internal combustion engines such as generators shall 
not be located closer than 20 feet to any tent or membrane structure 400 
sq ft or more and/or multiple tents placed side by side with an aggregate 
area of 700 sq ft. For the purpose of determining required distance, 
support ropes and guy wires shall be considered as part of the temporary 
membrane structure or tents. Parked vehicles or generators shall not be 
located closer than 20 feet to and stand, table, or concession area.  

 Access to parking and vendor fields by fire department vehicles shall not 
be blocked. All lanes in between tents shall be no less than 12' in width.   

 No parking on interior roads shall be permitted. 
o Town Administration: 

 Police detail may be required, please consult with the Police Department 
 Ask their vendors/guests to be responsible for their own trash removal. (
 Any serving of food/food vendors needs to be permifted through the 

Board of Health.
 No vehicles are to transverse across the paved walking paths.
 The sale of single use plasfic boftled water is prohibited on town 

property.
 They need to supply their own port-a-johns for the event.
 Any temporary signage must be applied for through the Building 

Department in advance.  

 Alzheimer’s Family Support
o Health Department: If food is offered at any of these events, they will need to 

follow-up with the Health Department for food permits.
o Natural Resources Department: No vehicles across the walking path, including 

during setup and breakdown of the event.
o Fire Department: Chapter 18 of the Fire Code sfipulates maintaining a road width 

of 20’ in between the rows of parked vehicles for fire department 
access.  Parking permifted along the paved circle in the currently striped area(s) 
only. No parking on interior roadways.

o Town Administrafion:
 Ask their vendors/guests to be responsible for their own trash removal. 
 Any serving of food/food vendors needs to be permifted through the 

Board of Health. 
 No vehicles are to transverse across the paved walking paths.
 The sale of single use plasfic boftled water is prohibited on town 

property.



Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

Select Board 6.26.2023                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 1 of 7 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 

MINUTES OF THE SELECT BOARD MEETING              REGULAR SESSION 
DATE:  June 26, 2023 
TIME:  5:30 PM 
PLACE:  2198 Main Street 

PARTICIPANTS: Chair Chatelain, Selectperson Whitney, Selectperson Bingham, Selectperson Hoffmann, 
Town Manager Peter Lombardi, Assistant Town Manager Donna Kalinick, Brian Webb (Ocean Edge Resorts), 
Jan Moore, Matthew Gschwend, Ed Sayer, C. Verkerk, John Mucci, Brewster School Committee Members- 
Katie Jacobus, Carol Jelenik, Judi Lech, Brooke Clenchy (Superintendent) 

REMOTE PARTICIPANTS: Selectperson Chaffee, Lori Bonavolante, Brewster School Committee Members- 
Casey Mecca and Sarah Sherman, Giovanna Venditti 

Call to Order, Declaration of a Quorum, Meeting Participation Statement and Recording Statement  
Chair Chatelain called the meeting to order at 5:30pm, read the meeting participation and recording 
statement and declared a quorum. 

Executive Session 

 To discuss strategy with respect to litigation if an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the 
litigating position of the public body and the chair so declares- Lanctot et al v. Town of Brewster. 

 To conduct collective bargaining sessions with nonunion personnel- Fire Union 

Selectperson Hoffmann moved to enter into executive session. Selectperson Bingham second. A roll call vote 
was taken. Selectperson Chaffee-yes, Selectperson Bingham-yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson 
Whitney-yes, Chair Chatelain-yes. The Board vote was 5-Yes, 0-No. 

The Select Board returned to Regular Session at 6:15pm. 

6:15pm- Public Hearing, Renewal of Entertainment Licenses: Brewster Council on Aging, Brewster Inn, Inc. 
d/b/a Woodshed, Brewster VFW Post #9917, Brown Dog Investments, Inc. d/b/a Laurino’s Tavern, Cape 
Cod Repertory Theatre, Ocean Edge Resort Limited Partnership d/b/a Ocean Edge Inn and Conference 
Center, Ocean Edge Resort Limited Partnership d/b/a Linx Tavern, Shady Knoll Tent Sites, Inc. d/b/a Shady 
Knoll Campground, Sweetwater Forest Inc d/b/a Sweetwater Forest 
Selectperson Hoffmann moved to open the public hearing for Monday June 26, 6:15pm for the renewal of 
Annual Entertainment Licenses as listed in the notice in the Cape Codder on June 16 and June 23, 2023. 
Selectperson Bingham second. A roll call vote was taken. Selectperson Chaffee-yes, Selectperson Bingham-
yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair Chatelain-yes. The Board vote was 5-Yes, 
0-No. 

http://www.brewster-ma.gov/


Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

Select Board 6.26.2023                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 2 of 7 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 

Jan Moore, 2837 Main Street, inquired about the permit that relates to non-wedding music allowed on the 
front lawn.  Brain Webb, Ocean Edge Resorts, responded that there is no entertainment or events on the 
front lawn, adding that there will be no speakers, or musicians on the front lawn.  

Selectperson Hoffmann moved to close the public. Selectperson Bingham second. A roll call vote was taken. 
Selectperson Chaffee-yes, Selectperson Bingham-yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson Whitney-
yes, Chair Chatelain-yes. The Board vote was 5-Yes, 0-No. 

Selectperson Hoffmann moved to vote to approve the following Annual Entertainment Licenses valid July 1, 
2023 through June 30, 2024 with all conditions outlined in the packet; Brewster Council on Aging, Brewster 
Inn, Inc. d/b/a Woodshed (with conditions), Brewster Post #9917 VFW, Brown Dog Investments, Inc. d/b/a 
Laurino’s Tavern, Cape Cod Repertory Theatre, Ocean Edge Resort Limited Partnership d/b/a Ocean Edge Inn 
and Conference Center (with conditions), Ocean Edge Resort Limited Partnership d/b/a Linx Tavern, Shady 
Knoll Tent Sites, Inc. d/b/a Shady Knoll Campground and Sweetwater Forest Inc d/b/a Sweetwater Forest. 
Selectperson Bingham second. A roll call vote was taken. Selectperson Chaffee-yes, Selectperson Bingham-
yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair Chatelain-yes. The Board vote was 5-Yes, 
0-No. 

Consent Agenda 
a. One Day Liquor License Applications: Cape Cod Museum of Natural History, Chatham Bars Inn Farm 

and Treats Catering for an Event at Crosby Mansion 
b. One Day Entertainment License Application: Chatham Bars Inn Farm 
c. Pass Through Town Permission- Brew Run Road Race 
d. Water Department Items Declared as Surplus for Sale 
e. Brewster Conservation Trust Representative to the Bay Property Planning Committee 
f. Letter of Opposition to Proposed Discharge of Radioactive Waste from Pilgrim Power Plant 
g. Conservation Commission Request to Authorize Expenditure from Wetlands Protection Fund 
h. Vote on Re-appointment of KP Law, PC Town Counsel 
i. Notice of Owner’s Intent to Sell Affordable Home at 6 Sachemus Trail: Town’s Election to Vote to 

Decline the Option to Purchase and Market to an Eligible Purchaser for the Home 
j. Request for Building Department Fee Waiver: Latham Centers 

Selectperson Hoffmann moved to approve the Consent Agenda for June 26, 2023, as recommended. 
Selectperson Bingham second. A roll call vote was taken. Selectperson Chaffee-yes, Selectperson Bingham-
yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair Chatelain-yes. The Board vote was 5-Yes, 
0-No. 

Select Board Announcements and Liaison Reports 
Selectperson Bingham notified the Board and residents of the passing of Bob Miller, adding that he was very 
active in many committees in Town.  A service will be held on Tuesday August 22 at 11am, at Our Lady of the 

http://www.brewster-ma.gov/


Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

Select Board 6.26.2023                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 3 of 7 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 

Cape.  Selectperson Hoffmann shared that she attended the groundbreaking at the Nauset Regional High 
School. 

Discuss Proposed Select Board Liaison Assignments 
Chair Chatelain noted that the packet will reflect the updated assignments. Selectperson Hoffmann moved to 
approve the Select Board Liaison Assignments for FY2024. Selectperson Bingham second. A roll call vote was 
taken. Selectperson Chaffee-yes, Selectperson Bingham-yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson 
Whitney-yes, Chair Chatelain-yes. The Board vote was 5-Yes, 0-No. 

6:30pm- Public Hearing, Annual Entertainment License: Putt Putt Chicken Butt, Inc. d/b/a Harbor Lights 
Mini Golf 
Selectperson Hoffmann moved to open the public hearing for the Annual Entertainment License for Putt Putt 
Chicken Butt, Inc. d/b/a Harbor Lights Mini Golf as noticed in the Cape Codder on June 16 and June 23, 2023. 
Selectperson Bingham second. A roll call vote was taken. Selectperson Chaffee-yes, Selectperson Bingham-
yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair Chatelain-yes. The Board vote was 5-Yes, 
0-No. 

Matthew Gschwend, owner of the business, reviewed the proposed operation offering mini golf, ice cream 
and music throughout the course.  The following abutters expressed their concern with the entertainment 
license application:  

 Ed Sayer, 57 Sachemus Trail, expressed his concerns with the music played past 10pm.   

 C. Verkerk, 58 Sachemus Trail, requested that there is no music past 10pm and that it is not too loud.  

 John Mucci, 54 Sachemus Trail, agreeable as long as the conditions are met that are outlined by the 
Town.   

 Lori Bonavolante, 66 Sachemus Trail, inquired when will mini golf end each night. 

Mr. Gschwend responded that they do not intend to play music past 10pm and keep the music family 
friendly.  Mr. Gschwend noted that the speakers face inward on the property and offered that the abutters 
can contact him directly if there are any concerns once they start operating.  Mr. Gschwend shared that the 
plan is not to allow guests to start a round of mini golf 15-20 minutes prior to 10pm.   

Selectperson Hoffmann moved to close the public hearing. Selectperson Bingham second. A roll call vote was 
taken. Selectperson Chaffee-yes, Selectperson Bingham-yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson 
Whitney-yes, Chair Chatelain-yes. The Board vote was 5-Yes, 0-No. 

Selectperson Hoffmann moved to approve the Annual Entertainment License for Putt Putt Chicken Butt Inc., 
d/b/a Harbor Lights Mini Golf. Selectperson Bingham second. A roll call vote was taken. Selectperson 
Chaffee-yes, Selectperson Bingham-yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair 
Chatelain-yes. The Board vote was 5-Yes, 0-No. 

http://www.brewster-ma.gov/


Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

Select Board 6.26.2023                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 4 of 7 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 

Review and Vote on Common Victualler License: Putt Putt Chicken Butt, Inc. d/b/a Harbor Lights Mini Golf 
Selectperson Hoffmann moved to approve the Common Victualler License for Putt Putt Chicken Butt Inc., 
d/b/a Harbor Lights Mini Golf. Selectperson Bingham second. A roll call vote was taken. Selectperson 
Chaffee-yes, Selectperson Bingham-yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair 
Chatelain-yes. The Board vote was 5-Yes, 0-No. 

Discuss and Vote on Proposed Appropriation from Special Education Stabilization Fund to Cover FY23 
Brewster Elementary School Budget Deficit- Joint Meeting with Brewster School Committee 
Brewster School Committee Chair Katie Jacobus called the meeting to order and declared a quorum stating 
the following members present: Carol Jelenik, Judi Lech, Sarah Sherman (remote) and Casey Mecca (remote).  

Mr. Lombardi reviewed the approval of the Special Education Stabilization Fund at the Spring 2022 Town 
Meeting, noting that appropriations require joint approval from the Select Board and the local School 
Committee.  Going into FY23, Brewster Elementary schools were eligible for a significant increase in Chapter 
70 funding, up about $300K from the previous year. A decision was made that $200K of this funding would 
be allocated to cover increased costs related to the FY23 Nauset Regional School Budget and the balance to 
be transferred to the new stabilization fund which currently has a little over $103K.   

Superintendent Clenchy reviewed the documentation that was provided in the packet including expenditure 
reports as of June 24, 2023, adding that additional changes may be needed.  There was a brief review of the 
Circuit Breaker.  

Members of the Select Board made remarks and asked questions to the Superintendent Clenchy and the 
School Committee, these included: 

 Details on the $67K overage on the Special Education Line, Giovanna Venditti noted that the schools 
cannot end the year in a deficit position.  

 Discussion on the stabilization fund and how to appropriately replenish and grow the fund.   

 Chair Katie Jacobus noted that the new State Representative Flanagan is lobbying for more funding. 

 Discussion on Circuit Breaker, noted that these funds are one year behind and the money must be 
applied within 2 years.  

 Review of the preschool program within Nauset Public Schools 

Brewster School Committee member Jelenik moved to approve the amount of $67,512.00 from Brewster 
Special Education Stabilization Fund.  Member Lech second. A roll call vote was taken. Member Jelenik-yes, 
Member Lech-yes, Member Mecca-yes, Member Sherman-yes, Chair Miller-Jacobus-yes, Selectperson 
Chaffee-yes, Selectperson Bingham-yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair 
Chatelain-yes. The vote was 10-Yes, 0-No. 

The Brewster School Committed member Jelenik voted to adjourn at 6:42pm.  Member Lech second. A roll 
call vote was taken. Member Jelenik-yes, Member Lech-yes, Member Mecca-yes, Member Sherman-yes, 
Chair Miller-Jacobus-yes. The vote was 5-Yes, 0-No.  

http://www.brewster-ma.gov/


Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

Select Board 6.26.2023                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 5 of 7 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 

Vote on Re-Appointments to Various Boards and Committees 
Chair Chatelain noted that there are vacancies on various boards and committees, the website will be 
updated with the available openings. Selectperson Hoffmann moved to approve the re-appointments to 
various boards and committees. Selectperson Bingham second. A roll call vote was taken. Selectperson 
Chaffee-yes, Selectperson Bingham-yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair 
Chatelain-yes. The Board vote was 5-Yes, 0-No. 

Vote on FY24-26 Fire Union Contract 
Mr. Lombardi noted that the Town and the Union have come to an agreement on a new three-year contract 
and the Fire Union have taken a ratification vote.  The contract includes: 

 a 2.5% COLA in each of the three fiscal years, consistent with the COLA increase for all Town 
employees.   

 a modification to the wage scale reducing the total number of steps from 9 to 8, an increase in the 
increment between step 2 and 3. 

 all current employees will be placed on their current step in FY23 and for FY24, the wage scale will be 
implemented from there.  

Selectperson Hoffmann moved to ratify the Fire Union contract for FY24-26 and instruct Peter Lombardi to 
sign the Memorandum of Understanding with the Union that codifies the changes between the previous 
contract and this one. Selectperson Bingham second. Mr. Lombardi added that a warrant article will be 
placed on the Special Town Meeting in November, if Town Meeting approves, the pay increases will be 
retroactive to July 1, 2023.  A roll call vote was taken. Selectperson Chaffee-yes, Selectperson Bingham-yes, 
Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair Chatelain-yes. The Board vote was 5-Yes, 0-No. 

Public Announcements and Comment 
None 

Town Manager’s Report  
Mr. Lombardi shared the following: 

o Community Pool Ribbon Cutting Ceremony 

 over 100 residents celebrated the Cape’s first outdoor public pool opening   

 The pool is now open 7 days a week through August 20, 2023 

 Reviewed the number of pool memberships sold, guest pass sale days and resident drop-in days   

 Thanked all Town staff for their work in making this happen for the Community.   

o New Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) Regulations 

 State regulations regarding Title 5 and watershed regulations will take effect on July 7, 2023.  The 
State completed extensive public outreach and sought feedback from all Cape towns last year. 

 The general goal for the regulatory framework is designed to enhance their requirements in 
mitigating nitrogen in coastal embayments.   

http://www.brewster-ma.gov/


Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

Select Board 6.26.2023                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 6 of 7 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 

 Still reviewing new regulations and related documentation but it looks like DEP was responsive to 
at least some of the Water Resource Task Force comments. 

 Most important takeaway is that based on our current data and latest analysis, we do not expect 
that these new regulations will require the Town to mandate installation of innovative/alternative 
(I/A) septic systems or sewers in any part of Town. 

 Brewster has been incredibly proactive, the new watershed regulations basically hold up the 
Pleasant Bay watershed permit that Brewster shares with Orleans, Harwich, and Chatham. 

 There are 4 nitrogen sensitive watersheds in Brewster based on the new state regulations: 
Pleasant Bay, Herring River, Swan Pond, and Bass River. 
 Under the existing Pleasant Bay watershed permit, Mr. Lombardi doesn’t think that 

residents will be required to transition to I/A technology or install sewer package plants. 
We may meet our obligations within the 20-year timeline without imposing any 
requirements on our residents.  

 The analysis that has been completed within the Herring River watershed (area around 
Long Pond and Sheep Pond), has Brewster concerned about future building in the area, our 
nitrogen contributions don’t require addition mitigation.  

 Brewster’s contributions to the Swan Pond and Bass River watersheds are considered “de 
minimis” according to the new regulations, the Town can have simple targeted means to 
address.   

 The rest of Brewster drains to Cape Cod Bay and is not regulated under the new 
regulations.  

Mr. Lombard expects that the Water Resource Task Force will provide a full report to the Select Board and 
the Board of Health in the coming months. The Town co-hosted the annual ponds summit with the Brewster 
Pond Coalition, noting that the new regulations are focused on nitrogen, not regulating phosphorus 
contributions to our ponds. The Town takes pond water quality seriously and will continue to look at 
solutions. Mr. Lombardi highlighted correspondence with Senator Cyr and the pending legislation that may 
potentially triple the current state tax credit for failed septic systems to $18K, though the definition of a 
failed system will be reviewed.  

The Planning Board is hosting a public listening session this Wednesday the 28th at 6:30 to discuss potential 
changes to the Accessory Dwelling Unit Bylaw; residents are invited to attend and provide feedback. 

Mr. Lombardi congratulated Fran Schofield for receiving the Commonwealth Heroine Award for 
extraordinary public service, certainly well-deserved considering her many contributions to Brewster and the 
region. 

FYIs 
No comments 

http://www.brewster-ma.gov/


Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

Select Board 6.26.2023                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 7 of 7 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 

Matters Not Reasonably Anticipated by the Chair 
None 

Questions from the Media 
Bronwen Walsh (Cape Cod Chronicle) inquired about the analysis from the Pond Property Planning 
Committee, Selectperson Hoffmann directed Ms. Walsh to the latest meeting recording.  Mr. Lombardi 
shared that the Town website project page has been updated with the findings for both the Pond and the 
Bay properties. 

Next Meetings 
July 10, July 21, July 24, August 17, and August 21, 2023

Adjournment 
Selectperson Hoffmann moved to adjourn at 7:54pm. Selectperson Chaffee second. A roll call vote was 
taken. Selectperson Chaffee-yes, Selectperson Bingham-yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson 
Whitney-yes, Chair Chatelain-yes. The Board vote was 5-Yes, 0-No. 

Respectfully submitted by Erika Mawn,  
Executive Assistant 

Approved: __________________ Signed: _________________________________________ 
      Date                       Selectperson Hoffmann, Clerk of the Select Board

Accompanying Documents in Packet: Agenda, Town Manager’s Report, Consent Agenda items, Renewal of Annual Entertainment 
Licenses, New Annual Entertainment and Common Vicutaller License, Special Education Stabilization Fund transfer, Re-appointments to 
Board and Committees, FY24 Select Board Liaison Assignments, FYIs. 

http://www.brewster-ma.gov/


Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

Select Board 7.10.2023                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 1 of 5 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 

MINUTES OF THE SELECT BOARD MEETING              REGULAR SESSION 
DATE:  July 10, 2023 
TIME:  6:00 PM 
PLACE:  2198 Main Street 

PARTICIPANTS: Chair Chatelain, Selectperson Whitney, Selectperson Bingham, Selectperson Hoffmann, 
Selectperson Chaffee, Town Manager Peter Lombardi, Assistant Town Manager Donna Kalinick, Lynda 
Brogden-Burns, Gregg Corbo, Bernardo Macedo, Amanda Bebrin, Mimi Bernardo (Finance Director), Robert 
Moran (Fire Chief) 
REMOTE PARTICIPANTS: James Norcross, Jackie Lancaster 

Call to Order, Declaration of a Quorum, Meeting Participation Statement and Recording Statement  
Chair Chatelain called the meeting to order at 6:00pm, read the meeting participation and recording 
statement and declared a quorum. 

Public Announcements and Comment 
None 

Select Board Announcements and Liaison Reports 
Selectperson Hoffmann announced there will be a presentation on Thursday July 13 at 6pm at Town Hall, 
Brad Chase from Mass. Division of Marine Fisheries will be presenting on the Stony Brook Herring Run. This 
will be a joint meeting of the Alewife Committee and the Natural Resources Advisory Committee.  

Town Manager’s Report  
Mr. Lombardi expressed his appreciation to all who helped with Brewster Conservation Day, including the 
Natural Resources Department, Brewster Conservation Trust and the many committees, departments and 
local organizations who participated.   

Information is included in the packet for a proposal for a consulting firm to assist in improving 
communications and outreach to residents. The Town is looking to develop a communications plan, identify 
best practices, solicit resident feedback, and participate in local government.  Mr. Lombardi expects their 
assessment and recommendations by the end of the calendar year. 

Mr. Lombardi acknowledged that the Millstone Road Affordable Project is moving forward and the 
comprehensive permit decision was issued by the Zoning Board of Appeals last month. There will be a joing 
meeting with the Select Board, Housing Partnership, Affordable Housing Trust, Finance Committee and the 
Community Preservation Committee to talk about local preference next month.  

Consent Agenda 
a. Meeting Minutes: June 5, 2023 
b. Appointments: Golf Commission and Council on Aging 

http://www.brewster-ma.gov/


Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

Select Board 7.10.2023                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 2 of 5 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 

c. Re-Appointment Update for Water Quality Review Committee 
d. Application for Facility Use and Fee Waiver Request: Anglican Church of the Resurrection 
e. One Day Liquor License Applications: Chatham Bars Inn Farm 
f. Vote to Approve and Sign Conservation Restriction for 0 Stony Brook Road  
g. Request for Commercial Shellfish Permit 

Chair Chatelain noted that an item was removed from the agenda. Selectperson Hoffmann moved to 
approve the Consent Agenda for July 10, 2023, as amended, and recommended. Selectperson Chaffee 
second. A roll call vote was taken. Selectperson Chaffee-yes, Selectperson Bingham-yes, Selectperson 
Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair Chatelain-yes. The Board vote was 5-Yes, 0-No. 

Dangerous Dog Hearing (MGL Ch 140 Sec 157): Katherine Muchunguzi, 96 Huckleberry Lane 
Chair Chatelain noted that the hearing has been requested by Brewster’s Animal Control Officer, Lynda 
Brogden-Burns and will be conducted by Town Counsel representative Gregg Corbo. Chair Chatelain 
reviewed the format of the hearing.  Mr. Corbo noted that the Select Board will be deliberating over two 
issues after the evidence has been presented, first whether to find if the dog is a nuisance dog or dangerous 
dogs as the terms are defined in State Law and second, if the dog fits in either definition, what if any remedy 
should be imposed to abate the nuisance or the danger.  Mr. Corbo announced that by State Law the Select 
Board cannot issue an order that prohibits the dog from residing in the Town of Brewster.  

Selectperson Hoffmann moved to open the public hearing for the dangerous dog hearing (MGL Ch 140 Sec 
157), Katherine Muchunguzi of 96 Huckleberry Lane, the hearing was noticed in the Cape Codder on June 30 
and July 7, 2023. Selectperson Bingham second. A roll call vote was taken. Selectperson Chaffee-yes, 
Selectperson Bingham-yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair Chatelain-yes. The 
Board vote was 5-Yes, 0-No. 

Anyone who intended to testify was sworn in by Mr. Corbo. It was noted that there were no representatives 
of the owner of the dog at the meeting.   

Lynda Brogden-Burns summarized her experience with the dog, including her interaction with the dog after 
the quarantine period. The recommendation by Animal Control Office Brogden-Burns is that the dog, “Mina” 
be deemed a nuisance dog per MGL Ch. 140, §157 with the following conditions: 

 Mina be kept securely confined indoors and whenever outdoors, the dog shall be secure and 
humanely muzzled and restrained on a leash not exceeding six feet and under the control of a 
responsible adult. 

 If Mina is left unsupervised outdoors, she must be muzzled and tethered or confined in a securely 
enclosed pen set forth in the regulations in MGL Ch. 140 §174E. 

 The Muchugnuzi’s provide Mina with professional dog training. 

 Mina’s rabies vaccination be kept current, and the dog must be licensed annually in the Town. 

http://www.brewster-ma.gov/


Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

Select Board 7.10.2023                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 3 of 5 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 

Members of the Select Board deliberated on the evidence that has was submitted.  Attorney Corbo provided 
information relating to the labels that may apply to Mina, noting that the Board could reconvene and lift any 
label placed on the dog. There was clarification on the labeling of nuisance vs. dangerous including the 
matter of degree and circumstance and if there are external mitigating factors that may have caused the dog 
to react.  Ms. Brogden-Burns reviewed her requests to the owners that the dog be trained and licensed in 
prior instances.  Attorney Corbo provided information on what could happen if the Select Board order is not 
complied with, which includes seizure of the dog by the Animal Control Officer and criminal penalties.   

Witness Jackie Lancaster provided details of her interactions with Mina, one of which resulted in her 
daughter, Raven Berry, being bitten by Mina in Brewster, where Ms. Berry lives. This incident was 
unprovoked and as a result Ms. Berry and family take precautions when entering/exiting the property. 

The Select Board recommended to find that the dog is a nuisance dog, and the following conditions will be 
imposed to abate the nuisance: 

1. The dog must be confined to the premises of its owner/keeper either indoors or outdoors properly 
sheltered from the elements in a securely enclosed and locked pen or dog run area with a secure 
roof.  If the enclosure has no floor with the sides not less than 2 feet embedded into the ground. 

2. When removed from the premises of the owner/keeper and not within the pen the dog shall be 
securely and humanely muzzled with a chain or other tethering device having a minimum tensile 
strength of 300lbs and not exceeding 6 feet in length. The muzzle requirement applying when the dog 
is in the pen. 

3. The owner/keeper provides documented proof of no less than $100,000 insurance for claims 
resulting from intentional or unintentional acts of the dog or of reasonable efforts to obtain such 
insurance if a policy has not been issued.  

4. The owner/keeper provide the licensing authority, animal control office or other entity identified with 
information by which the dog may be identified including for example photographs, videos, 
veterinary examination, tattooing or microchip implants or combination thereof.  

5. The dog must be licensed in any municipality. 
6. The owner keep the dog current on vaccinations.  
7. The dog is enrolled in a training program with a certified trainer with evidence of completion of the 

program to be submitted within 6 months. Training contract to be in place within 2 weeks and 
monthly progress reports from the trainer to be filed with the Animal Control Office.  

The decision letter will be signed by the Chair and the letter be sent to the Animal Control Office in 
Barnstable.  

Selectperson Bingham moved to accept the orders as presented. Selectperson Chaffee second. A roll call 
vote was taken. Selectperson Chaffee-yes, Selectperson Bingham-yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, 
Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair Chatelain-yes. The Board vote was 5-Yes, 0-No. 

Selectperson Hoffmann moved to close the public hearing.  Selectperson Bingham second. A roll call vote 

http://www.brewster-ma.gov/


Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

Select Board 7.10.2023                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 4 of 5 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 

was taken. Selectperson Chaffee-yes, Selectperson Bingham-yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson 
Whitney-yes, Chair Chatelain-yes. The Board vote was 5-Yes, 0-No. 

Review and Vote on Common Vicutaller License: Brewster Pico LLC 
The owner/manager was present to answer any questions regarding his application. Ms. Kalinick noted that 
the Common Victualler license is required to open and noted that the business is intending to operate the 
same as the previous restaurant that was located in the same space.  Mr. Macedo noted that this will be 
primarily take-out with outdoor seating provided.  Chair Chatelain reminded that liquor sales are not 
approved at this time.  

Selectperson Hoffmann moved to approve the Common Victualler License for Brewster Pico LLC. 
Selectperson Whitney second. A roll call vote was taken. Selectperson Chaffee-yes, Selectperson Bingham-
yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair Chatelain-yes. The Board vote was 5-Yes, 
0-No. 

Discuss and Vote on Proposed Committee Open House & Volunteer Appreciation Event- Amanda Bebrin 
Amanda Bebrin, Chair of the Bay Property Planning Committee, introduced the event expected to be held at 
the end of September.  The proposal is for a job fair style open house where boards and committees could 
host a table and present the work that they are responsible for. The second part would be a volunteer 
appreciation luncheon. Members of the Select Board are supportive of this concept.  

Selectperson Hoffmann moved to approve the proposed committee open house and volunteer appreciate 
event. Selectperson Chaffee second. A roll call vote was taken. Selectperson Chaffee-yes, Selectperson 
Bingham-yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair Chatelain-yes. The Board vote 
was 5-Yes, 0-No. 

Vote on FY23 Year-End Transfer Request(s) 
Mimi Bernardo noted that MGL Ch.44 §33b states that up through July 15, 2023, transfers from any budget 
with available funds to a budget that needs funding is allowed.  Fire Chief Moran explained that due to 
staffing shortages there has been an increase in overtime.  

Selectperson Hoffmann moved to approve the year-end transfer for 2023 as outlined in the packet for $10K. 
Selectperson Bingham second. A roll call vote was taken. Selectperson Chaffee-yes, Selectperson Bingham-
yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair Chatelain-yes. The Board vote was 5-Yes, 
0-No. 

Review Boat Ramp Construction Schedule & Vote on Long Pond Landing Closure 
Mr. Lombardi reviewed the Long Pond landing projected that will include onsite formal trailer parking for 
safer access and significant enhancement to storm water treatment and control.  Funding has been secured 
for the project which is to be completed by Speakman Excavation and overseen by Horsley Witten.  Our 
Natural Resources Director, Chris Miller and DPW Director, Griffin Ryder will also provide internal oversight 

http://www.brewster-ma.gov/


Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

Select Board 7.10.2023                                      www.brewster-ma.gov Page 5 of 5 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 

of the project.  The landing will be closed from September 5, 2023, through the end of December, there may 
be a need to close the landing again in the Spring.    

Selectperson Hoffmann moved to approve the construction schedule of Long Pond Landing and the closure 
of public access of the Town Landing from September 5, 2023, through December 1, 2023 with the additional 
requirements that closures may be needed in Spring 2024 to complete the finished work and landscaping. 
Selectperson Bingham second. A roll call vote was taken. Selectperson Chaffee-yes, Selectperson Bingham-
yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson Whitney-yes, Chair Chatelain-yes. The Board vote was 5-Yes, 
0-No. 

FYIs 
No comments 

Matters Not Reasonably Anticipated by the Chair 
None 

Questions from the Media 
None 

Next Meetings 
July 21, July 24, August 17, and August 21, 2023

Adjournment 
Selectperson Chaffee moved to adjourn at 7:27pm. Selectperson Hoffmann second. A roll call vote was 
taken. Selectperson Chaffee-yes, Selectperson Bingham-yes, Selectperson Hoffmann-yes, Selectperson 
Whitney-yes, Chair Chatelain-yes. The Board vote was 5-Yes, 0-No. 

Respectfully submitted by Erika Mawn,  
Executive Assistant 

Approved: __________________ Signed: _________________________________________ 
      Date                       Selectperson Hoffmann, Clerk of the Select Board

Accompanying Documents in Packet: Agenda, Town Manager’s Report, Consent Agenda items, Dangerous Dog Hearing documents, 
Common Victualler application, proposed committee open house/volunteer appreciation event, year-end transfer request, Long Pond 
Landing construction schedule and closure, FYIs. 

http://www.brewster-ma.gov/


Town of Brewster 
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
Fax: (508) 896-8089 

 

Memo 

To: Brewster Select Board 
From: Colette Williams, Town Clerk 
Date: June 8th, 2023 
Re: Election Workers to be appointed 
  

Pursuant to Massachusetts General Law Chapter 54, section 12, the attached list of names are 
being presented to the Brewster Select Board, to be appointed as Election Personnel, effective 
September 1, 2023 through August 31, 2024.  

 

Thank you for your time and attention. 

 

 

 

 

Office of: 
Town Clerk 

 

 
 







FINAL Select Bd Appt Policy; version Oct. 28 

Appendix B 
 

Town of Brewster 
SELECT BOARD COMMITTEE APPOINTMENT APPLICATION 

 
APPLICANT DIRECTIONS:  
 Thank you for your interest in serving Brewster. The Town aims to match applicants 

with committee service best aligned to your skills and interests as well as the 
committee’s needs.  

 The Town may consider the information in this application, any supplemental 
information, and any other publicly available information. An appointment to any 
committee, board or commission is at the discretion of the Select Board. 

 Please complete this form online, or on paper, and submit a résumé if desired to 
Erika Mawn, Town Administrator’s Executive Assistant:  

o Email: EMawn@Brewster-MA.gov 
o Mail: Erika Mawn, 2198 Main St., Brewster, MA 02631, or  
o In person: Town Administrator’s Office or drop-box outside Town Hall.  

 After your application materials are received, you’ll be contacted regarding next 
steps. Vacancies will be filled by applicants deemed best qualified to serve in a 
particular capacity, which discretion lies solely with the appointing authority. 
Submitting this form does not guarantee appointment.  

______________________________________________________________________ 

1. Applicant name:        

2. Address:   

3. Phone Numbers:   Home:    Cell:  

4. Email:   

5. This is an application for:    Full member status  Alternate status 

6. Are you a full-time Brewster resident?        Yes   No 

7. Years you’ve lived in Brewster:       

8. Are you registered to vote in Brewster?   Yes   No 

9. Committees you are interested in serving on in order of preference: 
a.       
b.       
c.       

 

NOTE: You may attach a résumé or CV instead of completing items 10-14. 

Doc ID: fc1e0b7140b622985c36abf9b734bd7db3607883



FINAL Select Bd Appt Policy; version Oct. 28 

10. EDUCATION. List schools attended, degrees/diplomas/certificates received, 
and date of completion. 

     

11. OCCUPATION:          Active  Retired   Not currently working  

12. EMPLOYMENT EXPERIENCE. List employers, job titles and dates of 
employment for at least previous 3 years.  

     

13. GOVERNMENT POSITIONS. List any Town of Brewster or other government 
volunteer, elected, or appointed positions you now hold or have held. 

     

14. COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES. List all civic, non-profit, or other organizations that 
you belong to or have belonged to in the previous 5 years: 

a. Organizations and dates:       
 

15. GOALS: Please explain why you’d like to serve on a particular committee. 
     

16. EXPERIENCE & SKILLS: Please list any experience, achievements, skills, or 
interests you have that would assist you to serve effectively on the committee
you wish to serve on. 

     

17. TOWN EMPLOYMENT: Are you or any member of your immediate family 
employed by or receiving financial consideration from the Town of Brewster? 

     

18. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. Do any of your activities or relationships present 
the possibility or probability of a conflict of interest if you are appointed?(Does 
not automatically disqualify but may need to be disclosed) 

     

19. LOCAL REFERENCES: Please provide the names and contact information for 
references (Brewster residents preferred): 

a. Name:       
Address:       
Phone:       
Email:       
Relationship to you:       
 

b. Name:       
Address:       
Phone:       
Email:       
Relationship to you:       

Doc ID: fc1e0b7140b622985c36abf9b734bd7db3607883



FINAL Select Bd Appt Policy; version Oct. 28 

20. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. Please add any additional information you’d like. 
      

21. SIGNATURE. By signing below, you state that you understand and agree. 
 My completion of this form does not guarantee my appointment and my 

application will be kept on file for two (2) years.  
 If appointed to a position, I will be considered a Municipal Employee under MGL

Ch. 268A and will be subject to: 
 Massachusetts Conflict of Interest Law, MGL Ch. 268A; 
 Massachusetts Financial Disclosure Law, MGL Ch. 268B; 
 Massachusetts Open Meeting Law, MGL Ch. 30A, Sections 18-25, and the 

implementing regulations, 940 CMR 29.00; 
 Massachusetts Public Records Law, MGL Ch. 66, and the implementing 

regulations, 950 CMR 32.00; 
 Massachusetts Campaign Finance Law, MGL Ch. 55; and 
 Brewster Charter, when in force, and Town bylaws, and all other applicable

federal, state, and local laws or regulations. 
 If appointed, I must be sworn in by the Town Clerk before serving, and I will 

complete State Conflict of Interest training after appointment, as well as any
other certifications required by law.  

 When submitted, I understand that this form becomes a public document.  

Signature:            Date:       

Doc ID: fc1e0b7140b622985c36abf9b734bd7db3607883



KIMBERLEY CROCKER PEARSON

| Brewster, Massachusetts 02631

Experienced environmental and health professional seeking a position at the intersection of conservation science and
policy-making. Recently earned an M.S. in Environmental Science and Policy in addition to prior training and work in
occupational and environmental medicine. Extensive experience in teamwork, leadership, and communication strategies,
research and data analysis, policy development and implementation in both the public and private sectors.

SKILLS Policy Development and Policy Briefing Clinical Medicine Field Research Laboratory Research

Team Leadership Media Relations Crisis Communication Personnel Management Budget Development

Curriculum Development Non-Profit Development GIS Stata SCUBA Animal Handling

EDUCATION AND TRAINING
Johns Hopkins University Baltimore, MD
Master of Science Environmental Science and Policy, May 2020
Thesis: “Can Medical Science Teach Conservation Science to Become More Effective?”
https://jscholarship.library.jhu.edu/handle/1774.2/62822

Massachusetts Poison Control Center, Boston Children's Hospital, Boston, MA
Fellow, Medical Toxicology 1993-1998

Harvard University School of Public Health, Boston, MA
Master of Public Health, May, 1991

Harvard University School of Public Health, Boston, MA
Occupational and Environmental Medicine Residency and Clinical Research Fellowship, July 1990-June 1992
Chief Resident July 1991-June 1992
Awarded Occupational Physician Scholarship , American College of Occupational and Environmental Medicine;
ATSDR Clinical Fellowship Program Grant in Environmental Medicine: Research Project: “A survey of non-cancer health effects in a
community whose drinking water was contaminated by chlorinated hydrocarbons, particularly tetrachloroethylene.”

Brigham and Women’s Hospital, Boston, MA
Internship and Residency, Internal Medicine June 1987-June 1990

Boston University School of Medicine, Boston, MA
Doctor of Medicine, Magna Cum Laude, May, 1987;
Awarded Alpha Omega Alpha Honor Medical Society; American Medical Women’s Association Scholarship

University of California, Los Angeles, CA
Master of Science in Geochemistry, May 1984
Thesis: “Stable isotopic investigations of early development in extant and fossil chambered cephalopods I. Oxygen isotopic
composition of eggwater and carbon isotopic composition of siphuncle organic matter in Nautilus”

Wellesley College, Wellesley, MA
Bachelor of Arts with Honors in Geology, May, 1980
Thesis: “A Determination of the Physical Parameters of the Paleoenvironment of an Upper Devonian Fish Fossil Suite from the Catskill
Formation, Northeastern Pennsylvania”
Awarded Sigma Xi Scientific Research Honor Society

https://jscholarship.library.jhu.edu/handle/1774.2/62822


PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
Board of Health, Brewster, MA
Member 2021 - present

Natural Resources Advisory Commission, Brewster, MA
Chair 2021- present
● Advise Select Board and Department of Natural Resources on the sustainable use of natural resources.
● Direct implementation of Coastal Resource Management plan

Stellwagen Bank Advisory Council, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, USA
Council Member, Conservation 2020- present
● Advise Sanctuary Superintendent regarding conservation issues relevant to the implementation of the sanctuary management plan.
● Assist in development of the sanctuary management plan.

Kirov Academy, Washington, DC
Chair, Science Department 2006-2009
● Designed and implemented science curriculum for Middle and High School students at independent school in Washington, DC.

Included curriculum for English language learners.
● Taught 9-12 grade students Chemistry, Biology, Physics and seminar: Science for Citizenship.

London School of Hygiene and Tropical Medicine, London, UK
Visiting Lecturer 2004-2005
● Designed and taught International Environmental Health Seminar for graduate students

Bureau of Environmental Health Assessment (BEHA), Massachusetts Department of Public Health, Boston, MA
Physician Consultant, 2000-2004
● Responded to citizen concerns about disease excesses (“clusters”) with a multidisciplinary team including toxicologists and risk

communication professionals.
● Reviewed national/international criteria documents on physical and chemical hazards and developed policy for implementation of

their recommendations at state level.
● Represented BEHA at public meetings as a medical expert; spoke to professional and lay audiences on environmental health

hazards and responded to their concerns
● Advised the Bureau Chief on environmental medicine issues
● Reviewed cancer registry and other sentinel health data to evaluate the need for focused environmental health investigations

Private Consulting, Boston, MA
2001-2004
● Consulted with major teaching hospital regarding workplace exposures; developed and piloted a “Collaborative Practice Model”

for working with management and labor representatives to achieve common health and safety goals. The model succeeded in
minimizing adversarial feelings in the stakeholders and set the stage for an ongoing process of working together on health and
safety goals.

● Provided expert testimony for both plaintiff and defendant attorneys in the area of exposure assessment and causation of adverse
health effects.

● Designed and implemented an exposure control and response program for the regional American Red Cross employees processing
blood and blood products.

Logan International Health Center, Logan Airport Boston, Massachusetts
Medical Director 1999-2001
● Supervised all patient care activities at the Center; managed the clinical laboratory, including a forensic drug testing facility, travel

health program, maritime health program.
● Provided consultative services for the Central Artery Tunnel Project (“Big Dig”) construction contractors, particularly dealing

with use of chemicals in enclosed spaces and injury prevention in heavy construction. Performed safety inspections of worksites.
● Managed 50 employees, developed and tracked the Center’s budget, worked with marketing to develop new health service

product lines to meet market demands, prepared statistical and budgetary reports and presented them to corporate administration.



Morton Hospital and Medical Center Taunton, Massachusetts
Associate Medical Director, Occupational Health Service 1997-1999
● Provided Medical care for work-related injuries and illnesses
● Performed worksite walkthroughs evaluating exposures and other risks to employees and developing recommendations for

improving worker safety

Massachusetts Poison Center, Children’s Hospital, Boston, Massachusetts
Poison Center Consultant 1998-2000
● Performed inpatient and outpatient toxicology consultations on environmental and industrial toxic exposures.

Brigham and Women’s Hospital, Boston, Massachusetts
Occupational Health Physician; Director, Employee Health 1994-1996
● Provided clinical evaluations for employees with symptoms of chemical exposure; developed treatment protocols for hospital staff

exposed to chemicals in the various areas of the hospital; designed and conducted safety training related to exposures in the
hospital environment.

● Responded on behalf of the hospital to media inquiries, appeared on the US public television science production “NOVA.”
● Represented the hospital on a union-management committee developed to address health and safety issues at the hospital
● Advised hospital president on occupational and environmental health and safety concerns.

Brigham and Women’s Hospital, Boston, Massachusetts
Staff Physician, Emergency Department 1990-1994
● Provided acute care to medical and trauma patients and supervised the house staff, nursing staff and support personnel.
● Chaired the Hospital Disaster Committee; developed and implemented internal and external disaster response plans for the facility

Department of Surgery, Boston University School of Medicine, Boston, MA
Research Assistant 1984-1985
● Handled and prepared multiple mammalian species for surgical research; assisted with surgeries.

Department of Earth and Space Sciences, University of California, Los Angeles
Graduate Research Assistant, Geochemistry 1980-1983
● Performed stable isotope analysis, mass spectroscopy, geologic and paleontologic field work

Carr Research, Inc., Wellesley, Massachusetts
Research Assistant 1979
● Performed water quality assessment of ponds and streams including biological and hydrological field and laboratory work.

New England Aquarium Boston, MA
Curatorial Assistant 1977-1979
● Cared for marine mammals in captivity; participated in marine mammal rescue and rehabilitation. collected biological and

behavioral data for research studies.

PUBLICATIONS

Original Reports:
Pearson, KC “Will Culling the Northwest Atlantic Gray Seal Population, Halichoerus grypus (Fabricius, 1791)
(Carnivora: Phocidae) on Cape Cod, Massachusetts, USA Reduce the Risk of Human-White Shark Encounters?” Life: The
Excitement of Biology 2018;6(3):75-107. https://blaypublishers.files.wordpress.com/2019/05/pearson-leb63.pdf

Brotschi, EA, Crocker, KC, Gianitsos, A, Williams, LF, Jr. Low extracellular Ca+2 products agonist-specific alterations in
gallbladder contractility. Gastroenterology 1986; 88(5); 1336.

Crocker, KC, DeNiro, MJ, Ward, PD. Stable isotopic investigations of early development in extant and fossil chambered
cephalopods 1. Oxygen isotopic composition of eggwater and carbon isotopic composition of siphuncle organic matter in
Nautilus. Geochemica et Cosmochemica Acta 1985; 49: 2527-2532.

https://blaypublishers.files.wordpress.com/2019/05/pearson-leb63.pdf


Abstracts
Pearson, KC. Sensitization to UV-curable acrylates: A case report and review of the literature. North American Congress
of Clinical Toxicology Annual Meeting. In: J Tox Clin Tox 2002: 40(5): 192.

Pearson, K, Woolf, A. Two cases of self-poisoning with lead in patients with psychiatric illness. North American
Congress of Clinical Toxicology Annual Meeting. In: J Tox Clin Tox 1998; 36(5): 494.

Woolf, A, Pearson, K. Presence of diethylene glycol in commercial polyethylene glycol (PEG) solutions. North
American Congress of Clinical Toxicology Annual Meeting. In: J Tox Clin Tox 1995; 33(5): 490.

Du Buske, M, Babakhin, AA, Cicslewicz, G, Nolte, H, Skov, P, Zakirova, I, Pearson, K, Sheffer, AL. Comparison of
Pharmacia CAP and whole blood leukocyte histamine release in the detection of sensitivity to latex. American Academy
of Allergy, Asthma and Immunology Annual Meeting. 1996.

Anderson, G, Li, T, Malki, I, Patel, A, Alem, M, Babakhin, AA, Cieslewicz, G, Zakirova, I, Nolte, R, Pearson, K,
Scheffer, AL, and Du Buske, LM. Assessment by Hycor RAST and Pharmacia CAP of cross sensitization to banana and
avocado among latex sensitive hospital employees. American Academy of Allergy, Asthma and Immunology Annual
Meeting. 1996

Texts
“Chapter 75: Chlorinated Hydrocarbons” in Haddad, Winchester and Shannon. Clinical Management of Poisonings. 3rd
Edition. WB Saunders, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. 1998 pp 931-939.



Archived: Tuesday, July 18, 2023 4:34:53 PM
From: William Grafton 
Sent: Thursday, July 13, 2023 5:56:18 PM
To: Erika Mawn 
Cc: Kim Pearson Mike Tobin Bruce Evans 
Subject: Approved Conservation Commission Nomination for the Brewster Water Quality Review Committee
Importance: Normal
Sensitivity: None
Attachments:
May 23, 2023 Agenda posted.pdf; 2023 06 27 - June 27, 2023 Agenda _ UPDATED Format.pdf;

Erika, good day.  Sorry for the delayed response on the subject.  Below is an explanation of the Commission’s review and consideration of the role.
 

1. 1. Commissioner Bruce Evans having expressed reservations during the May 23, 2023 Commission Public Meeting about taking on the Conservation Commission liaison role for
the Brewster Water Quality Review Committee owing to his commitments to CPC and Open Space as well steered the Commission to consider another candidate.  See attached
and excerpt below.

2. 2. Pursuant to the Commission’s direction during the May 23, 2023 Commission Public Meeting, I spoke to Commissioner Kim Pearson who advised that she would be willing to
serve.  As such, the Commission discussed the subject during the June 27, 2023 Commission public meeting and unanimously approved Commissioner Pearson as the
Commission’s candidate for the Brewster Water Quality Review Committee.  See attached agenda and below for Item 6a.

 

mailto:wgrafton@brewster-ma.gov
mailto:emawn@brewster-ma.gov
mailto:kimberley.crocker.pearson@gmail.com
mailto:842tobin@comcast.net
mailto:nanumetbruce@gmail.com



 


 
 
 
 


Town of Brewster  
Conservation Commission 


1657 Main St., Brewster, MA 02631 
conservation@brewster-ma.gov 


(508) 896-4546 
 


  CONSERVATION COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 
2198 Main Street 


May 23, 2023 at 6:00 PM 
 


This meeting will be conducted in person at the time and location identified above.  This means that at least 
a quorum of the members of the public body will attend the meeting in person and members of the 
public are welcome to attend in person as well.  As a courtesy only, access to the meeting is also being 
provided via remote means in accordance with applicable law.  Please note that while an option for 
remote attendance and/or participation is being provided as a courtesy to the public, the 
meeting/hearing will not be suspended or terminated if technological problems interrupt the virtual 
broadcast or affect remote attendance or participation, unless otherwise required by law. Members of the 
public with particular interest in any specific item on this agenda, which includes an applicant and its 
representatives, should make plans for in-person vs. virtual attendance accordingly.   
 
Members of the public who wish to access the meeting may do so in the following manner:   
Phone: Call (929) 436-2866 or (301) 715-8592.  Webinar ID: 817 0484 9610 Passcode: 565669 
To request to speak: Press *9 and wait to be recognized. 
ZoomWebinar: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81704849610?pwd=d2VlNm5LcnU2TnBKWExMVEJFUUduQT09  
Passcode: 565669 
To request to speak: Tap Zoom “Raise Hand”, then wait to be recognized. 
 
When required by law or allowed by the Chair, persons wishing to provide public comment or otherwise 
participate in the meeting, may do so by accessing the meeting remotely, as noted above. 
Additionally, the meeting will be broadcast live, in real time, via Live broadcast (Brewster Government TV 
Channel 18), Livestream (livestream.brewster-ma.gov), or Video recording (tv.brewster-ma.gov). 
 


 
Conservation  
Commission 


 
Michael Tobin 
Chairman 
 
Casey Chatelain 
Vice Chair Person 
 
Commissioners 
Bruce Evans 
Gary Kaser 
Kimberley Crocker 
Pearson 
Ron Slowek 
Steve McKenna 


 
Staff 
Chris Miller, 
Natural Resources 
Director 
 
Bill Grafton, 
Conservation 
Administrator 
 
Andreana Sideris, 
Senior Department 
Assistant 
 
 
 


 


1. Call to Order 
2. Declaration of a Quorum 
3. Meeting Participation Statement 
4. Recording Statement 
5. Public Comment / Citizens’ Forum 


 
6. Discussion 


a. Duration of bonds specified in Order of Condition Special Conditions – Bill Grafton 
b. Surveyed plans required for all NOIs unless the Commission exempts - Bill Grafton 
c. New NOI request for reconstruction of a ramp to provide adequate handicapped 


public access to the waterfront at Linnell Town Landing. Request for exemption of 
surveyed plan – Chris Miller & Bill Grafton 


d. Scientific study request at Freemans Pond/Paines Creek – Study involves taking 
tissue samples of smooth cordgrass and observational data on plant height, 
community composition, and elevation – Katherine Sperry 


e. Reappointment of Bruce Evans to the Water Quality Review Committee – Mike 
Tobin 


 
7. Request for Determination of Applicability 


a. None. 
 


8. Notices of Intent, Request for Amended Order of Conditions & Abbreviated Notice of 
Resource Area Delineation 


a. 216 Mitchell Lane, SE9-1949. 115-49 (11-1-5). Continued Public Hearing. Stephen 
and Sarah Barkhuff propose the construction of a stairway and a foot path as well as 







 


 
 
 
 
 
 


vegetation management and vista pruning within land subject to coastal storm 
flowage, riverfront, isolated vegetated wetland, and buffer zone to bordering 
vegetated wetland, isolated vegetated wetland, land subject to coastal storm 
flowage, inland bank, and salt marsh. 


b. 56 Underpass Road, SE9-1940. 78-116 (26-6) Continued Public Hearing. Brewster 
Veterinary Hospital proposes to remodel and expand the existing veterinary 
hospital and parking area, install stormwater improvements and restore native 
vegetation within 50 and 100 feet of inland wetlands. 


 
9. Request for Certificate of Compliance 


a. 290 Foster Road, SE9-1790. 79-26 (6-9). William and Lynn Kargman, vegetation 
management and vista pruning. 


b. 46 Main Street, SE9-1887. 6-10 (21-43). Donald Poole and Dawn Sternlieb, 
construction of an addition. 


 
10. Request for Extension to Order of Conditions 


a. 347 Point of Rocks Road, SE9-1814. 69-99 (6-6). Raymond and Jeanne Sullivan, 
coastal stabilization.  
 


11. Show Cause 
a. 2628 Main Street, 78-14 (15-113-2).  Continued - Brown.  Unpermitted cutting and 


clearing of vegetation within 25 feet of inland wetlands as well as the placement of 
fill on and within 100 feet of inland wetlands. 
 


12. Request for Minor Change to Plan 
a. 120 Run Hill, SE9-1944. 35-34 (36-12-5). Kenneth & Amy Rubin, relocation of 4x6 


posts due to water level of Lower Mill Pond. 
b. 2070 Route 28, SE9-1943. 149-1 (53-28). Pleasant Bay Community Boating, proposed 


footpath alternatives. 
c. Mariners Court, SE9-1864. 90-160 (14-1-19). Ocean Edge 1 and Corcoran Jennison 


Management, pond management/man-made freshwater pond. 
 


13. Request for Administrative Review 
a. None. 


 
14. Stormwater Permit Application under Code of the Town of Brewster, Chapter 272 


Stormwater Management Bylaw 
a. None. 


 
15. Report of the Natural Resources Director  
16. Report of the Conservation Administrator    
17. Matters Not Reasonably Anticipated by the Conservation Commission Chairman 
18. Next Meeting: June 13, 2023 


 
19. Adjournment 
 


Date Posted: Date Revised: Received by Town Clerk: 
5/19/2023      








 


Town of Brewster Conservation Commission 
1657 Main St., Brewster, MA 02631 


(508) 896-4546 
 


  CONSERVATION COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 
2198 Main Street 


June 27, 2023 at 6:00 PM 
 


This meeting will be conducted in person at the time and location identified above.  This means that at least a quorum 


of the members of the public body will attend the meeting in person and members of the public are welcome to attend 


in person as well.  As a courtesy only, access to the meeting is also being provided via remote means in 


accordance with applicable law.  Please note that while an option for remote attendance and/or participation is 


being provided as a courtesy to the public, the meeting/hearing will not be suspended or terminated if 


technological problems interrupt the virtual broadcast or affect remote attendance or participation, unless 


otherwise required by law. Members of the public with particular interest in any specific item on this agenda, which 


includes an applicant and its representatives, should make plans for in-person vs. virtual attendance accordingly. 
 


Members of the public who wish to access the meeting may do so in the following manner: 
 


Phone: Call (929) 436-2866 or (301) 715-8592.  Webinar ID: 817 0484 9610 Passcode: 565669 


To request to speak: Press *9 and wait to be recognized. 


ZoomWebinar: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81704849610?pwd=d2VlNm5LcnU2TnBKWExMVEJFUUduQT09 


Passcode: 565669 


To request to speak: Tap Zoom “Raise Hand”, then wait to be recognized. 
 


When required by law or allowed by the Chair, persons wishing to provide public comment or otherwise participate in 


the meeting, may do so by accessing the meeting remotely, as noted above. Additionally, the meeting will be broadcast 


live, in real time, via Live broadcast (Brewster Government TV Channel 18), Livestream (livestream.brewster-ma.gov), 


or Video recording (tv.brewster-ma.gov). 


 
Please note that the Conservation Commission may take official action, including votes, on any item on this agenda. 


 


1. Call to Order 
2. Declaration of a Quorum 
3. Meeting Participation Statement 
4. Recording Statement: As required by the Open Meeting Law we are informing you that the Town will be video 


and audio taping as well as broadcasting this public meeting.  In addition, if anyone else intends to either video or audio 
tape this meeting they are required to inform the chair. 


5. Public Announcements and Comment: Members of the public may address the Conservation 


Commission on matters not on the meeting’s agenda for a maximum of 3-5 minutes at the Chair’s discretion. The 
Conservation Commissione will not reply to statements made or answer questions raised during public comment 
but may add items presented to a future agenda. 


 
6. Discussion 


a. Discussion to nominate Kim Pearson as the Conservation Liaison to the Water 
Quality Review Committee – Mike Tobin 


b. Mass Dept of Agricultural Resources (MDAR) reporting requirements for 
pesticide applicators- Kim Pearson 


 
7. Request for Determination of Applicability 


a. 42 Konohassett Cartway, 72-25 (41-11) RDA #23-05. Joseph Carty and Diana 
Pohly-Carty request a determination as to whether the area – buffer zone to 
bordering vegetated wetlands, inland bank and land under waterbody – and 
work depicted on the plan – removal of hazard trees, selective vegetative 
management of native shrubs, and optional native planting related to permit 
SE9-1483 – are subject to the Wetlands Protection Act Section 40 and jurisdiction 
of the BWP Bylaw Chapter 172. 


b. 202 Brook Trail Road, 51-109 (40-60) RDA #23-06. Janis Krauklis requests a 
determination as to whether the area – buffer zone to bordering vegetated 
wetland – and work depicted on the plan – remove two storm damaged red 
maple trees and replace with red maple saplings – are subject to the Wetlands 
Protection Act Section 40 and jurisdiction of the BWP Bylaw Chapter 172. 


 


CONSERVATION 
COMMISSION 
 
Michael Tobin 
Chair 
 
Casey Chatelain 
Vice Chair 
 
Commissioners 
Bruce Evans 
Gary Kaser 
Kimberley 
Crocker Pearson 
Ron Slowek 
Steve McKenna 
 
Staff 
Chris Miller, 
Natural Resources 
Director 
 
Bill Grafton, 
Conservation 
Administrator 
 
Andreana Sideris, 
Senior 
Department 
Assistant 
 
 
 
 
 
 



https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81704849610?pwd=d2VlNm5LcnU2TnBKWExMVEJFUUduQT09

http://www.livestream.brewster-ma.gov/

http://www.tv.brewster-ma.gov/





 
8. Notices of Intent, Request for Amended Order of Conditions & Abbreviated Notice of 


Resource Area Delineation 
a. 104 Canoe Pond Drive, 24-60 (36-230). Continued Public Hearing. Hongying Xie 


Revocable Trust-2012 proposes to install a seasonal aluminum dock, as well as 
After-the-Fact approval of an existing kayak rack within inland bank, bordering 
vegetated wetland, land under waterbodies and waterways, and bordering land 
subject to flooding and buffer zone to bordering vegetated wetlands. 


b. 660 Villages Drive, 75-13 (33-95-2). Continued Public Hearing. Ocean Edge 
Resort LLC proposes vegetation management at the 8th, 9th, and 14th holes 
within buffer zones to inland banks, bordering vegetated wetlands and land 
under waterbodies and waterways. 


c. 216 Mitchell Lane, SE9-1949. 115-49 (11-1-5). Continued Public Hearing. Stephen 
and Sarah Barkhuff propose the construction of a stairway and a foot path as 
well as vegetation management and vista pruning within land subject to coastal 
storm flowage, riverfront, isolated vegetated wetland, and buffer zone to 
bordering vegetated wetland, isolated vegetated wetland, land subject to coastal 
storm flowage, inland bank, and salt marsh. 


 
9. Request for Certificate of Compliance 


a. 151 Owl Pond Road, SE9-1832 137-11 (29/18-11) - HoYin Yuen 
 


10. Request for Extension to Order of Conditions 
a. 73 Brier Lane, SE9-1876 48-7 (23/10-2) – John & Kathleen Galiney 
b. 69 Brier Lane, SE9-1875 48-90- (23/10-2) – J B and K J Galiney LTrust 


 
11. Show Cause 


a. 2628 Main Street, 78-14 (15-113-2).  Continued - Brown.  Unpermitted cutting and 
clearing of vegetation within 25 feet of inland wetlands as well as the placement 
of fill on and within 100 feet of inland wetlands. 


 
12. Request for Minor Change to Plan 


a. 23 Dune Road, 79-30 (6-13) 23 Dune Road LLC requests to reintroduce a patio on 
the northeast side of the dwelling located within 100 feet of the resource area. 


 
13. Request for Administrative Review 


a. 67 Tupelo Drive, 74-13 (34-76-67).  New.  Philip & Barbara Souza request to 
remove 1 tree from the buffer zone to Sheep Pond. 


 
14. Stormwater Permit Application under Code of the Town of Brewster, Chapter 272 


Stormwater Management Bylaw 
a. None. 


 
15. Report of the Natural Resources Director  
16. Report of the Conservation Administrator    
17. Matters Not Reasonably Anticipated by the Conservation Commission Chairman 
18. Questions from the Media 
19. Next Meetings: July 11, 2023 & July 25, 2023 
20. Adjournment 


 


Date Posted: Date Revised: Received by Town Clerk: 


6/22/2023  







 
3. 3. Commissioner Evans did receive the Select Board’s ratification vote approving him as the Commission’s liaison but he does not intent to intend to get sworn it leaving the

position open for Commissioner Pearson.
 
I hope that you find this satisfactory and will take the necessary steps for Commissioner Pearson to be presented to the Select Board for review and their determination.
 
Thank you and have a nice day.
 
Respectfully,
 
Bill Grafton
Brewster Conservation Administrator
1657 Main Street
Brewster, MA 02631
Phone (508) 896-4546 ext. 4242
 
Brewster Town Offices are open to the public Monday through Thursday from 8:30 to 4:00pm, and by appointment on Fridays. For the latest updates on Town services, please visit
www.brewster-ma.gov
 

http://www.brewster-ma.gov/


Archived: Tuesday, July 18, 2023 4:46:47 PM
From: Michael Gradone 
Sent: Thursday, June 29, 2023 8:01:13 PM
To: Erika Mawn 
Cc: Donna Kalinick 
Subject: PPPC liaison 
Importance: Normal
Sensitivity: None

Hello,
 
The Rec Commission voted Chris Ellis as the new PPPC liaison at our meeting tonight. 
 
Mike Gradone
Town of Brewster, Recreation Director
www.brewsterrecreation.com
508-896-9430
 
The Brewster Recreation office will be open to the public Monday through Friday from 8am to 4pm.  For the latest updates on
Town services, please visit www.brewster-ma.gov.
 

mailto:mgradone@brewster-ma.gov
mailto:emawn@brewster-ma.gov
mailto:dkalinick@brewster-ma.gov
http://www.brewster-ma.gov/






TOWN OF BREWSTER

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
1657 MAIN STREET

BREWSTER, MA 02631 
PHONE: (508) 896-4546 

SHELLFISH@BREWSTER-MA.GOV

WWW.BREWSTER-MA.GOV

Selectboard,              7/21/23 

The Natural Resources is facilitating demolition of the deteriorating two-bay garage at 359 Main Street.  
The project falls within the jurisdiction of the Building Department.  On behalf of the Brewster Natural 
Resources, I do herby request the waiver of fees for the following applications: 

Thank you, 

David A. Johnson 
Brewster Natural Resources 





TOWN OF BREWSTER
2298 MAIN STREET

BREWSTER, MA 02631 
PHONE: (508) 896-9430 

WWW.BREWSTERRECREATION.COM

WWW.TOWN.BREWSTER.MA.US

OFFICE OF

RECREATION COMMISSION

7/20/2023 

To whom it may concern, 

Brewster Recreation is sponsoring an event (Family Dance Party) on 
Thursday, July 27th at the Old Cape Cod Sea Camps property.  We have 
applied for a One Day Entertainment Application.  We would like to ask 
for a fee waiver for the $35 fee.  Please let me know if this is something 
you would consider. 

Sincerely, 

Brewster Recreation Dept. 

























MRB
Alzheimer’s Family Support Center

MRB
Alzheimer’s Family Support Center

MRB
gazebo & adjacent field 

MRB
8/19/23

MRB
2 pm                                7 pm 

MRB
Staff picnic

MRB
socializing

MRB
X

MRB
X

MRB
45-5545397

MRB
30

MRB
30

MRB
no

MRB
Melanie Braverman 

MRB
2095 Main St, Brewster, MA, 02631 



 

2095 Main Street • Brewster, MA • 02631 
(508) 896-5170 • info@capecodalz.org 

www.alfamilysupport.org 

Brewster Selectboard 
2198 Main Street 
Brewster, MA  02631 
 
 
July 19, 2023 
 
Dear Board Members, 
 
I am writing to request a fee waiver for use of the gazebo at Drummer Boy Park on Saturday, 
August 19, from 2 pm until 7 pm. We will be using the park to host a staff picnic for the 
Alzheimer’s Family Support Center (AFSC). 
 
The AFSC, which now maintains two offices in Brewster, provides an array of no-cost services 
for individuals, families, and community members who are dealing with Alzheimer’s or other 
dementia-related diseases. Although our offices are located in Brewster, we provide our 
services to people in every town on the Cape.   
 
As a service-driven organization, our team works tirelessly on behalf of the people we serve; 
this picnic at Drummer Boy Park will be a way for us to thank them for the work they do. A fee 
waiver from the town would help make it possible to do a little more for them than we might 
otherwise be able to do. 
 
Many thanks in advance for your consideration, 
 
 
Melanie Braverman 
Co-founder, Cultural Director 
Alzheimer’s Family Support Center  

mailto:info@capecodalz.org














Archived: Thursday, July 20, 2023 1:32:29 PM
From: Amanda Bebrin 
Mail received time: Thu, 15 Jun 2023 15:25:16
Sent: Thursday, June 15, 2023 11:25:18 AM
To: Peter Lombardi 
Subject: Fwd: Sea Camps Dining Hall Camper Memorabilia
Importance: Normal
Sensitivity: None
Attachments:
image0.jpeg; image1.jpeg; image2.jpeg; image3.jpeg;

See below for the cabin artwork one of our residents was interested in buying.

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Susan banks <
Date: Wed, Jun 7, 2023 at 4:44 'a0PM
Subject: Re: Sea Camps Dining Hall Camper Memorabilia
To: Amanda Bebrin < >

Thank you, Amanda, for the follow up and information. 

Enclosed are photos (poor ones but front and back of each).  I believe the tags are 599 and 582. 

image0.jpeg
image1.jpeg image2.jpeg image3.jpeg

SM Banks

On Jun 7, 2023, at 4:11 PM, Amanda Bebrin < > wrote:

Susan,
We spoke at the Sea Camps forum on 5/20 and you were telling me about how your kids went to
the camp and helped make some of the artwork in the rafters!
I spoke with our Town Manager and the process would be for the Select Board to declare those
items "surplus" and then the Town would be able to sell them to you. 
I took down your email information but not which pieces were the ones your children did: can you
describe them for me and I'll relay the information?

Thank you,
Amanda 
BPPC, Chair

-- 
Amanda Bebrin

mailto:abebrin401@gmail.com
mailto:plombardi@brewster-ma.gov






Town of Brewster
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 
www.brewster-ma.gov 

Memo 

To: Brewster Select Board 
From: Erika Mawn, Executive Assistant 
Date: July 20, 2023 
Re: Appointments to the Drummer Boy Park Advisory Committee  

At the March 2023 Special Town Meeting, it was voted to refer the 2021 Master Plan to a newly 

reconstituted committee to be appointed by the Select Board in consultation with the 

Moderator.  Consistent with the Select Board’s vote this spring on a revised committee charge, 

the Drummer Boy Park Advisory Committee consists of seven members, including one Natural 

Resources Advisory Committee member, one Council on Aging member, one Recreation 

Commission member, and four members from the community at-large.  

Following the Select Board’s Policy for Appointments to Town Committees, Dave Whitney, as 

Select Board liaison, and Town Moderator Charlie Sumner conducted application screening and 

interviews before submitting their recommendation for appointment to the Drummer Boy Park 

Advisory Committee.  The applicants screening form and application materials were included in 

the For Your Information packet of the Select Board meeting on July 10, 2023.  The term of the 

appointments will be through May 2024. 

The recommended applicants for the at-large seats are: 

 Jillian Douglass 

 Allyson Felix 

 Devin McGuire 

 Katharine Scott 

The following members have been recommended to serve their respective committees as 

voting members of the Drummer Boy Park Advisory Committee: 

 Patricia Hughes – Natural Resources Advisory Committee 

 Jay Green – Council on Aging Board 

 Chris Ellis - Recreation Commission 

In addition, Ray Hebert will represent the Cape Cod Museum of Natural History, Bill Roberts will 

represent the Brewster Historical Society and Hal Minis will represent Brewster Conservation 

Trust.   

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 



 

 

Town of Brewster 
2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631-1898 
Phone: (508) 896-3701 

townmanager@brewster-ma.gov 

 
     

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Select Board 
FROM: Peter Lombardi, Town Manager 
RE: Proposed Charge for Reconstituted Drummer Boy Park Advisory 

Committee 
DATE: March 30, 2023 

 
In Summer 2020, the Town received $33,000 in state grant funds through the 
Community Compact best practice program to develop an updated Master Plan for 
Drummer Boy Park.  Originally purchased by the Town in 1988, the first Master Plan for 
Drummer Boy Park was adopted by Town Meeting in 1995 and has informed the Town’s 
overall approach to the property since.   
 
With these grant funds, the Town hired a consultant, CDM Smith Inc., to review the 
park’s condition and uses, help develop plans and designs for expanded or alternative 
uses, estimate costs for such plans, and conduct public outreach regarding the park’s 
future.  To shepherd this important work, the Select Board formed an ad hoc Drummer 
Boy Park Advisory Committee charged with evaluating existing and potential future uses 
of the Drummer Boy Park property and developing an updated Master Plan to present 
to Town Meeting.  The committee was appointed in Fall 2020.  The seven (7) member 
committee was comprised of one (1) representative from the Recreation Commission, 
one (1) representative from the Council on Aging, one (1) representative from the 
Natural Resources Advisory Commission, and four (4) Brewster citizens at large. 

 
Given their proximity to the park and shared interest in its future use, representatives 
from the Brewster Historical Society, Brewster Conservation Trust, and Museum of 
Natural History were invited to attend and participate in the committee’s meetings on a 
regular basis.  The committee was supported by the Natural Resources Director, the 
Council on Aging Director, the Recreation Director, and the DPW Director.   
 
From December 2020 through June 2021, the committee met and developed a series of 
schematic concept plans that culminated in the presentation of a recommended plan to 
the Select Board in June 2021.   
 
 
 

Office of: 
Select Board 

Town Manager 
 
 
 



 

 

The goals of the plan were to: 
 Preserve the character of the park and enhance the views of the bay 
 Collaborate with the Brewster Historical Society and the Brewster Conservation 

Trust in preserving the character of the complex and enhancing its use 
 Plan for increased use and provide additional access to and throughout the park 
 Identify park use areas 

 
The plan identified two implementation phases.  The first focused on improving parking, 
pedestrian access, and stormwater infrastructure.  The second identified amenity 
upgrades to the playground, gazebo, and replacing the storage building (old gift shop 
structure) with a shade pavilion.  Recognizing that the Town was then in the early 
stages of planning for a potential elevated boardwalk to Wing Island from Drummer Boy 
Park via the adjacent Cedar Ridge Reserve property, that possibility was referenced in 
the plan. 
 
The plan was presented to and unanimously adopted by Town Meeting in November 
2021.  Following the Town Meeting vote, the Select Board disbanded the committee in 
December 2021.  In May 2022, Town Meeting appropriated $75,000 to advance design 
and permitting for Phase I improvements as outlined in the plan.  The Town hired 
Horsley Witten to help develop their design plans and assist with permitting.   
 
In parallel with these actions related to Drummer Boy Park improvements, the Town 
secured $50k in state grant funding to advance design and permitting for a new 
boardwalk to Wing Island and a $30k contribution from a then anonymous donor via 
the Brewster Conservation Trust.  Town Meeting approved $50k for this project in 
November 2021.  To ensure coordination between the two projects, Horsley Witten was 
hired to assist in these efforts as well.   
 
In August 2022, the Town hosted a public forum focused on conceptual plans for the 
Wing Island boardwalk.  Many residents expressed concerns about this proposal over 
the ensuing months.  At the same time, Horsley Witten developed conceptual plans for 
Phase I improvements to Drummer Boy Park, seeking to formalize parking, improve 
drainage, and provide better and safer pedestrian access.  The anticipated costs of this 
work were approximately $750k.  In November 2022, Town Meeting did not approve 
the $255k appropriation proposed by the Town for Phase I, in large part due to 
concerns about the connections between this work and the proposed boardwalk.  
Following that vote, all design work was suspended and no further action has been 
taken in advancing Drummer Boy Park Master Plan implementation.  The Town 
continues to maintain the property, including making repairs to the playground. 
 
In March 2023, a Special Town Meeting was convened to act on three citizens petitions.  
Article 3 originally sought to rescind the Drummer Boy Park Master Plan vote by Town 
Meeting of November 2021.  Ultimately, Town Meeting voted to refer the 2021 Master 
Plan to a newly reconstituted committee to be appointed by the Select Board in 



 

 

consultation with the Moderator who would then report back to Town Meeting in May 
2024.  Although this process will be led by this new committee, there is currently no 
funding in place to support their efforts, outside of Town staff time. 
 
For the Select Board’s consideration, I offer the following draft charge for the 
committee: 
 
PURPOSE:  The Drummer Boy Park (DBP) Advisory Committee will re-evaluate the 2021 
Drummer Boy Park Master Plan and will deliver a report to the May 2024 Annual Town 
Meeting.  This report may include an updated Master Plan, but any such plan shall not 
incorporate or include any new means of access to Wing Island.  The DBP Advisory 
Committee is an ad hoc committee.   
 
APPROACH:  The DBP Advisory Committee will review the overall goals and 
recommendations identified in the 2021 Master Plan and will determine whether any 
changes are appropriate.  This review process should consider other recent Town 
strategic planning documents, including but not limited to the Town’s recently updated 
Open Space and Recreation Plan.  It should also account for ongoing community input 
regarding potential future public uses of the Sea Camps properties.  The DBP Advisory 
Committee will conduct public outreach and solicit resident feedback in developing their 
report for Town Meeting.   
 
MEMBERSHIP:  The DBP Advisory Committee will consist of seven (7) members to be 
appointed by the Select Board in consultation with the Moderator and will include: one 
(1) Natural Resources Advisory Commission member; one (1) Council on Aging 
member; one (1) Recreation Commission member; and four (4) members from the 
community at-large. The Select Board will make appointments to seat the new 
committee as soon as is practicable.  The term of committee appointments will be 
through May 2024.  The Select Board will appoint a liaison to the DBP Advisory 
Committee.  The DBP Advisory Committee will be supported by the Natural Resources 
Director, COA Director, Recreation Director, DPW Director, and/or Town Administration 
as necessary.  Non-voting representatives from the Brewster Historical Society, 
Brewster Conservation Trust, and Museum of Natural History will be invited to attend 
and participate as appropriate. 
 
Once the Select Board approves the committee’s updated charge, we will then post an 
announcement on the homepage of the Town website and on the Town’s social media 
platforms soliciting letters of interest from residents interested in serving.  The Select 
Board will then follow their standard committee appointment policy; however, in this 
instance, that process will also include the Moderator in the initial screening phase.  
Consistent with that policy, recommended candidates will be included in the FYI section 
of a future Select Board packet 2 weeks in advance of formal appointment. 



FINAL Select Bd Appt Policy; version Oct. 28 

Appendix B 

Town of Brewster 
SELECT BOARD COMMITTEE APPOINTMENT APPLICATION 

APPLICANT DIRECTIONS: 
 Thank you for your interest in serving Brewster. The Town aims to match applicants 

with committee service best aligned to your skills and interests as well as the 
committee’s needs. 

 The Town may consider the information in this application, any supplemental 
information, and any other publicly available information. An appointment to any 
committee, board or commission is at the discretion of the Select Board. 

 Please complete this form online, or on paper, and submit a résumé if desired to 
Erika Mawn, Town Administrator’s Executive Assistant: 

o Email: EMawn@Brewster-MA.gov  
o Mail: Erika Mawn, 2198 Main St., Brewster, MA 02631, or 
o In person: Town Administrator’s Office or drop-box outside Town Hall. 

 After your application materials are received, you’ll be contacted regarding next 
steps. Vacancies will be filled by applicants deemed best qualified to serve in a 
particular capacity, which discretion lies solely with the appointing authority. 
Submitting this form does not guarantee appointment. 

1. Applicant name:  

2. Address: 

3. Phone Numbers: Home:                                                Cell: 

4. Email: 

5. This is an application for:    Full member status             Alternate status 

6. Are you a full-time Brewster resident?          Yes           No 

7. Years you’ve lived in Brewster: 

8. Are you registered to vote in Brewster?          Yes            No 

9. Committees you are interested in serving on in order of preference: 
a.   
b.   
c.   

NOTE: You may attach a résumé or CV instead of completing items 10-14. 

 

            

            

 

            

 

mailto:EMawn@Brewster-MA.gov


FINAL Select Bd Appt Policy; version Oct. 28 

10. EDUCATION. List schools attended, degrees/diplomas/certificates received, 
and date of completion. 

Name of School 
Degree/Diplomas 

Certificates 

Date of 
Completion 

   

   

   

 

11. OCCUPATION: ______________________________________________________  

         Active       Retired                              Not currently working 

 

12. EMPLOYMENT EXPERIENCE. List employers, job titles and dates of 
employment for at least previous 3 years. 

Name of Employer Job Title 
Dates of 

Employment 

   

   

   

   

   
 

13. GOVERNMENT POSITIONS. List any Town of Brewster or other government 
volunteer, elected, or appointed positions you now hold or have held. 

  
  
  
  

14. COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES. List all civic, non-profit, or other organizations that 
you belong to or have belonged to in the previous 5 years: 

a. Organizations and dates: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                  



15. GOALS: Please explain why you’d like to serve on a particular committee. 

 

 

16. EXPERIENCE & SKILLS: Please list any experience, achievements, skills, or 
interests you have that would assist you to serve effectively on the committee 
you wish to serve on. 

 
 

 
17. TOWN EMPLOYMENT: Are you or any member of your immediate family 

employed by or receiving financial consideration from the Town of Brewster? 

                Yes              No 

18. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. Do any of your activities or relationships present 
the possibility or probability of a conflict of interest if you are appointed?(Does 
not automatically disqualify but may need to be disclosed)         Yes           No 

19. LOCAL REFERENCES: Please provide the names and contact information for 
references (Brewster residents preferred): 

 

 

 

 

20. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. Please add any additional information you’d like. 

      

a. Name: 
Address: 
Phone: 
Email: 
Relationship to you: 

b. Name: 
Address: 
Phone: 
Email: 
Relationship to you: 

 

      

            



FINAL Select Bd Appt Policy; version Oct. 28 

20. SIGNATURE. By signing below, you state that you understand and agree. 
 My completion of this form does not guarantee my appointment and my 

application will be kept on file for two (2) years. 
 If appointed to a position, I will be considered a Municipal Employee under 

MGL Ch. 268A and will be subject to: 
 Massachusetts Conflict of Interest Law, MGL Ch. 268A; 
 Massachusetts Financial Disclosure Law, MGL Ch. 268B; 
 Massachusetts Open Meeting Law, MGL Ch. 30A, Sections 18-25, and the 

implementing regulations, 940 CMR 29.00; 
 Massachusetts Public Records Law, MGL Ch. 66, and the implementing 

regulations, 950 CMR 32.00; 
 Massachusetts Campaign Finance Law, MGL Ch. 55; and 
 Brewster Charter, when in force, and Town bylaws, and all other applicable 

federal, state, and local laws or regulations. 
 If appointed, I must be sworn in by the Town Clerk before serving, and I will 

complete State Conflict of Interest training after appointment, as well as 
any other certifications required by law. 

 When submitted, I understand that this form becomes a public document. 

 

Signature: Date:   



FINAL Select Bd Appt Policy; version Oct. 28 

 

Appendix C 
 

SELECT BOARD COMMITTEE APPLICATION SCREENING FORM 
 

Applicant Name           Requested Committee       
 

 
1. TOWN CLERK REVIEW 

a. Applicant is a registered Brewster voter:     Yes   No 
b. Date confirmed         

 
 

2. SELECT BOARD LIAISON RECOMMENDATION TO SELECT BOARD 
a. Select Board Liaison Applicant Interview: 

i. Interviewer name (Select Board Liaison):       
ii. Interview date:       

 
b. Select Board Liaison Consultation with Committee Chair: 

iii. Committee Chair name:        
iv. Consultation date:       
v. Did Committee Chair also interview applicant?  Yes  No 

 
c. Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted:  Yes  No        N/A 

 
d. Select Board Liaison Recommendation: 

i.  Recommend appointment. 
 

ii.  Recommend appointment to other committee that is a better fit for 
applicant qualifications. 
 

iii.  Recommend holding application for future opening.  
 

iv.  Not recommended.  
 
3. SELECT BOARD ACTION 

a. At a Select Board meeting held      , the Applicant was appointed to       
for a term ending       year term. 
 

4. NOTIFICATION OF APPOINTEE AND TOWN CLERK 
a. Date notification of appointment sent to appointee and Town Clerk:       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FINAL Select Bd Appt Policy; version Oct. 28 

Appendix B 

Town of Brewster 
SELECT BOARD COMMITTEE APPOINTMENT APPLICATION 

APPLICANT DIRECTIONS: 
 Thank you for your interest in serving Brewster. The Town aims to match applicants

with committee service best aligned to your skills and interests as well as the
committee’s needs.

 The Town may consider the information in this application, any supplemental
information, and any other publicly available information. An appointment to any
committee, board or commission is at the discretion of the Select Board.

 Please complete this form online, or on paper, and submit a résumé if desired to
Erika Mawn, Town Administrator’s Executive Assistant:

o Email: EMawn@Brewster-MA.gov
o Mail: Erika Mawn, 2198 Main St., Brewster, MA 02631, or
o In person: Town Administrator’s Office or drop-box outside Town Hall.

 After your application materials are received, you’ll be contacted regarding next
steps. Vacancies will be filled by applicants deemed best qualified to serve in a
particular capacity, which discretion lies solely with the appointing authority.
Submitting this form does not guarantee appointment.

______________________________________________________________________ 

1. Applicant name:

2. Address:

3. Phone Numbers:   Home: Cell: 

4. Email:

5. This is an application for:  Full member status  Alternate status 

6. Are you a full-time Brewster resident?  Yes  No 

7. Years you’ve lived in Brewster:

8. Are you registered to vote in Brewster?  Yes  No 

9. Committees you are interested in serving on in order of preference:
a.
b.
c.

NOTE: You may attach a résumé or CV instead of completing items 10-14. 

Doc ID: fc1e0b7140b622985c36abf9b734bd7db3607883

Devin McGuire

, Brewster

 

x

x

6

x

Drummer Boy Park Committee



FINAL Select Bd Appt Policy; version Oct. 28 

10. EDUCATION. List schools attended, degrees/diplomas/certificates received,
and date of completion.

11. OCCUPATION:  Active  Retired  Not currently working 

12. EMPLOYMENT EXPERIENCE. List employers, job titles and dates of
employment for at least previous 3 years.

13. GOVERNMENT POSITIONS. List any Town of Brewster or other government
volunteer, elected, or appointed positions you now hold or have held.

14. COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES. List all civic, non-profit, or other organizations that
you belong to or have belonged to in the previous 5 years:

a. Organizations and dates:

15. GOALS: Please explain why you’d like to serve on a particular committee.

16. EXPERIENCE & SKILLS: Please list any experience, achievements, skills, or
interests you have that would assist you to serve effectively on the committee
you wish to serve on.

17. TOWN EMPLOYMENT: Are you or any member of your immediate family
employed by or receiving financial consideration from the Town of Brewster?

18. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. Do any of your activities or relationships present
the possibility or probability of a conflict of interest if you are appointed?(Does
not automatically disqualify but may need to be disclosed)

19. LOCAL REFERENCES: Please provide the names and contact information for
references (Brewster residents preferred):

a. Name:
Address:
Phone:
Email:
Relationship to you:

b. Name:
Address:
Phone:
Email:
Relationship to you:

Doc ID: fc1e0b7140b622985c36abf9b734bd7db3607883

Lake Forest College, BA Communications

x

General Manager, Nauset Rental since 2016

Earthworm, Inc (environmental non profit) Board member since 2015

I am a resident of Brewster who believes that our civic engagement is very important. I am also a parent of a 4 year old and would like to help in the 
planning and future of Drummer Boy Park, where my family goes often. This committee seems to be a good place for me begin a more serious 
participation in civic engagement and for a topic that I feel passionately about - a special recreation area of our town that my family and I enjoy.

In my current profession, I run a local business overseeing several staff, operations, budgeting and strategic planning. I have a fairly comprehensive understanding of 
local initiatives and as an employer and resident, understand the challenges that are facing our local communities.  I was recently asked to participate advisory 
committee in my non profit board work to help with a large organizational transition and strategic planning. I'm also an active member in various rec activities  and feel 
strongly about access to recreation areas for our community. I believe I have many transferable skills to assist with the Drummer Boy Park planning. 

No

No

Amanda Bebrin
Brewster, MA

 

Friend / acquaintance through civic engagement

Casey Chatelain

Brewster MA

 
Friend



FINAL Select Bd Appt Policy; version Oct. 28 

20. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. Please add any additional information you’d like.

21. SIGNATURE. By signing below, you state that you understand and agree.
 My completion of this form does not guarantee my appointment and my

application will be kept on file for two (2) years.
 If appointed to a position, I will be considered a Municipal Employee under MGL

Ch. 268A and will be subject to:
 Massachusetts Conflict of Interest Law, MGL Ch. 268A;
 Massachusetts Financial Disclosure Law, MGL Ch. 268B;
 Massachusetts Open Meeting Law, MGL Ch. 30A, Sections 18-25, and the

implementing regulations, 940 CMR 29.00;
 Massachusetts Public Records Law, MGL Ch. 66, and the implementing

regulations, 950 CMR 32.00;
 Massachusetts Campaign Finance Law, MGL Ch. 55; and
 Brewster Charter, when in force, and Town bylaws, and all other applicable

federal, state, and local laws or regulations.
 If appointed, I must be sworn in by the Town Clerk before serving, and I will

complete State Conflict of Interest training after appointment, as well as any
other certifications required by law.

 When submitted, I understand that this form becomes a public document.

Signature: Date: 

Doc ID: fc1e0b7140b622985c36abf9b734bd7db3607883

4/26/23



FINAL Select Bd Appt Policy; version Oct. 28 

 

Appendix C 
 

SELECT BOARD COMMITTEE APPLICATION SCREENING FORM 
 

Applicant Name           Requested Committee       
 

 
1. TOWN CLERK REVIEW 

a. Applicant is a registered Brewster voter:     Yes   No 
b. Date confirmed         

 
 

2. SELECT BOARD LIAISON RECOMMENDATION TO SELECT BOARD 
a. Select Board Liaison Applicant Interview: 

i. Interviewer name (Select Board Liaison):       
ii. Interview date:       

 
b. Select Board Liaison Consultation with Committee Chair: 

iii. Committee Chair name:        
iv. Consultation date:       
v. Did Committee Chair also interview applicant?  Yes  No 

 
c. Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted:  Yes  No        N/A 

 
d. Select Board Liaison Recommendation: 

i.  Recommend appointment. 
 

ii.  Recommend appointment to other committee that is a better fit for 
applicant qualifications. 
 

iii.  Recommend holding application for future opening.  
 

iv.  Not recommended.  
 
3. SELECT BOARD ACTION 

a. At a Select Board meeting held      , the Applicant was appointed to       
for a term ending       year term. 
 

4. NOTIFICATION OF APPOINTEE AND TOWN CLERK 
a. Date notification of appointment sent to appointee and Town Clerk:       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FINAL Select Bd Appt Policy; version Oct. 28 

 

Appendix C 
 

SELECT BOARD COMMITTEE APPLICATION SCREENING FORM 
 

Applicant Name           Requested Committee       
 

 
1. TOWN CLERK REVIEW 

a. Applicant is a registered Brewster voter:     Yes   No 
b. Date confirmed         

 
 

2. SELECT BOARD LIAISON RECOMMENDATION TO SELECT BOARD 
a. Select Board Liaison Applicant Interview: 

i. Interviewer name (Select Board Liaison):       
ii. Interview date:       

 
b. Select Board Liaison Consultation with Committee Chair: 

iii. Committee Chair name:        
iv. Consultation date:       
v. Did Committee Chair also interview applicant?  Yes  No 

 
c. Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted:  Yes  No        N/A 

 
d. Select Board Liaison Recommendation: 

i.  Recommend appointment. 
 

ii.  Recommend appointment to other committee that is a better fit for 
applicant qualifications. 
 

iii.  Recommend holding application for future opening.  
 

iv.  Not recommended.  
 
3. SELECT BOARD ACTION 

a. At a Select Board meeting held      , the Applicant was appointed to       
for a term ending       year term. 
 

4. NOTIFICATION OF APPOINTEE AND TOWN CLERK 
a. Date notification of appointment sent to appointee and Town Clerk:       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



























FINAL Select Bd Appt Policy; version Oct. 28 

 

Appendix C 
 

SELECT BOARD COMMITTEE APPLICATION SCREENING FORM 
 

Applicant Name           Requested Committee       
 

 
1. TOWN CLERK REVIEW 

a. Applicant is a registered Brewster voter:     Yes   No 
b. Date confirmed         

 
 

2. SELECT BOARD LIAISON RECOMMENDATION TO SELECT BOARD 
a. Select Board Liaison Applicant Interview: 

i. Interviewer name (Select Board Liaison):       
ii. Interview date:       

 
b. Select Board Liaison Consultation with Committee Chair: 

iii. Committee Chair name:        
iv. Consultation date:       
v. Did Committee Chair also interview applicant?  Yes  No 

 
c. Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted:  Yes  No        N/A 

 
d. Select Board Liaison Recommendation: 

i.  Recommend appointment. 
 

ii.  Recommend appointment to other committee that is a better fit for 
applicant qualifications. 
 

iii.  Recommend holding application for future opening.  
 

iv.  Not recommended.  
 
3. SELECT BOARD ACTION 

a. At a Select Board meeting held      , the Applicant was appointed to       
for a term ending       year term. 
 

4. NOTIFICATION OF APPOINTEE AND TOWN CLERK 
a. Date notification of appointment sent to appointee and Town Clerk:       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2198 MAIN STREET 

BREWSTER MA 02631 

Phone: 
508-896-3701 ext 1125 

Email: 
Building@brewster-ma.gov 

BUILDING DEPARTMENT

Building Permit Fee Proposal  July 2023

List of Attachments 

Proposal Narrative (2 pages) 

Spreadsheet (1 Sheet - one 11 x 17 printout) 

Current (2018) Building Department Fee Schedule (2 pages)  

Previous (2011) Building Department Fee Schedule  



2198 MAIN STREET 

BREWSTER MA 02631 

Phone: 
508-896-3701 ext 1125 

Email: 
Building@brewster-ma.gov 

BUILDING DEPARTMENT

DATE:   July 10, 2023 

TO:         Brewster Select Board, c/o Peter Lombardi, Town Manager 

FROM:   F. D. Walters, Building Commissioner 

RE:          Permit Fee Revision Proposal 

Brewster Building Department permit fees were last revised in 2018. Prior to that was 

2011. Thank you for allowing me to submit the following narrative along with the attached 

proposed Building Permit Fee Schedule Revision spreadsheet. I feel it is best to have the entire 

schedule and the comps all on one page. 

The proposed changes to the Brewster Building Department Fee Schedule are primarily 

intended to simplify the overall schedule. There are two main reasons for this: 

First, the existing schedule is overly complex, confusing, and in some instances, 

mathematically illogical.  

Second, the simplification is necessary so that fees can be programmed to calculate 

automatically in the OpenGov/ViewPoint online permitting system. Currently, the online 

permitting mechanism for per-square-foot fees is defaulted to manual calculation by the Local 

Inspector or Building Commissioner only, which is inefficient, time-consuming, and leaves open 

the potential for a fee to be charged at less than full value.  

It should be noted that in the fee schedules from other towns, fees are often based on a 

percentage of construction value, which is an amount provided by the applicant. This method 

tends to discourage accurate project value reporting. Permit fees based on square footage is the 

most inherently fair method. It not only encourages applicants to be more accurate in their 

reporting of construction project cost since it is independent of fees charged, but also because the 

square footages on which the fees are based are shown explicitly on the plans which the applicant 

has submitted as part of their application. 

There are Residential fee increases proposed in a few areas. These are highlighted in green on the 

accompanying spreadsheet. Some of these are primarily due to the need to simplify, such as 

eliminating some overly specific use types such as convertible vs. non-convertible storage areas, 

unheated sunrooms, and porches, each with their own per square foot cost, in favor of including 

all enclosed areas as a simple rate of $0.70 per square foot. This is reasonable because permit fees 

should for the most part reflect the number of inspections required as well as the amount of 

administrative and project review time spent on a given application.



2198 MAIN STREET 

BREWSTER MA 02631 

Phone: 
508-896-3701 ext 1125 

Email: 
Building@brewster-ma.gov 

BUILDING DEPARTMENT

Similarly, other proposed increases are changes to per-square-foot fees that are comparatively 

low and have not been increased significantly in over 10 years. For example, as shown in the 

attached Brewster Fee Schedule from 2011, decks were being permitted at $0.15 per square foot. 

They are charged currently (as of 2018) at $0.18 per square foot with a $30 minimum fee. This is 

not supportive of the administrative, review and inspection time the Building Department 

typically puts into the various steps in the  permit process and leaves only $10 ‘per inspection’ to 

cover those costs. In other words, though they are typically less complicated to build, decks 

typically require a minimum of three building inspections (footings, frame, finish). A $30 

minimum fee (currently for any deck up to 125 square feet) simply does not cover the cost of three 

building inspections. For comparison, the current average per square foot charge for a deck 

building permit across the six towns of Wellfleet, Eastham, Dennis, Harwich, Chatham, and 

Orleans is $0.49 per square foot.  

A similar proposal is being made for Non-Residential fees as shown on the spreadsheet. 

A minimum fee of $125 plus $0.75 is proposed for new non-residential construction, repairs, and 

alterations. A fixed fee of $100 is being proposed for maintenance projects such as roofing, siding 

or window replacement, analogous to Express Permits in Residential Fees. 

For garages and other accessory structures larger than 200 SF, three to five  inspections 

(footings, frost walls, sheathing, frame, finish) are typically required. Brewster is currently 

charging $0.25 per square foot for garages and accessory structures with no minimum fee 

scheduled. A 300 square foot accessory building at $0.25/SF sets a fee of $75, which is less than 

the cost of one plumbing inspection ($80).The current proposal is to set a minimum 

garage/accessory structure fee at $100 and $0.70 per square foot in excess of the minimum fee, 

which more adequately covers Building Department costs.  

There are no proposed increases for many fixed fee permits. Some fees are simply being 

eliminated, such as the fees for an official zoning opinion, which I believe to be unnecessary. 

Overall, I believe these proposed fee modifications to be reasonable and in line with 

building fees for other towns in our area. Further, I do not think that the relatively modest fee 

increases in certain areas proposed here will significantly impact overall cost to applicants.  

Respectfully Submitted, 

F. Davis Walters 
Building Commissioner



PROPOSED BREWSTER BUILDING FEE UPDATES - July 2023
KEY:

psf = per square foot

(All Fixed Fee Amounts in dollars)

***  =  Currently or Proposed no charge

shaded = proposed change

Current Proposed Current

RESIDENTIAL (1 & 2 Family, Multi-Family) Orleans Eastham Wellfleet Truro Provincetown Harwich Dennis Yarmouth Chatham Bourne

Fee Item

Required Deposit 25.00 25.00 25.00

Minimum Permit Fee 100.00 100.00 75.00 50.00 50.00 100.00 60.00

New Habitable Space/per Sq Ft. 0.55 psf 0.70  psf 0.70psf 0.65 0.65 0.65 0.50 0.64 0.65 0.90 0.60

Convertible Storage Areas 0.25 psf 0.70  psf ***

Non-convert. Storage Areas (Crawl Spaces) 0.07 psf *** ***

Unheated Sunroom/Porch 0.45 psf 0.70  psf 0.40 0.40 75.00 0.60

Garage 0.25 psf 0.70  psf 0.50psf 0.25 75/bay 0.60

Deck (minimum $75. Fee) 0.18 psf 0.70  psf 0.40psf 0.25 75.00 75.00 0.60

Repairs/Alterations 0.25 psf 0.70  psf 0.70psf 0.55 0.55 0.50 0.50 0.64 0.65 psf

Fireplace/Chimney (per unit) 50.00 50.00 45.00 55.00 75.00 60.00

Mechanical (per unit) 50.00 50.00 50.00 1% Cost 55+ 1% Cost 100.00

Sheet Metal/Flue (per unit) 50.00 50.00 50.00 1% Cost 1% Cost 100.00 50.00 60.00

Pool 100.00 100.00 130.00 115+ 50+ 75.00 100.00 150.00 100.00

Change of Use/Home Occupation 50.00 50.00

Demolition (Structures >200 Sq. Ft.) 75.00 100.00 100.00 115.00 150.00 250.00 75.00 225.00 90.00 200.00 150.00

Wood, Coal, or Pellet Stove 50.00 75.00 55.00 75.00 60.00 50.00 50.00

Solar Panels - (Roof Mounted) 50.00 75.00 50.00 1% Cost 55+ 50+ 75.00 135.00 200.00 50.00

Solar Panels (Ground Mounted)   *** 100.00 50.00 1% Cost 55+ 50+ 0.25psf 75.00

Alarm Systems 50.00 50.00

Residential Express Permits (Roofing, Siding, Doors, Windows,

Insulation, Deck Resurface) 50.00 50.00 50.00 55+ 50.00 100.00 75.00 50.00 50.00 75.00 50.00

Residential Zoning Permits

Shed Registration (Up to 120 Sq. Ft.) 50.00 50.00 55.00 50.00 75.00 35.00 50.00

Acc. Structure Registration(121-199 Sq. Ft.) 0.35 psf 75.00 0.25 0.35psf

NON-RESIDENTIAL (Uses: R-1, R-4, A, B, F, H, I, M, S, & U) Orleans Eastham Wellfleet Truro Provincetown Harwich Dennis Yarmouth Chatham Bourne

Current Proposed

Required Deposit 50 50.00

Minimum Permit Fee *** 125.00 Res+15%

New Construction/Additions(up to 100 SF) 0.75 psf 125.00 0.75psf 0.75 0.65 " 0.75 80.00 0.75psf 0.80 0.75

New Construction/Additions (Over  100 SF) 0.75 psf 125 plus 0.75 psf 0.75psf " 300.00

Repairs/Alterations 50. plus 0.35 psf 125 plus 0.75 psf 0.75psf 0.75 0.55 " 0.70 0.85 65/Room

Roofing, Siding, Windows, Doors, Weatherization (per Item) *** 100 75.00 50+ 55+ " 100.00 150.00 100.00 90.00 150.00 75.00

Mechanical, Temporary Construction Trailer, 1% Cost 55+ " 100.00 150.00

Sheet Metal/Flue (per unit) 125.00 125.00 1% Cost " 100.00 100.00 60.00

Non-Residential Change of Use *** 100.00

Demolition (Structures >200 Sq. Ft.) 125.00 150.00 110.00 " 250.00 150.00 322.00 400.00 250.00

Solar Panels - (Roof Mounted) 100 plus $2 per panel100 plus $2 per panel 50+0.20psf 1% Cost 55+ " 150.00 525.00

Solar Panels (Ground Mounted) 100 plus $2 per panel100 plus $2 per panel 1% Cost " 150.00 0.30sqf

Alarm Systems 100.00 100.00

Shed Registration (Up to 120 Sq. Ft.) $50.00 $75.00 " 75+

Annual 110 Inspection $50.00 $50.00 50.00 80.00

MISCELLANEOUS FEES (Residential  & Non-Residential)

Tents > 400q. Ft.(Temporary Permit) 40.00 40.00 50.00 55.00 100.00 100.00 75.00 30.00 40.00 150.00 50.00

Building Permit Card Replacement 35.00 ***

Trench Permit (Ref. 527 CMR Sec. 7) 40.00 40.00

Zoning Sign Permits - Up To 4 Sq. Ft. 20.00 20.00 45.00 50.00 50+ 50.00 50.00 75.00 27.00 25.00 60.00

                        - Over 4 Sq. Ft. 30.00 30.00 50.00 50.00

                        - Temporary (per Sign) 4.00 5.00

1st Re-Inspection Fee 75.00 75.00 50.00 60.00 55.00 75.00 75.00 75.00 40.00 25.00 65.00

2nd & Subsequent Re-Inspection Fees 125.00 125.00 60.00 75.00

Copies:

1 to 4 Pages no charge no charge

Every 5 pages $0.25 per sheet 1.00

Large Format Plan (per page) 2.00 5.00 5.00

GENERAL CONDITIONS

Non-Residential Accessory Structures >120 SF require a Building Permit per IBC Sec. 105.2.

All permit fees will be doubled automatically if work is commenced prior to obtaining the permit except where allowed by code.

Permits and deposits are non-refundable

Permit fees for unusual or special conditions not itemized herein will be determined by the Building Commissioner.

All Official Records Requests must be done via the Town Clerks Office.

Brewster

Brewster















Town of Brewster 
2198 Main Street  

Brewster, MA 02631-1898  
Phone: (508) 896-3701  
www.brewster-ma.gov

Memo   
To: Brewster Select Board/Local Licensing Authority 
From: Erika Mawn, Executive Assistant  
Date: July 18, 2023 
RE:  Brewster Pico LL Seasonal Liquor License Application  

On July 10, 2023, the Town Manager’s office received an application for All Alcohol Seasonal Liquor 
License for Brewster Pico, LLC d/b/a Pico’s Taco Shack located at 239 Underpass Road. The seasonal 
dates of liquor licenses are April 1 through December 31 each year.   

The Alcohol Beverages Control Commission (ABCC) does not have a limit on the number of seasonal 
pouring licenses, Brewster currently has 5 establishments that hold an all-alcohol seasonal license and 2 
establishments that hold wine and malt only seasonal licenses.   

The Select Board approved a Common Vicutaller license for Brewster Pico, LLC on July 10, 2023.  The 
hours of operation are Sunday- Thursday 11a – 8pm and 11am – 9pm on Fridays and Saturdays.  The 
restaurant has a total seating capacity of 35, which includes a small indoor dining area and outdoor 
patio with additional seating.   

As part of the application process, the Town Manager’s office placed an advertisement in the local 
paper and the applicant was responsible for notifying their abutters of their request for a seasonal 
liquor license.  Additionally, the liquor license application was shared with various Department heads 
for their feedback and comments, the following was received: 

 Planning Department- The proposed operation appears generally consistent with the terms and 
conditions of existing zoning approvals for the restaurant’s use.  

 Health Department- The manager has completed all necessary paperwork with the Health 
Department.  

 Building Department- Since the establishment has indoor patron seating and will be serving 
alcohol, an Annual 110 Inspection will be required.  The Building Department has contacted Mr. 
Macedo to set up the 110 Inspection.  

 Fire Department- Will attend the 110 Inspection with the Building Department, no other 
concerns with the application.  

 Town Administration- Application will be submitted to the ABCC once approved by the Select 
Board, it is recommended that the application be approved conditionally once a 110 Inspection 
is completed.  

 Police Department- There is no objection to alcohol service extending to all of the seating area 
outdoors, however, there must be clear signage and some delineation of that area, to prevent 
someone from taking alcohol from the designated area and wandering out to the parking lot, 
sidewalk, or bike path. 

Office of: 
Town Manager 







emawn
Text Box
BREWSTER











































































TO: Abutters of 239 Underpass Road, Brewster MA 02631 

To Whom It May Concern. 

Please note that Brewster Pico, LLC d/b/a Pico’s Taco Shack has filed an application with the Select 
Board for a New Seasonal All Alcoholic Beverages Restaurant Liquor License.  Below is the legal ad 
that will run in the July 14 and July 21, 2023, edition of the Cape Codder Newspaper. 

TOWN OF BREWSTER  
Liquor License Hearing 

In accordance with MGL Chapter 138, Sections 4-17C, the Brewster Select Board will hold a public 
hearing on Monday July 24, at 6:30pm to review an application from Brewster Pico, LLC d/b/a 
Pico’s Taco Shack, LLC, located at 239 Underpass Road, for a new On-Premises All Alcoholic 
Beverage Seasonal Liquor License. This hearing will be conducted in person in Room A at 2198 
Main Street, Brewster MA 02631.  As a courtesy only, access to the hearing is also being provided 
via remote means in accordance with applicable law.  Please note that while an option for remote 
attendance and/or participation is being provided as a courtesy to the public, the hearing will not 
be suspended or terminated if technological problems interrupt the virtual broadcast or affect 
remote attendance or participation, unless otherwise required by law. Members of the public with 
particular interest should make plans for in-person vs. virtual attendance accordingly.  Parties of 
direct interest are invited to attend and be heard. 

Members of the public who wish to access the hearing remotely may do so in the following   
manner:   
Phone: Call (312) 626 6799 or (301) 715-8592. Webinar ID: 890 9291 0526 Passcode: 509224 
To request to speak: Press *9 and wait to be recognized. 

ZoomWebinar:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89092910526?pwd=WHM2V3hrVklhSTloWWhVU09kanUzQT09
Passcode: 509224 
To request to speak: Tap Zoom “Raise Hand”, then wait to be recognized. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89092910526?pwd=WHM2V3hrVklhSTloWWhVU09kanUzQT09


TOWN OF BREWSTER, MA
BOARD OF ASSESSORS

2198 Main Street Brewster, MA 02631

Abutters List Within 300 feet of Parcel 77/38/0

Key ZipCd/CountryMailing City STOwnerParcel ID Location Mailing Street

MABREWSTER 0263112 WOODVIEW DRIVE 12 WOODVIEW DRIVEGIFFORD RANDALL L II3216 76-34-3216-R
(27-21-12)

MABREWSTER 0263114 WOODVIEW DRIVE 14 WOODVIEW DRIVEMASON SATRA  A3217 76-34-3217-R
(27-21-14)

RIPAWTUCKET 0286016 WOODVIEW DRIVE 16 CAMBRIA COURTGANDSMAN SANDRA J &3218 76-34-3218-R
HERMAN ARNOLD H(27-21-16)

MABREWSTER 0263118 WOODVIEW DRIVE 18 WOODVIEW  DRIVEDOWNING THOMAS E3219 76-34-3219-R
(27-21-18)

FLSAINT JAMES CITY 3395621 WOODVIEW DRIVE 5030 ISLAND ACRES CT21 WOODVIEW DRIVE LLC3220 76-34-3220-R
(27-21-21)

MABREWSTER 0263123 WOODVIEW DRIVE 23 WOODVIEW DRIVEMARTIN RICHARD CHARLES3221 76-34-3221-R
(27-21-23) UNIT A-23

MABREWSTER 0263125 WOODVIEW DRIVE PO BOX 1346FLYNN MARY V3222 76-34-3222-R
(27-21-25)

MASANDWICH 0256327 WOODVIEW DRIVE 2 CROWELL ROADFERRI CURTIS F & KATHLEEN M TRUSTEES3223 76-34-3223-R
(27-21-27)

MAAMHERST 0100228 WOODVIEW DRIVE 1141 SOUTH EAST STREETSTOKES PAULINE E &3224 76-34-3224-R
KARLAND JACQUIE(27-21-28)

MABREWSTER 0263130 WOODVIEW DRIVE 30 WOODVIEW DRIVESULLIVAN KATHLEEN M3225 76-34-3225-R
(27-21-30)

MAMETHUEN 0184432 WOODVIEW DRIVE 22 COACHMAN LANEDELLE CHIAIE KATHERINE M & DAVID A3226 76-34-3226-R
TRUSTEES(27-21-32)

MASUDBURY 01776-168834 WOODVIEW DRIVE 32 CAMPERDOWN LANEBARACH MATTHEW P3227 76-34-3227-R
(27-21-34)

MABREWSTER 0263135 WOODVIEW DRIVE 11 QUAIL HOLLOW ROADBOUDREAU GLENN P & WENDIE L3228 76-34-3228-R
(27-21-35)

MABREWSTER 0263137 WOODVIEW DRIVE 37 WOODVIEW DRIVEJOHNSON DALE S3229 76-34-3229-R
(27-21-37)

MABREWSTER 0263139 WOODVIEW DRIVE 39 WOODVIEW DRIVEPATTIE SARA3230 76-34-3230-R
(27-21-39)

Page 17/13/2023

sacheson
Stamp



Key ZipCd/CountryMailing City STOwnerParcel ID Location Mailing Street

MABREWSTER 0263141 WOODVIEW DRIVE 41 WOODVIEW DRIVEUMBEL NANCY E3231 76-34-3231-R
(27-21-41)

MABREWSTER 0263146 WOODVIEW DRIVE 46 WOODVIEW DRIVECAMARA REGINA3232 76-34-3232-R
(27-21-46)

MABREWSTER 0263148 WOODVIEW DRIVE 48 WOODVIEW DRIVEZOU CHANG TING3233 76-34-3233-R
(27-21-48)

MABREWSTER 0263150 WOODVIEW DRIVE 50 WOODVIEW DRIVEAVELLAR MARY F3234 76-34-3234-R
(27-21-50)

MASTOUGHTON 0207252 WOODVIEW DRIVE 1909 WASHINGTON STREETMONKIEWICZ ERIC JOSEPH &3235 76-34-3235-R
MONKIEWICZ AMANDA HANNON(27-21-52)

FLFORT PIERCE 3494954 WOODVIEW DRIVE 28 HARBOR ISLE DR WEST UNIT PH 03GALLO NEIL M & BARBARA C3236 76-34-3236-R
(27-21-54)

MABREWSTER 0263155 WOODVIEW DRIVE 55 WOODVIEW DRIVEPOITRAS DANIEL R ETAL TRUSTEES3237 76-34-3237-R
55 WOODVIEW DRIVE REALTY TRUST(27-21-55)

NYHUDSON 1253456 WOODVIEW DRIVE 20 PARKWOOD BOULEVARDMALOY EILEEN TRUSTEE3238 76-34-3238-R
MARY ANN CONCRA IRREV TRUST(27-21-56)

MABREWSTER 0263157 WOODVIEW DRIVE 57 WOODVIEW DRIVEHURLEY WILLIAM M & JOSEPH3239 76-34-3239-R
(27-21-57)

MABREWSTER 0263159 WOODVIEW DRIVE 59 WOODVIEW DRIVEMILLER BEN F & O'BRIEN ELIZABETH3240 76-34-3240-R
(27-21-59)

CTCHESHIRE 0641061 WOODVIEW DRIVE 101 LANYON DRIVEHOURIGAN JOHN R JR & MARIAN I3241 76-34-3241-R
(27-21-61)

MABREWSTER 0263170 WOODVIEW DRIVE 70 WOODVIEW DRIVEBASSIN STUART J &3242 76-34-3242-R
ADAMSON AUDREY J(27-21-70)

FLBOCA RATON 3348672 WOODVIEW DRIVE 600 SW 15TH STREETSANDERSON CHRISTOPHER S &3243 76-34-3243-R
SANDERSON MARGARET V(27-21-72)

MABREWSTER 0263174 WOODVIEW DRIVE 74 WOODVIEW DRIVEMACDONALD CATHERINE T R & RODERICK A3244 76-34-3244-R
TRUSTEES 74 WOODVIEW DRIVE REALTY TRUST(27-21-74)

MAWINCHESTER 0189076 WOODVIEW DRIVE 19 CHURCHILL ROADBOSCO DEBORAH M3245 76-34-3245-R
(27-21-76)

MABREWSTER 0263179 WOODVIEW DRIVE 79 WOODVIEW DRIVEBAUER CRISTINA B3246 76-34-3246-R
(27-21-79)

MAWOLLASTON 0217081 WOODVIEW DRIVE 8 CARLE ROADCOBBAN DONALD F3247 76-34-3247-R
(27-21-81)

MABREWSTER 0263183 WOODVIEW DRIVE 83 WOODVIEW DRIVELECONEY JON T & MARKS LECONEY ROSE CINDY3248 76-34-3248-R
TRUSTEES- LECONEY TRUST(27-21-83)

NYMOUNT KISCO 1054985 WOODVIEW DRIVE 21 TIMBER RIDGEABRAHAM PAUL A & DIANA J3249 76-34-3249-R
(27-21-85)

MABELLINGHAM 0201987 WOODVIEW DRIVE 53 BELLWOOD CIRCLECOBBAN WILLIAM E & MILDRED J3250 76-34-3250-R
(27-21-87)

CTHAMDEN 0651788 WOODVIEW DRIVE 72 SPRING GLEN TERRACEHOCHSTRASSER MARK W & ROBIN L3251 76-34-3251-R
(27-21-88)

MAWILBRAHAM 0109589 WOODVIEW DRIVE 82 OAKLAND STREETNORDSTROM LEIF G & PATRICIA D3252 76-34-3252-R
(27-21-89)

MABREWSTER 0263190 WOODVIEW DRIVE 90 WOODVIEW DRIVENOONE ROSEMARY3253 76-34-3253-R
(27-21-90) UNIT H-90

MABREWSTER 0263192 WOODVIEW DRIVE 92 WOODVIEW DRIVELIVERMORE MARK W & FINKELSTEIN BETH M3254 76-34-3254-R
(27-21-92)

MABREWSTER 0263194 WOODVIEW DRIVE 94 WOODVIEW DRIVEHAYNES LARISSA L.3255 76-34-3255-R
(27-21-94)

MABREWSTER 0263196 WOODVIEW DRIVE 96 WOODVIEW DRIVELIVINGSTON SUSAN JEAN3256 76-34-3256-R
(27-21-96)

MABREWSTER 0263197 WOODVIEW DRIVE 97 WOODVIEW DRIVEWRIGLEY EDMUND JOHN III &3257 76-34-3257-R
WRIGLEY BRIAN C(27-21-97)

MABREWSTER 0263198 WOODVIEW DRIVE 98 WOODVIEW DRIVECALLAHAN KATHERINE L3258 76-34-3258-R
(27-21-98)

FLPALM BEACH 3348099 WOODVIEW DRIVE 227 BRAZILIAN AVENUE, APT. 2JHENSELER NANCY J & R ALAN CO-TRUSTEES3259 76-34-3259-R
NANCY J HENSELER REVOCABLE TRUST(27-21-99)

MABREWSTER 02631101 WOODVIEW DRIVE 101 WOODVIEW DRIVEMORROW MARILYN W (LIFE ESTATE)3260 76-34-3260-R
(27-21-101)

MAMENDON 01756102 WOODVIEW DRIVE 13 POWERS ROADENGLISH MARTHA3261 76-34-3261-R
C/O 102 BREWSTER LLC(27-21-102)

MACANTON 02021103 WOODVIEW DRIVE 25 BREWER WAYTORMEY DAVID P & AMY B3262 76-34-3262-R
(27-21-103)

MAORLEANS 02653104 WOODVIEW DRIVE 7 NELLS WAYOCC CORPORATION3263 76-34-3263-R
(27-21-104)

NYSCHENECTADY 12303106 WOODVIEW DRIVE 1023 COFFEE DRIVEBLANCHARD ANDREW & NUALA3264 76-34-3264-R
(27-21-106)

MAWINCHESTER 01890-1631107 WOODVIEW DRIVE 109 WENDELL STREETSWALLOW DAVID G & ALISON H3265 76-34-3265-R
(27-21-107)

MABREWSTER 02631108 WOODVIEW DRIVE 108 WOODVIEW DRIVEFLYNN MICHAEL F3266 76-34-3266-R
(27-21-108)

MABREWSTER 02631109 WOODVIEW DRIVE 109 WOODVIEW DRIVESIEBENMANN WENDY ANNE3267 76-34-3267-R
(27-21-109)

NJCLIFFSIDE PARK 07010111 WOODVIEW DRIVE 375 ESPLANADE PLACEBURROWS CHRISTOPHER M &3268 76-34-3268-R
BURROWS SCOTT E(27-21-111)

MASOUTH BOSTON 02127113 WOODVIEW DRIVE 85 P STREETNAKASHIAN JANE F3269 76-34-3269-R
(27-21-113)

CTWINDSOR 06006260 UNDERPASS ROAD 6 GRIFFIN ROADUNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE2991 77-1-0-E
C/O FACILITIES SERVICE CENTER(26-18-2)

MABREWSTER 02631250-256 UNDERPASS ROAD PO BOX 1069JONES STEPHEN B TRUSTEE17339 77-2-0-E
RPB CONDOMINIUM TRUST(26-18-1A)

Page 27/13/2023



Key ZipCd/CountryMailing City STOwnerParcel ID Location Mailing Street

MABREWSTER 02631250 UNDERPASS ROAD PO BOX 1973PAUSE A WHILE INC3192 77-2-3192-E
(26-18-1A)

MABREWSTER 02631252 UNDERPASS ROAD P O BOX 1069DRJ NOMINEE TRUST3193 77-2-3193-R
JONES STEPHEN B  TRUSTEE(26-18-102)

MABREWSTER 02631254 UNDERPASS ROAD PO BOX 1973PAUSE A WHILE INC3194 77-2-3194-R
(26-18-103)

MABREWSTER 02631256 UNDERPASS ROAD PO BOX 1973PAUSE A WHILE INC17338 77-2-17338-R
(26-18-1A)

MAWELLFLEET 02667215 UNDERPASS ROAD P O BOX  1405AMBROSE FREDERIC C & NANCY TRSTEES3296 77-34-0-R
(27-20-6)

MAWELLFLEET 02667217 UNDERPASS ROAD P O BOX 1405AMBROSE FREDERIC C & NANCY TRSTEES3295 77-35-0-R
(27-20-5)

MASOUTH HARWICH 02661239 UNDERPASS ROAD PO BOX 128PARKER KYLE3482 77-38-0-R
C/O MIAMI STUFF LLC(27-2003-3)

MABOSTON 021140 BIKE PATH 251 CAUSEWAY STREET  SUITE 600MASSACHUSETTS COMMONWEALTH OF12805 77-39-0-E
DEPT OF ENVIRONMENTAL MGT(27-998)

MABREWSTER 026310 UNDERPASS ROAD 2198 MAIN STREETBREWSTER TOWN OF3297 77-40-0-E
(27-22)

MAORLEANS 026531 INDEPENDENCE WAY 4 UNCLE HARVEY WAYBEAVAN  ALLISON M3492 77-42-0-R
(27-2101-1)

MABREWSTER 0263123 INDEPENDENCE WAY P O BOX 1200FHE FUNHOUSE ENTERPRISES LLC3493 77-43-0-R
(27-2101-2)

MABREWSTER 0263143 INDEPENDENCE WAY 43 INDEPENDENCE WAYWALTHER JOSHUA E3494 77-44-0-R
(27-2101-3)

MASO CHATHAM 02659-1402235 UNDERPASS ROAD 119  MEETING HOUSE ROADCOLLIAS CURTIS V3481 77-47-0-R
(27-2003-2)

MASOUTH CHATHAM 026590 UNDERPASS ROAD 119 MEETINGHOUSE ROADCOLLIAS CURTIS V3480 77-48-0-R
(27-2003-1)

Page 37/13/2023



76-34-3216-R

GIFFORD RANDALL L II
12 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3217-R

MASON SATRA  A
14 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3218-R

GANDSMAN SANDRA J &
HERMAN ARNOLD H
16 CAMBRIA COURT
PAWTUCKET, RI  02860 

76-34-3219-R

DOWNING THOMAS E
18 WOODVIEW  DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3220-R

21 WOODVIEW DRIVE LLC
5030 ISLAND ACRES CT
SAINT JAMES CITY, FL  33956 

76-34-3221-R

MARTIN RICHARD CHARLES
23 WOODVIEW DRIVE
UNIT A-23
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3222-R

FLYNN MARY V
PO BOX 1346
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3223-R

FERRI CURTIS F & KATHLEEN M TRUSTEES
2 CROWELL ROAD
SANDWICH, MA  02563 

76-34-3224-R

STOKES PAULINE E &
KARLAND JACQUIE
1141 SOUTH EAST STREET
AMHERST, MA  01002 

76-34-3225-R

SULLIVAN KATHLEEN M
30 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3226-R

DELLE CHIAIE KATHERINE M & DAVID A
TRUSTEES
22 COACHMAN LANE
METHUEN, MA  01844 

76-34-3227-R

BARACH MATTHEW P
32 CAMPERDOWN LANE
SUDBURY, MA  01776-1688 

76-34-3228-R

BOUDREAU GLENN P & WENDIE L
11 QUAIL HOLLOW ROAD
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3229-R

JOHNSON DALE S
37 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3230-R

PATTIE SARA
39 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3231-R

UMBEL NANCY E
41 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3232-R

CAMARA REGINA
46 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3233-R

ZOU CHANG TING
48 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3234-R

AVELLAR MARY F
50 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3235-R

MONKIEWICZ ERIC JOSEPH &
MONKIEWICZ AMANDA HANNON
1909 WASHINGTON STREET
STOUGHTON, MA  02072 

76-34-3236-R

GALLO NEIL M & BARBARA C
28 HARBOR ISLE DR WEST UNIT PH 03
FORT PIERCE, FL  34949 

76-34-3237-R

POITRAS DANIEL R ETAL TRUSTEES
55 WOODVIEW DRIVE REALTY TRUST
55 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3238-R

MALOY EILEEN TRUSTEE
MARY ANN CONCRA IRREV TRUST
20 PARKWOOD BOULEVARD
HUDSON, NY  12534 

76-34-3239-R

HURLEY WILLIAM M & JOSEPH
57 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3240-R

MILLER BEN F & O'BRIEN ELIZABETH
59 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3241-R

HOURIGAN JOHN R JR & MARIAN I
101 LANYON DRIVE
CHESHIRE, CT  06410 

76-34-3242-R

BASSIN STUART J &
ADAMSON AUDREY J
70 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3243-R

SANDERSON CHRISTOPHER S &
SANDERSON MARGARET V
600 SW 15TH STREET
BOCA RATON, FL  33486 

76-34-3244-R

MACDONALD CATHERINE T R & RODERICK A
TRUSTEES 74 WOODVIEW DRIVE REALTY TRUST
74 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3245-R

BOSCO DEBORAH M
19 CHURCHILL ROAD
WINCHESTER, MA  01890 



76-34-3246-R

BAUER CRISTINA B
79 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3247-R

COBBAN DONALD F
8 CARLE ROAD
WOLLASTON, MA  02170 

76-34-3248-R

LECONEY JON T & MARKS LECONEY ROSE CINDY
TRUSTEES- LECONEY TRUST
83 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3249-R

ABRAHAM PAUL A & DIANA J
21 TIMBER RIDGE
MOUNT KISCO, NY  10549 

76-34-3250-R

COBBAN WILLIAM E & MILDRED J
53 BELLWOOD CIRCLE
BELLINGHAM, MA  02019 

76-34-3251-R

HOCHSTRASSER MARK W & ROBIN L
72 SPRING GLEN TERRACE
HAMDEN, CT  06517 

76-34-3252-R

NORDSTROM LEIF G & PATRICIA D
82 OAKLAND STREET
WILBRAHAM, MA  01095 

76-34-3253-R

NOONE ROSEMARY
90 WOODVIEW DRIVE
UNIT H-90
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3254-R

LIVERMORE MARK W & FINKELSTEIN BETH M
92 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3255-R

HAYNES LARISSA L.
94 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3256-R

LIVINGSTON SUSAN JEAN
96 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3257-R

WRIGLEY EDMUND JOHN III &
WRIGLEY BRIAN C
97 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3258-R

CALLAHAN KATHERINE L
98 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3259-R

HENSELER NANCY J & R ALAN CO-TRUSTEES
NANCY J HENSELER REVOCABLE TRUST
227 BRAZILIAN AVENUE, APT. 2J
PALM BEACH, FL  33480 

76-34-3260-R

MORROW MARILYN W (LIFE ESTATE)
101 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3261-R

ENGLISH MARTHA
C/O 102 BREWSTER LLC
13 POWERS ROAD
MENDON, MA  01756 

76-34-3262-R

TORMEY DAVID P & AMY B
25 BREWER WAY
CANTON, MA  02021 

76-34-3263-R

OCC CORPORATION
7 NELLS WAY
ORLEANS, MA  02653 

76-34-3264-R

BLANCHARD ANDREW & NUALA
1023 COFFEE DRIVE
SCHENECTADY, NY  12303 

76-34-3265-R

SWALLOW DAVID G & ALISON H
109 WENDELL STREET
WINCHESTER, MA  01890-1631 

76-34-3266-R

FLYNN MICHAEL F
108 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3267-R

SIEBENMANN WENDY ANNE
109 WOODVIEW DRIVE
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

76-34-3268-R

BURROWS CHRISTOPHER M &
BURROWS SCOTT E
375 ESPLANADE PLACE
CLIFFSIDE PARK, NJ  07010 

76-34-3269-R

NAKASHIAN JANE F
85 P STREET
SOUTH BOSTON, MA  02127 

77-1-0-E

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
C/O FACILITIES SERVICE CENTER
6 GRIFFIN ROAD
WINDSOR, CT  06006 

77-2-0-E

JONES STEPHEN B TRUSTEE
RPB CONDOMINIUM TRUST
PO BOX 1069
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

77-2-3192-E

PAUSE A WHILE INC
PO BOX 1973
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

77-2-3193-R

DRJ NOMINEE TRUST
JONES STEPHEN B  TRUSTEE
P O BOX 1069
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

77-2-3194-R

PAUSE A WHILE INC
PO BOX 1973
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

77-2-17338-R

PAUSE A WHILE INC
PO BOX 1973
BREWSTER, MA  02631 



77-34-0-R

AMBROSE FREDERIC C & NANCY TRSTEES
P O BOX  1405
WELLFLEET, MA  02667 

77-35-0-R

AMBROSE FREDERIC C & NANCY TRSTEES
P O BOX 1405
WELLFLEET, MA  02667 

77-38-0-R

PARKER KYLE
C/O MIAMI STUFF LLC
PO BOX 128
SOUTH HARWICH, MA  02661 

77-39-0-E

MASSACHUSETTS COMMONWEALTH OF
DEPT OF ENVIRONMENTAL MGT
251 CAUSEWAY STREET  SUITE 600
BOSTON, MA  02114 

77-40-0-E

BREWSTER TOWN OF
2198 MAIN STREET
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

77-42-0-R

BEAVAN  ALLISON M
4 UNCLE HARVEY WAY
ORLEANS, MA  02653 

77-43-0-R

FHE FUNHOUSE ENTERPRISES LLC
P O BOX 1200
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

77-44-0-R

WALTHER JOSHUA E
43 INDEPENDENCE WAY
BREWSTER, MA  02631 

77-47-0-R

COLLIAS CURTIS V
119  MEETING HOUSE ROAD
SO CHATHAM, MA  02659-1402 

77-48-0-R

COLLIAS CURTIS V
119 MEETINGHOUSE ROAD
SOUTH CHATHAM, MA  02659 



Ad Preview

2/2



1

Erika Mawn

From: Jill Doane

Sent: Tuesday, April 11, 2023 11:54 AM

To: Erika Mawn

Cc: Charles Mawn

Subject: Bernardo Macedo

Hi Erika, 

Bernardo Macedo’s prints have been processed and he’s good to go     

Jd 
Jill F. Doane 
Administrative Assistant 
Brewster Police Department 
508-896-7011 x2110 
jdoane@brewster-ma.gov





Update from the Cape Light 
Compact

Maggie Downey, Compact Administrator
July 25, 2023



Power Supply Rates: 
June ‘23 – December ‘23 

Residential Commercial Industrial

Jun '23 - Dec '23 
cents/kWh

Jun '23 - Dec '23 
cents/kWh

Jun '23 - Sept '23 
cents/kWh

CLC Standard 14.839 14.828 11.931

Local Green 50%
16.139 16.128 13.231

Local Green 100%
18.439 18.428 15.531

Eversource 16.078 15.899 14.12



Brewster Energy Efficiency Results for 2022

Jan – Dec 2022 Number of Participants Customer Savings kWh Saved Rebates/Incentives Paid to Customers

Low Income 151 $18,005.40 90,027 $282,015.00

Residential 1,098 $54,859.60 274,298 $2,326,694.32

Commercial 35 $73,144.00 365,720 $143,407.75

Total 1,284 $146,009.00 730,045 $2,752,117.07



Energy Efficiency Highlights for 2023

• No-Cost Energy Assessments for residents and businesses
– Weatherization covered at 75% for residents

• 100% for Income Eligible customers
• 100% for renters and Moderate Income customers

–  Weatherization available for small businesses

• Decarbonizing Home Heating System Offering
– Whole Home Rebates of $10,000
– Partial-Home Rebate of $1,250 per ton to up to $10,000 

• Summer Sizzler June through August 31st

– Execute a residential weatherization contract and receive a $100 e-gift 
card



Energy Efficiency Highlights for 2023

• Old Freezer or Refrigerator?
– Cape Light Compact vendor will come and remove and offer a 

$75 rebate
• E-Bike Incentive for Income Eligible Customers 
     – 75% of the cost up-to $1,200
• Energy Star Appliance Rebates 

– Room AC - $40
– Room Air Purifiers - $40
– Dehumidifiers - $30
– Electric Clothes Dryer - $50



Cape & Vineyard Electrification Offering

• A coordinated effort by the Cape Light Compact to 
decarbonize 100 homes on Cape Cod and/or Martha’s 
Vineyard through the installation of:
– Weatherization (Air Sealing & Insulation) 
– Heat Pumps (replacing electric resistance/oil/propane)
– Solar PV Panels
– Batteries *** (for only 25 homes depending on evaluation).
– Electric Stoves



Who Is Eligible for CVEO?

• Residents who heat with electric resistance/propane/oil and fall into 
the below categories:
– 80 participants must be deed-restricted properties based on “affordability” or income;

• 100% incentive/cost for Heat Pump
• 100% incentive/cost for Solar PV
• 100% incentive/cost for Battery (limited to 25 % of participants due to funding)

– 20 participants must qualify as moderate income and will receive significant incentives
• 61-80% SMI or AMI
• Heat Pumps:  Compact will cover 80% of installed cost with a maximum customer co-pay of $5,000, 

balance financed with Heat Loan
• $15,000 incentive for Solar PV, balance financed with a Heat Loan
• Battery financed with Heat Loan

– Heat Loan is contingent on lender approval



Customer Flow: Contact & Initial HEA 

• Interested customers contact the Cape Light Compact at 
800-797-6699.

– The Cape Light Compact will determine initial eligibility.
– If determined as a good candidate, customer information is sent over to the 

Lead Vendor (RISE).

• Lead Vendor will contact customer to schedule a home energy 
assessment.
– An Energy Specialist will determine necessary weatherization work (air sealing 

and insulation) at the home and the feasibility of the home to proceed with 
the installation of CVEO program technologies (solar panels/heat 
pumps/batteries). 





Cape Light Compact & Basic Service Residential 
Power Supply Rates

0

5

10

15

20

25

Ra
te

 (c
en

ts
/k

W
h)

Rate Term

Cape Light Compact & Basic Service Rates (2002 – 2023)

CLC Rate (cents/kWh) Basic Service Rate (cents/kWh)



 
 
 
 

 
 

EVERSOURCE ENERGY, EASTERN MA 
FIVE YEAR VEGETATION MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR 

CAPE COD AND MARTHA’S VINEYARD 
(BARNSTABLE AND DUKES COUNTIES) 

2023-2027 
 
 

 
 

Submitted by: 
Eversource Energy, Eastern MA 

.         August 31, 2022. 
 
                 Revised/resubmitted date: 
         April 27, 2023.  
          

         Revised/resubmitted date: 
         May 23, 2023.



i  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

1. Introduction……………………………………………………………….... 1 
2. Goals and Objectives………………………………………………………. 2 
3. Identification of Incompatible Vegetation…………………………………. 3 
4. Integrated Vegetation Management……………………………………....... 6 
5. Mechanical Controls……………………………………………………….. 9 
6. Chemical Controls…………………………………………………………. 13 
7. Definition, Identification and Treatment of Sensitive Areas………………. 20 
8. Operational Guidelines for Applicators relative to Herbicide Use……….... 27 
9. Alternative Land Uses…………………………………………………….... 30 

10. Remedial Spill and Emergency Plan……………………………………….. 31 
11. Identification and Qualification of Individual Developing and 

Submitting the Plan………………………………………………………… 35 
ILLUSTRATIONS 

 
1. Wire Zone-Border Zone Approach…………….............................................         4  
    

 
TABLES 

 
1. Herbicide Manufacturers…………………………………………………… 31 
2. State Agencies………………………………………………………………. 31 
3. Emergency Services………………………………………………………… 32 
4. Local Emergency Numbers Table Format………………….......................... 32 
5. Herbicide Spill Check List………………………………….......................... 33 

 
APPENDICES 

 
1. Electric System Maps 
2. List of Municipalities 
3. 333 CMR 11.00 
4. Chapter 132B 
5. Sensitive Area Table 
6. Preface to 310 CMR 10.00 
7. Wetlands Study 
8. Chapter 85, Section 10 
9. References 



1  

1. INTRODUCTION 

  Eversource Energy, Eastern MA (Eversource) hereby submits this Vegetation 

Management Plan (VMP) in compliance with 333 CMR 11.00, Rights of Way 

Management regulations (Appendix 3).1  

Eversource Energy, Eastern MA delivers electricity to approximately 1.1 million 

electric customers in 81 municipalities and has the responsibility to manage vegetation 

on company electric rights-of-way (ROW) and to ensure the safe and reliable delivery of 

electric power to its customers.  Electricity is transmitted over 89 miles of electric 

transmission ROW, voltages 115kV, 230kV & 345kV and 55 miles of electric 

distribution ROW, voltages 4kV to 25kV throughout communities within Cape Cod and 

Martha’s Vineyard, Massachusetts (Appendices 1 & 2). 

Eversource is responsible for maintaining its ROW free from hazards and 

encroachments. Vegetation can interfere with electric service causing interruptions 
by growing into the area around the conductors, falling into the conductors or 
blowing together. Vegetation can inhibit access for maintenance and inspection. 
Vegetation that comes in contact with conductors can ignite wildfires.  Downed 

wires can be a safety risk to workers attempting to clear vegetation or others that 
come upon an incident and are close enough to come in contact with electricity. The 
Eversource vegetation management program provides for the necessary safety, 

system reliability, access to facilities, regulatory compliance, and security following 

utility vegetation management industry best management practices (bmp).2 

 
1A partial list of the regulations that Eversource must comply with that relate to the activities in this 
document also include: Chapter 132 B, Pesticide Control Act (Appendix 4); all pertinent clauses in 
Chapter 85 of the Acts of 2000 (Appendix 8); MESA; MGL c.131, Massachusetts Endangered Species Act 
and its regulations, 321 CMR 10.00, Massachusetts Endangered Species Regulations; 310 CMR 10.00, 
Wetlands Protection Regulations; 310 CMR 22.00, Drinking Water regulations; Chapter 216, An Act 
Relative to the Emergency Service Response of Public Utility Companies; NERC Standard FAC-003-1, 
Commissioner Order 69, and all applicable Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act, Department of 
Transportation and Department of Environmental Protection regulations. 

 
2 Miller, R.H. 2012. Best Management Practices: Integrated Vegetation Management. 
Society of Arboriculture, Champaign, IL. Galen Guerrero-Murphy, Tim Follensbee II, and Jeff Disorda 
2015. Best Management Practices (BMPs) for Protection of Threatened and Endangered Species during 
Integrated Vegetation Management and Operations and Maintenance of Electric Transmission Lines in 
Vermont. Environmental Concerns in Rights-of-Way Management, 11th International Symposium, Halifax, 
Novia Scotia. 



2  

Eversource’s program applies an Integrated Vegetation Management (IVM) 

approach to controlling vegetation on its rights-of-way.  IVM uses a combination of 

maintenance techniques that include mechanical, herbicide and cultural control.  

Herbicide maintenance application techniques are at the lowest effective labeled rate and 

are timed for maximum effect.   The IVM based program encourages low growing plant 

communities that allows for the safe delivery of reliable electric service while minimizing 

the impact on property owners and supports a more diverse habitat for wildlife that 

depends upon early successional landscapes. 

2. GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
 

Eversource is responsible to manage the property under its electric powerlines to 

ensure the safe and reliable delivery of electric power to its customers. To achieve this 

goal, Eversource has prepared this VMP to describe its practices and procedures for 

managing vegetation that is undesirable, presents a safety hazard, or is otherwise 

unsuitable to the intended use of the ROW. 

This section serves to communicate objectives that will be accomplished 

through the VMP, Yearly Operational Plans (YOPs) and notification processes required 

by 333 CMR 11.00. 

The following are objectives of Eversource’s vegetation management program: 

• To maintain ROW that ensures the safe and dependable delivery of electricity. 

• To manage vegetation that impedes ground and aerial inspections or 
interferes with the ability to access the ROW and structures for maintenance 
or emergencies. 

• To encourage stable early successional ecological communities of primarily low 
growing plant communities to allow access for maintenance and inspections 
and ultimately reduce the amount of herbicide over time. 

• To remove or manage incompatible vegetation on the ROW, along access 
roads, around structures, gates, and the perimeter of electric substations. 

• To control invasive and poisonous plant species. 

• To ensure that all vegetation management operations are conducted in a safe, 
effective manner and in conformity with all federal and state laws, regulations, 
and permit conditions. 

 



3  

3. IDENTIFICATION OF INCOMPATIBLE VEGETATION 
The intent set forth in Eversource’s VMP is all vegetation that obscure the ROW 

corridors and grow tall enough to interfere with the safe, efficient, and legal operation of 

an electrical power line is considered “incompatible” with the intended use of the ROW 

and therefore will be removed.  

Eversource Arborists will determine the type of maintenance methods. The 

management of vegetation within the established cleared limits of the ROW may be 

performed in one of two ways, a two-zone management approach or a one-zone 

approach. The method designated is based on the transmission facilities, number of 

facilities (lines) within ROW, width of maintained cleared limit or easement, 

topography, and plant community. Each ROW is designated as one or two-zone 

maintenance by the Eversource Arborist.  

1. Two-Zone Maintenance. Management of vegetation within ROW clearing 

limits shall be performed in accordance with the two-zone maintenance 

concept for designated transmission ROWs. A wire and a border zone shall 

be developed and maintained in accordance with these specifications 

(Illustration 1, Diagram 1).  

Wire Zone: The wire zone shall include the area directly beneath the overhead 

conductors extending outward a distance from the outermost conductor(s) based 

on voltage:  

  Voltage Class  Wire Zone  

  <230kV   25 feet 

   >=230kV   35 feet  

Border Zone: The border zones shall include all areas from the Wire Zone limit 

to the edge of the maintained width of the ROW. Border zone widths are variable 

depending on ROW and extend to the edge of clearing. 

2. One-Zone Maintenance Management of vegetation within ROW boundaries shall 

be performed for ROWs designated by Eversource as one-zone. The entire 

maintained width of the ROW is managed as a wire zone (Illustration 1, Diagram 2).  



4  

Illustration 1: One-Zone or Two-Zone Maintenance, and Wire Zone-Border Zone Approach. 

Diagram 1 

 
Diagram 2 

 



5  

        Examples of incompatible tree species include, but are not limited to: 

alder cherry pine 
aspen hemlock maple 
beech hickory oak 
birch locust sassafras 

Compatible plant species are generally encouraged on the ROW.  Most 

herbaceous growth is acceptable and encouraged. Small trees and shrubs that mature 

less than 25 feet in height (Border Zone) are not usually incompatible unless due to 

their location or attributes they interfere with the function of the ROW. 

Some lower growing vegetation may be deemed incompatible because of their 

location and/or their nature. Dense woody vegetation, shrubs and vines are incompatible 

where they are capable of interfering with the inspection and maintenance of the poles, 

wires, access roads, paths, and gates, all of which need to be kept clear, especially for 

emergencies.  

 
INVASIVE, POISONOUS PLANTS AND NUISANCE PLANT SPECIES 

 
Eversource intends to selectively manage invasive, poisonous and nuisance plant 

species with herbicide spot treatment and mechanical methods within the ROW. These 

categories of plants are as defined below. 

 
Nuisance Vegetation 

Nuisance vegetation is plant species that pose a risk to the safety and health of 

individuals working on or traversing a ROW and it can impede a rapid response in an 

emergency. Example of nuisance vegetation include blackberry, raspberry, wild 

grapevine, greenbrier, and many invasive plant species which have heavy thorns, dense 

foliage and/or impenetrable stems.  

Poisonous Plants 
Examples of poisonous plants are poison ivy and poison oak.   These pose a 

health hazard to Eversource personnel, contractors and the public-at-large; therefore, the 

company plans to use herbicides to spot treat poisonous plants at sites identified as 

having a risk of posing a health hazard. 

 



6  

Invasive Plant Species 

Invasive plant species are a significant concern throughout Massachusetts in areas 

that include ROW corridors where they can spread rapidly. Many of these non-native 

plant species were planted for their showy flowers, vigorous growth, erosion control and 

abundant fruits that attract wildlife. According to the Massachusetts Invasive Plant 

Advisory Group, "invasive plants" are non-native species that have spread into native or 

minimally managed plant systems in Massachusetts. 

https://www.mass.gov/service-details/invasive-plants  

These plants cause economic or environmental harm by developing self- 

sustaining populations and becoming dominant and/or disruptive to those systems. 

Eversource's program considers the management of invasive plants in specific 

locations. 

To ensure the accurate identification of vegetation, all vegetation management 

contractors are required to supply personnel trained to recognize plant species typically 

found growing on utility sites and to recognize the difference between compatible and 

incompatible vegetation. The identification or early successional communities that are 

preferred on an electric ROW will be included in this training. 

 

4. INTEGRATED VEGETATION MANAGEMENT 
 

333 CMR 11.01(1) requires that all rights-of-way managers “Ensure that an 

Integrated Pest Management (IPM) approach to vegetation management is utilized on all 

rights-of-way covered by 333 CMR 11.00.” The purpose of this VMP is to advance the 

consistent and safe operation of Eversource’s ROW using the appropriate industry 

standard IVM program. Eversource’s IVM program will use mechanical, chemical, and 

cultural control methods. Mechanical and chemical control methods are used to facilitate 

development of a low-growing plant community. These methods of converting to and 

sustaining a low growing plant community are referred to herein as “cultural control.” 

 
 

http://www.mass.gov/service-details/invasive-plants
http://www.mass.gov/service-details/invasive-plants


7  

Eversource’s IVM program takes into consideration all factors involved in the 

maintenance and operation of electric ROW that includes: 

• Conditions existing on its ROW such as topography and hydrology. 

• The most current treatment methods. 

• The intent to prevent unreasonable adverse effects to the environment and the 
safety and health of non-target organisms including humans. 

• Cost-effectiveness of the treatment both for Eversource and their customers, 
including the need to deliver energy products safely and economically. 

• Monitor the result of treatments to compare actual conditions to desired 
future conditions to improve the program.3  

 
There is no single definition of IVM that suits every situation and every entity. 

According to the United State Environmental Protection Agency, Office of Pesticide 

Programs: 

“Integrated Vegetation Management (IVM) is generally defined as the 
practice of promoting desirable, stable, low-growing plant communities -
that will resist invasion by tall growing tree species-through the use of 
appropriate, environmentally sound, and cost-effective control methods. 
These methods can include a combination of chemical, biological, 
cultural, mechanical, and/or manual treatments. The IVM approach 
strives to manage vegetation and the environment by balancing the 
benefits of: Cost, Control, Environmental quality, Public health, and 
Regulatory compliance.” 

 
   Integrated Vegetation Management Fact Sheet (October, 2008) (epa.gov) 
 

Eversource’s IVM program follows a combination of mechanical (mechanical—

handheld and large equipment—methods) treatment typically every four years and 

herbicide (chemical methods) applications the year thereafter that support the ability to 

convert to a low growing plant community (cultural method). 

Plant life is governed by the relatively predictable process of change in 

composition or structure of ecological succession. Succession strives towards the mature 

(climax) forest but may be interrupted by natural or human disturbances both 

intentionally and accidentally. IVM programs are an intentional human disturbance  

         that encourage early successional communities. This is achieved by discouraging the 
 

3Christopher A. Nowak & Benjamin D Ballard. “A Framework for Applying Integrated Vegetation 
Management on Rights-of-Way.” Journal of Arboriculture 31(1) (January 2005): 28-37. 

https://www.epa.gov/sites/default/files/2016-03/documents/ivm_fact_sheet.pdf


8  

 establishment of, and when necessary, removing certain types of vegetation.  

  Eversource’s approach reduces the amount of herbicide used by using selective  

  herbicides/application techniques at the lowest effective label rate, timing   

  applications for maximum effect, avoiding fixed application schedules, using  

  mechanical control techniques where appropriate, and encouraging low growing  

  plant communities. 

Mechanical and chemical controls are the direct techniques used to target 

incompatible vegetation and include mowing, hand-cutting, side pruning, tree removals 

and herbicide applications. Utilizing these techniques allows lower growing plants the 

opportunity to form sustainable ecological communities. Regeneration of low growing 

native plants is an important part to our utility IVM program as it helps to stabilize the 

floor of the ROW with plants that are compatible with electrical conductors and allows 

access. Once achieved, early succession plant communities require less management 

thereby reducing future chemical use and disturbance caused by mechanical methods. 

There is over seventy years worth of evidence in New England showing that this 

approach has, over time, significantly reduced the per- acre application rate of herbicides 

on utility ROW and reduced the need for intensive mechanical controls. 5 Following this 

approach the company has over time, reduced the amount of herbicide used per acre.   

Under a mechanical only program our rights-of-way were once dominated by high stem 

densities of incompatible tree species.  

__________________________ 
5Environmental Consultants, Inc. “Study of the Impact of Vegetation Management Techniques on 
Wetlands for Utility Rights of Way in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.” Prepared for New England 
Electric et.al, 1989; Environmental Consultants, Inc. “Determination of the Effectiveness of Herbicide 
Buffer Zones in Protecting Water Quality on New York State Powerline Rights-of-Way.” Final report for 
the Empire State Electric Energy Research Corporation, 1991; K.H. Deubert. “Studies on the Fate of 
Garlon 3A and Tordon 101 Used in Selective Foliar Application in the Maintenance of Utility 
Rights of Way in Eastern Massachusetts.” Final Report prepared for New England Electric et.al., 1985. 
N.H. Nickerson, G.E. Moore, and A.D. Cutter. “Study of the Environmental Fates of Herbicides in Wetland 
Soils on Electric Utility Rights-of-Way in Massachusetts over the Short Term.” Final Report prepared for 
New England Electric et.al, December 1994; Matt Hickler, NHESP approved Review Biologist, Reports for 
TransCanada, National Grid, NSTAR Electric, and Northeast Utilities under 321 CMR 10.00 
Massachusetts Endangered Species Act Regulations, 2006-2010; “Utility Transmission Forestry Herbicide 
Use Summary Records” for NSTAR Electric, Vermont Electric Power Company, TransCanada Hydro 
Northeast, Inc and National Grid USA Electric Companies (see National Grid 5 year VMP 2009-2013, p. 
9); C.A. Nowak and L.P. Abrahamson, “Vegetation Management on Electric Transmission Line Rights-of- 
Way in New York State: The Stability Approach to Reducing Herbicide Use.” Proceedings of the 
International Conference on Forest Vegetation Management, Auburn University, April 1993. 



9  

  

5. MECHANICAL CONTROLS 

Mechanical controls include hand cutting, mowing of trees and incompatible 

brush, side pruning and removal of mature trees. Eversource vendors comply with the 

ANSI A300 (part1) for Tree Care Operations - Tree, Shrub, and other Woody Plant 

Management - Standards Practices (Pruning). The following section lists their uses and 

sets some basic guidelines. 

 
HAND CUTTING 

Definition: 
The use of chainsaws and brush saws to remove the stem of woody vegetation 
at ground level leaving the plant’s root system intact. 
Uses: 

• To remove incompatible vegetation on the floor (Illustration 1) of the ROW. 
• In chemical restricted sensitive areas where herbicides are prohibited. 
• Allows for selectivity in targeting incompatible vegetation. 

Operational Practices: 

• Trees are cut as close to the ground as possible so that stump height is 
close to the root flare. 

• Cut stems are windrowed or chipped. 
• Depending on the situation windrow are positioned parallel along the edge 

of the ROW corridor and should not exceed 2ft. in height. 
• Cut woody vegetation in yards or recreational sites will be chipped and 

disposed of or removed to adjacent areas. 
• Cut woody vegetation is not left on or across paths, roads, fence lines, stone 

walls or in waterways or in such a manner that would permit it to wash into 
these areas. 

• The placement of cut woody vegetation must comply with applicable State 
Fire Marshall’s regulations. 

• Chipping is used on sites designated by Eversource when leaving brush 
piles is prohibited or impractical. 

• No chips shall be left in wetlands. 
• All cut cherry and red maple is removed from private property active 

pastures as it is a hazard to grazing animals. 
 

MOWING 

Definition: 
The cutting, severing, of vegetation by rotary or flail mowers. These mowers, 



10  

usually ranging from 3-8 feet wide, are typically mounted on a four-wheel drive 
rubber-tired tractors or tracked vehicles. 
Uses: 

• Can be the preferred mechanical technique, especially on sites where 
extremely tall and dense incompatible vegetation makes hand cutting 
inefficient and expensive. 

• Where herbicides are prohibited. 
• To allow access for inspections of vegetation conditions during ROW patrols. 

 
Operational Practices: 

• Mowing may be restricted by terrain conditions such as steep, rocky sites 
or wet soils. 

• It requires the use of hand cutting methods next to obstructions such as 
stone walls and fence lines. 

• Mowing brush can throw large chips and debris great distances from the 
cutting equipment and requires employing someone to prevent people and 
animals from coming too close to the work site. 

• Measures may include matting of wetland areas, installation of silt fences 
and chipping and removal of all debris. 

• The bounds will be accurately located, to minimize erosion and potential 
damage due to ruts, and to minimize impact to the environment. 
 

SIDE PRUNING 

Definition: 
Side pruning of tree branches growing on or near a ROW. This management 
technique is usually accomplished using an aerial lift mounted on an off-road 
vehicle or mechanical side trimmer. Tree climbing is sometimes employed in 
situations where terrain prevents the passage of equipment. 
Uses: 

• Remove incompatible vegetation from growing into the conductors from the side. 

• Maintaining the edge definition of the ROW corridor. 
• To facilitate, expedite, and increases efficiency of the inspections 

of vegetation conditions during ROW patrols. 
 

Operational Practices: 

• All pruning activities are performed in accordance with proper 
arboriculture practices to insure the health and aesthetic value of the trees 
as well as all applicable regulations. 

 
 
 



11  

REMOVALS 
Definition: 
Removal of trees that have become a hazard to the ROW or that may have been 
overlooked in previous treatment cycles and allowed to encroach the ROW and 
the lines and conductors. In these cases, trees will be removed in such a way that 
they cannot strike wires, guy wires, structures, appurtenances, and adjacent 
properties. In most cases, these trees will be addressed using aerial lift equipment, 
but may require climbing where terrain dictates. Larger overhanging limbs may 
require rigging to safely control the fall of cut material. Trees that do not 
overhang or directly threaten the line may be “pieced down” by removing 
material from the top down in small sections that cannot strike the line or cause 
damage. In cases of severe encroachment on a larger scale, qualified and 
appropriate timber harvesting equipment and contractors may be employed to 
clear the ROW up to the edge of easement. 
Uses: 

• To keep trees from striking electric conductors, guy wires and structures. 
• Maintaining the edge definition of the ROW corridor. 
• To facilitate, expedite, and increases efficiency of the inspections 

of vegetation conditions during ROW patrols. 
 

 
Operational Practices: 

• All removal activities will be performed by qualified line clearance 
arborists. 

• Measures may include matting of wetland area, installation of silt fences 
and chipping and removal of all debris. 

• Care will be taken to accurately locate the bounds of activity, to minimize 
erosion and potential damage due to ruts, and to minimize impact to the 
environment. 

 
 BENEFITS AND LIMITATIONS 

Eversource’s mechanical controls are the method of management where the use 

of herbicides may be prohibited or restricted in various sensitive areas.  Sensitive areas 

include defined distances per regulation near drinking water supplies (both private and 

public), wetlands or water over wetlands, rivers, certified/potential vernal pools, and 

agricultural or inhabited areas (see Section nine). Certain Priority Habitats defined by 

Massachusetts Division of Fisheries and Wildlife, Natural Heritage Endangered Species 

Program (NHESP) call for the use of mowing instead of, or in conjunction with, 

herbicide applications to encourage or restrict the height of various host plants. 



12  

Mechanical treatment methods are also used in the following situations: on 

vegetation over 15 feet in mature height; in preparation for some herbicide treatments; in 

individual areas deemed as sensitive; around structures; on access roads; to clear 

easements; and in areas of thick impenetrable vegetation. In large areas of high-density 

stems where incompatible species have exceeded maximum herbicide treatment heights, 

a mechanical treatment may be more practical, followed in one or two growing seasons 

by an herbicide application to obtain effective control. This includes along the easement 

edges where trees are cleared or pruned to maintain the width of the ROW. Upon 

establishing the easement edge, the cleared area of the ROW is managed by the Wire 

Zone-Border Zone approach using the appropriate treatment methods. The electric utility 

easements are areas of a property that were defined for use by utility companies when the 

property was first put on a property map. 

Mechanical controls on their own are only a short-term solution to controlling 

vegetation on a ROW system. Mechanically cut vegetation often re-sprouts with 

multiples of stems from dormant buds on the root collar resulting in a stem density that is 

significantly greater than the original vegetation cut. An annual program that uses only 

mechanical treatment cycles increases dense areas of woody vegetation. This vegetation 

competes with and dominates the low growing vegetation Eversource wishes to 

encourage. 

When relying on mechanical control methods alone, dense areas of incompatible 

vegetation can become costly and dangerous to hand-cut with power saws and are best 

controlled by mowing. Large mowing equipment, although an excellent IVM tool, can 

have a negative impact on compatible plant communities whose establishment is crucial 

to developing successful cultural controls. Mowing can also create a potential seedbed 

for fast growing, pioneering incompatible species such as poplars, cherries, birches, and 

various invasive species. This can increase the frequency of the maintenance cycle and 

destroy the dominance of stable, diverse early successional plant communities. Similarly, 

sensitive areas, such as wetlands and residential areas can be adversely impacted when 

crossed by mechanical maintenance equipment. 

 



13  

6. CHEMICAL CONTROLS 
Chemical controls are herbicide applications which include foliar, basal, and cut 

stump surface treatments (CST), and plant growth regulator (PGR) applications. They 

are a vital year-round component of an IVM program geared to establishing and 

stabilizing early successional plant communities and promoting the development of 

cultural controls to maintain this goal. The following sections describes guideline and 

application methods. 

 
GENERAL GUIDELINES 

 
• Eversource requires an advance person or “prep-cutting” crew to patrol the ROW 

before the herbicide application operation. 

• Sensitive areas will be identified and appropriately measured and flagged, then 
verified and recorded when appropriate in cooperation with local water suppliers 
and conservation commissions. 

• Herbicides will NOT be applied during the following adverse weather conditions: 
 When the wind velocity is such that there is a high propensity to drift off 

target and/or during measurable precipitation, and no person shall apply 
herbicides in such a manner that results in drift into any No-spray Area. 

 During periods of heavy rainfall. 
 Foliar applications of volatile herbicides when temperatures exceed 89 

degrees Fahrenheit and low humidity. 
 CST or Basal application when deep snow (i.e., 6” plus or ice frozen 

on stem or stump) prevents adequate coverage of incompatible species 
to facilitate acceptable control. 

 Basal applications when the stems are excessively wet from moisture. 

• Herbicides are not applied: 
 To vegetation standing in surface water. 
 Within no spray areas per 333 CMR 11.00. 

 
FOLIAGE APPLICATIONS 

 
Definitions: 
The application of herbicides to fully developed leaves, stems, needles, or blades 
of a plant. 

 
Low Volume Foliar: 
Hand-operated pumps or motorized, backpack sprayers with herbicide 



14  

concentrations per the manufacturers’ label(s). The motorized backpack 
sprayer produces an air current that delivers the herbicide mixture from the 
portable spray tank to the targeted vegetation. The hand sprayer uses a 
column of water. In both cases, the amount of herbicide solution applied only 
dampens or lightly wets the targeted vegetation, instead of being applied to 
the point of run-off. This minimizes the amount of excess herbicide drip from 
incompatible species onto desirable ground cover. Low volume applications 
also eliminate the need to bring heavy equipment on the ROW for the 
transportation of significant quantities of herbicide solution. 

 
Modified Low Volume Foliar: 
Uniform, penetrating herbicide mixtures delivered to dense incompatible 
vegetation. This technique usually involves 200-to-500-gallon hydraulic 
sprayers mounted on a truck or tractor equipped with several hundred feet of 
hose and hand-held spray guns. The herbicide mixture can be directed to 
specific plants for spot treatments or broadcast for uniform coverage in dense 
thickets of nuisance plants such as poisonous or invasive plant species. 

Uses: 

• An effective control method in light and medium brush densities to kill target plant root 
systems. 

• Effective control of some invasive, nuisance and poisonous vegetation. 

• Allows for selectivity in targeting vegetation. 
General Guidelines: 

• Herbicides are mixed and applied per label instructions. 
• Low pressure foliar application equipment will be adjusted to apply a 

spray pattern that achieves effective control at the lowest application rate. 

• Application period usually extends from early June through the beginning 
of leaf drop in early fall. 

• Anti-drift agents are added to the mix or solution in all foliage 
applications to reduce the potential of herbicide drift beyond targeted 
vegetation—drift control agents reduce the break-up of sprays into fine 
droplets and offer increased selectivity, leaf tissue penetration, and 
herbicide deposition on targeted vegetation. 

• Foliar applications can be made, and are effective, in light mist conditions. 

• When foliar applications are stopped by rainfall, treatment will not resume 
until the rain ends and water no longer creates a shield to accept herbicide 
application. 

• No herbicide shall be applied when the wind velocity is such that there is 
a high propensity to drift off target and/or during measurable 



15  

 precipitation, and no person shall apply herbicides in such a manner that 
results in drift into any No-spray Area. 

LOW-VOLUME STEM BASAL 

Definition: 

• The selective application of herbicides in an oil solution to the lower 12- 
15 inches of the stem using a solid cone or flat fan nozzle. 

Uses: 

• Year-round application technique, except during deep snow conditions 
that cover the target area. 

• Typically employed during the non-foliage season when targeted stems 
are easier to identify without the interference of lush, tall grasses or ferns. 

Guidelines: 

• Utilizes hand-operated backpack sprayers. 

• Use a basal oil made for herbicide application to penetrate the bark. 

• Not an appropriate method to control high stem densities due to high 
herbicide rates per acre. 

• Extending the herbicide treatment period beyond the foliage 
season. 

• May be the appropriate choice for visually sensitive areas. 
 

CUT STUMP SURFACE TREATMENT (CST) 
 

Definition: 
The application of an herbicide mixture to the cut surface of a stump immediately 
following or during a cutting operation using an herbicide concentration, diluted 
in water or a non-freezing solution. 
Uses: 

• Year-round applications except during deep snow conditions that prevent 
cutting the stumps low enough. 

• Offers the opportunity to chemically treat incompatible vegetation where 
other methods are not possible. 

• Commonly used to prevent re-sprouts when hand cutting vegetation. 
Guidelines: 

• Application equipment includes low-volume, backpack, hand-pump 
sprayers; hand-held squirt bottles; paintbrushes, or sponge applicators. 



16  

• Only necessary to treat the outer edge of the cut surface (phloem and 
cambium tissue), regardless of the stump diameter. 

• Treatment made to cut stumps per label instructions. 

• Best to avoid using it during the season of bud swell to full leaf expansion. 

• Not practical in moderate to heavy stem densities. 

 
TREE GROWTH REGULATORS (TGR) 

Definition: 
Tree Growth Regulators (TGRs) are plant growth regulator chemicals that 
manage or reduce the potential growth rate of trees. 
Uses: 

• Useful especially along street distribution lines where repetitive trimming 
is necessary to maintain adequate tree-electric conductor clearances. 

• Can lengthen the time frame between trimming cycles and improve the 
aesthetics of street and yard trees that may otherwise require removal or 
severe pruning. 

Guidelines: 

• Applied as basal drench around the base of the tree. 

• Applied as a soil injection next to the buttress root zone. 

 
JUSTIFICATION AND RATIONALE FOR USE OF HERBICIDE 

Eversource is responsible to deliver energy products to its customers in a safe and 

efficient manner and to control vegetation on its ROW. To meet these obligations in an 

ecologically sound manner, as discussed above is best accomplished by stabilizing early 

successional ecological communities on ROW.6 Eversource needs to use all treatment 

methods available to encourage a landscape that is both accessible and sustainable. 

 
6Belisle, Francis. “Wildlife Use of Riparian Vegetation Buffer Zones in High Voltage Powerline Rights-of- 
Way in the Quebec Boreal Forest.” 7th International Symposium on Environmental Concerns in Rights-of- 
Way Management, 1999; Confer, John L. “Management, Vegetative Structure and Shrubland Birds of 
Rights-of-Way,” 7th International Symposium on Environmental Concerns in Rights-of-Way Management, 
1999; CVPS. “Central Vermont Public Service Corporations 2006 Strategy; T&D Forestry,”’ Rutland, 
VT, 2006; Niering, William A. “Roadside Use of Native Plants: Working with Succession, An Ecological 
Approach in Preserving Biodiversity.” Roadside Use of Native Plants: 
http://www.environment.fhwa.dot.gov/ecosystems/vegmgmt_rdsduse.asp. 

 

http://www.environment.fhwa.dot.gov/ecosystems/vegmgmt_rdsduse.asp


17  

In our IVM program, chemical controls are an important method to achieve long 

term vegetation control. Herbicides control the entire plant, including the root system. 

Eliminating the ability of the treated plants to return may allow compatible plants to take 

over the space resulting in a reduction of incompatible plants to work next cycle.  

This is achieved by scheduling herbicide applications to sustain acceptable vegetation 

control at minimal application rates, frequency, and results in a reduction of herbicide 

applied over time.7 This reduces environmental impacts and the amount of manpower 

and equipment required to manage the ROW.  This is a cost savings over multiple cycles 

as well as reducing the potential of unintended equipment leaks or damages from 

equipment. 

The herbicide formulations are applied selectively and by low-volume methods 

that dry quickly on the plant surface, this reduces the potential for off-target exposure. 

Additionally, anti-drift adjuvants that can be adjusted to accommodate changes in wind 

velocity are included in all foliage applications to further limit the likelihood of 

unintentional exposure to non-target organisms. Applications are not made in situations 

when there is a reasonable expectation that herbicides will drift from the targeted 

vegetation, or during measurable precipitation. 

The pesticide program of the Massachusetts Department of Agricultural 

Resources (MDAR) established a Sensitive Area Material List to help reduce the 

potential of any negative impact using herbicides in sensitive areas defined in 333 CMR 

11.04. All the herbicides on this list have gone through extensive testing to be considered 

for registration by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Before being included 

on the Sensitive Area Materials List, they go under further scrutiny by MDAR and 

Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MassDEP).  Eversource’s 

herbicide program has only used herbicides on the MDAR Sensitive Area Materials List: 

 https://www.mass.gov/service-details/rights-of-way-sensitive-area-materials-list 

Selective herbicides applications used according to the label do not adversely affect 

wetland plant composition or function according to the study cited in the Massachusetts 

Department of Food and Agriculture (DFA) Decision Concerning The Wetland Impact  
                7Utility Transmission Forestry Herbicide Use Summary Records; Nowak & Abrahamson. 

http://www.mass.gov/service-details/rights-of-way-sensitive-area-materials-list
http://www.mass.gov/service-details/rights-of-way-sensitive-area-materials-list


18  

 

Study Conducted Pursuant to 333 CMR 11.04(4)(c)(2)8 (Appendix 7). According to the 

1989 study by Environmental Consultants, Inc. quoted in the Decision, mechanical 

vegetation control techniques result in significantly greater impact on wetland 

composition and function. 

Herbicide applications can be more selective than mechanical treatment methods. 

Selective herbicide applications encourage plant species diversity when used to target 

only incompatible vegetation. They offer selectivity and can be used to encourage 

certain types of plants; for example, broadleaf vegetation can be controlled with little or 

no impact to grasses.  

  A continual cycle of selective herbicide applications as part of an IVM 

program, therefore, promotes low-growing plant communities while reducing the 

density of incompatible species and reduces the herbicide use rates over time.9 

  Selective herbicide applications can be much less destructive than mowing to 

nesting sites and the vegetation necessary for food and cover. Minor site disturbance is 

associated with selective herbicide applications. This is not to say that mowing is not a  

significant component in an IVM program. Both control methods need to be used in  

combination with hand cutting techniques to cover all situations. In fact, thoughtful, 

carefully planned, selective herbicide applications in combination with mechanical 

controls, where appropriate, promote wildlife habitat by encouraging plant species 

diversity.10 

 

8 DFA is now MDAR. 
9 John Gwozdz, Lewis Payne, Kendra Gorski, and Jim Kooser 2015. Herbicide Use Rates over Four Treatment Cycle: Proof the 
IVM tool is working Environmental Concerns in Rights-of-Way Management, 11th International Symposium, Halifax, Novia 
Scotia. 
10A brief list of examples includes W.C. Bramble and W.R. Burns. “A long-term ecological study of game 
food and cover on a sprayed utility right-of-way.” Bulletin No. 918, Purdue University (1974):16; Yahner. 
“Wildlife Response to More than 50 years of Vegetation Maintenance on a Pennsylvania U.S., Right-of- 
Way”: 123; James S. Marshall and L.W. Vandruff. Impact of Selective Herbicide Right-of-Way Vegetation 
Treatment on Birds. Environmental Management 30(6) (December 2002): 801-806. 

 



19  

Herbicide application equipment that is well maintained incorporating the most 

up-to-date features and the requirement that licensed contractors apply herbicides per 

label instructions minimizes environmental site damage. Herbicides, particularly when 

applied selectively by low-volume methods, dry quickly on the plant surface, thereby 

significantly restricting the greatest potential for dermal exposure. The use of anti-drift  

adjuvants in all foliage applications that can be adjusted to accommodate changes in wind 

velocity further limit the likelihood of unintentional exposure to non-target organisms. 

The selection of the herbicides coupled with the appropriate treatment methods is 

made with consideration given to the environmental sensitivity of a ROW or site within a 

ROW. For example, most conifers which do not re-sprout like hardwoods, are generally 

not treated since herbicide is not necessary for control.  

The herbicides, applications and other treatment methods used on any given 

ROW are selected based on site sensitivity, species composition and density. Herbicides 

will not be used in certain areas if site sensitivity, regulations, new restrictions, or species 

composition or height require otherwise. Eversource chooses the most appropriate 

treatment methods to meet its goals, objectives, and obligations. The most 

responsible solution is to use all three components of IVM where appropriate. 

As discussed under Section 4, Integrated Vegetation Management, a consistent 

program of using herbicide is essential to effective management of the ROW and to 

reducing the quantity of herbicide use over time. 

Eversource began implementing an IVM system-wide program including  

mechanical and chemical methods in 2003.  Under this program, herbicide was applied 

to target plants on a 4-year cycle at an average rate per acre of applied herbicide mixes at 

approximately 7 gallons per acre which may contain active herbicide of between 3% and 

10% depending on the mix for the target plant species. For ROWs that had a program of 

a consistent 4-year cycle, incompatible woody stems were reduced, and a more diverse 

and desirable understory of low growing vegetation was established.  By 2022, the 

average rate of applied herbicide to maintain these ROWs was reduced to 3-5 gallons per 

acre.    

 



20  

Herbicide application on the Cape & Vineyard ROWs was stopped in 2009 and 

only mechanical methods were used.  Due to the cessation of chemical management, 

the initial rates of herbicide were expected and did revert to an application rate closer 

to the 7 gallons per acre due to the higher stem density of incompatible plants.  Plants 

that were controlled by mechanical methods and that continue to have a viable root 

system re-sprouted with multiple shoots and have spread vegetatively 

When the herbicide treatment cycle is consistent, there is a reduction in the 

targeted (incompatible) plants and the need for both herbicide and mechanical 

treatment is reduced.  Over time, with a 4-year cycle of consistent application, the 

amount of herbicide required to maintain ROW levels off to a minimum amount.  The 

expectation for the Cape and Vineyard would be that, over time, with a consistent, 

uninterrupted cycle of herbicide treatment, incompatible plant populations will be 

reduced, and the per acre rate of application will be reduced. With less incompatible 

vegetation, mechanical controls can be concentrated on side pruning and removing 

trees at the easement/fee edges of the ROW. 
` 
 

7. DEFINITION, IDENTIFICATION AND TREATMENT OF 

SENSITIVE AREAS 

Per 333 CMR 11.02, sensitive areas are "any areas within rights-of-way...in which 

public health, environmental or agricultural concerns warrant special protection to further 

minimize risks of unreasonable adverse effects." They include, but are not limited to, the 

following: 

Water Supplies 
- Zone I’s 
- Zone II’s 
- IWPA’s (Interim Wellhead Protection Areas) 
- Class A Surface Water Sources 
- Tributaries to a Class A Surface Water Source 
- Class B Drinking Water Intakes 
- Private Wells  

 



21  

Surface Waters 
- Wetlands 
- Water Over Wetlands 
- The Mean Annual High -Water Line of a River 
- The Outer Boundary of a Riverfront Area 
- Certified Vernal Pools 

Cultural Sites 
- Agricultural Areas 
- Inhabited Areas 

Wildlife Areas 
- Certified Vernal Pool Habitat 
- Priority Habitat 

 
Sensitive areas consist of no-spray areas in which herbicide use is prohibited, 

limited spray areas, and areas that require sensitive area restrictions. Protecting these 

environmentally sensitive sites is accomplished by establishing limited spray and no- 

spray areas and treatment restrictions based on the sensitivity of each site and the 

requirement to minimize any unreasonable adverse impacts within that area (See 

Appendix 5). 

The herbicides included in the Herbicides Recommended for Use in Sensitive 

Areas List (Sensitive Area Materials List) will be applied in limited spray areas according 

to the application restrictions in 333 CMR 11.04 or in the case of Priority Habitat, 

approval of the Yearly Operation Plan (YOP) by the Natural Heritage and Endangered 

Species Program (NHESP) of the Massachusetts Department of Fisheries and Wildlife.  

A current copy of the Sensitive Areas Materials List and MDAR approved active 

ingredient fact sheets are available at: 

https://www.mass.gov/service-details/rights-of-way-vegetation-management-vmps-yops- 
and-notices 

 

IDENTIFICATION OF SENSITIVE AREAS 

Sensitive areas can be divided into two additional categories that help identify and 

treat them: “readily identifiable in the field” and “not readily identifiable in the field.” 

Readily identifiable in the field areas will be identified, marked, and treated when 

appropriate, marked according to all applicable restrictions listed in 333 CMR 11.00. Not 

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.mass.gov_service-2Ddetails_rights-2Dof-2Dway-2Dvegetation-2Dmanagement-2Dvmps-2Dyops-2Dand-2Dnotices&d=DwMFAw&c=Rt9MH7x8aPAwEY3f-URIJch7v0PDyVhHmVdpquKSoc0&r=8x5o95Jx25OHh9BOG6olHVzmcT5mhfLnFK7Ng7kNIK4&m=CH9sdqUHU10MPa0YUaVRS04FNh357Uxu1DiHs7aa6EI&s=f9puW4IGTobgeId6JBc8czNg2Y5mquD2zMDyrnpBQbA&e
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.mass.gov_service-2Ddetails_rights-2Dof-2Dway-2Dvegetation-2Dmanagement-2Dvmps-2Dyops-2Dand-2Dnotices&d=DwMFAw&c=Rt9MH7x8aPAwEY3f-URIJch7v0PDyVhHmVdpquKSoc0&r=8x5o95Jx25OHh9BOG6olHVzmcT5mhfLnFK7Ng7kNIK4&m=CH9sdqUHU10MPa0YUaVRS04FNh357Uxu1DiHs7aa6EI&s=f9puW4IGTobgeId6JBc8czNg2Y5mquD2zMDyrnpBQbA&e


22  

readily identifiable in the field areas will likewise be marked and treated when 

appropriate, but they are identified in the field using data marked on maps and collected 

in the YOP and notification processes. 
 

• Sensitive areas usually identifiable in the field, include but are not limited to 
surface water, some private and public water supplies, wetlands, inhabited and 
agricultural areas. 

• Sensitive areas not usually identifiable in the field, including, but are not limited 
to designated public surface water supplies, public ground water supplies, some 
private drinking supplies, the first 400 feet of water supply tributaries, certified 
vernal pools, and Priority Habitat of State-listed Species identified by NHESP. 

 
As appropriate, therefore, sensitive areas will be identified and when necessary, 

marked in the field by Eversource staff, an experienced vegetation management treatment 

crew point person, individuals trained in the identification of sensitive areas that require 

the use of GIS (geographic information systems) and GPS equipment, and/or by a 

NHESP approved botanist trained in the delineation of state-listed species. 

Eversource and contractor personnel assigned the task of identifying sensitive 

areas in the field will use the following sources and methods: 

• Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MassDEP) water 
supply maps /GIS mapping layers available through MassGIS.  MassDEP does 
not regulate private wells.  However, MassDEP maintains thousands of entries 
in the Well Driller Database (which includes private drinking water wells), adds 
wells, makes updates as needed and has been implementing the well location 
project which confirms and improves the locational accuracy of private 
wells.  The well driller database is available to the public through Mass. EEA’s 
portal at https://www.mass.gov/service-details/well-database 

• MDAR records of identified private wells along the ROW. 

• Correspondence, meetings, and input from municipalities within the forty-five-
day YOP and twenty-one-day municipal right-of-way notification letter 
(including Board of Health, Conservation Commission, Public Water Supplier 
and Select Board/Mayor/Town Administrator) review and comment periods and 
the 48-hour newspaper notification (under 333 CMR 11.06 & 11.07 and Chapter 
85 of the Acts of 2000). 

• Correspondence, meetings, and input from Eversource's abutter and/or 
landowner notification procedure, as applicable. 

• Eversource’s maps, records, and institutional knowledge. 

• Any additional pertinent information that becomes available during the YOP 

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.mass.gov/service-details/well-database__;!!A_2VBGNDm7Y!s5pDnSQBFl0mnPEDYKdRhJxFLExlFOT1IKHRXMQ5pyg_ocHQ2-7u6jkyFIbAW9WsqDh96b3j3RNb6ARGUkwFC6_EEXYR2F_3CzEo$


23  

process and throughout the five years of this VMP. 

• A point person who verifies identified sensitive areas and any additional areas that 
may require special precautions. 

• United States Geological Survey (USGS) topographical maps. 

• Information from contractor’s knowledge and records. 

• Information from MassGIS. 

• Confidential information from NHESP. 

• A copy of the YOP and VMP. 

• Treatment crew(s) are required to have the following references on the job site to 
help identify sensitive areas: 

 Topographical maps (electronic or paper) 
 Copy of YOP 
 Any additional information that may become available. 

 
Maps are a resource and a tool for both the public and the vegetation management 

crews, therefore, they contain the data needed to identify, mark, and treat sensitive areas 

appropriately. 

Maps included in the YOP are updated every year as new data becomes available. 

Some sensitive areas are contained on the base USGS topographic maps such as 

applicable Wetland Resource Areas (Rivers, Wetlands, etc.). The most current data 

available through MassGIS such as public water supplies, certified vernal pools, and any 

data that Eversource has collected to date on items such as private wells are then added 

on top of the USGS data. At the time of treatment, additional sensitive areas will be 

added to the maps utilized by Eversource’s vegetation management contractors. Please 

note that to enable any viewer to see the essential information on the maps, Zone II's and 

other limited spray areas are not mapped in areas where Eversource only uses herbicides 

on the MDAR Rights-of-Way Sensitive Area Materials List. 

The locations of the Priority Habitats of state listed species as regulated by the 

Natural Heritage Endangered Species Program (NHESP) of the Division of Fisheries & 

Wildlife are only included on field maps to contractors who sign a confidentiality 

agreement expressly for this purpose. A map layer of Priority Habitats is available to the 

general public at http://www.mass.gov/anf/research-and-tech/it-serv-and-

support/application-serv/office- of-geographic-information-massgis but it is neither 

http://www.mass.gov/anf/research-and-tech/it-serv-and-support/application-serv/office-of-geographic-information-massgis
http://www.mass.gov/anf/research-and-tech/it-serv-and-support/application-serv/office-of-geographic-information-massgis
http://www.mass.gov/anf/research-and-tech/it-serv-and-support/application-serv/office-of-geographic-information-massgis


24  

specific to areas of concern for herbicide applications nor does it include data on the 

individual species since the exact location and details of their habitat is protected. 

 
CONTROL STRATEGIES FOR SENSITIVE AREAS 

Mandated sensitive areas will be treated following the restrictions in applicable 

state and federal regulations. Eversource also reserves the right to designate additional 

areas as areas that require special treatment considerations including, but not limited to, 

landowner agreements, visual or environmental impact considerations, and other 

considerations that arise during the treatment cycles. 

Treatments in all sensitive areas will follow the operational guidelines and 

restrictions listed above, as well as the guidelines described in the Sensitive Area Table in 

Appendix 5. 

Wetlands 

Pursuant to 333 CMR 11.04 (4) (c) (2), based upon the results of two ROW 

wetland impact studies (see appendix 5), the MDAR in consultation with the 

Department of Environmental Protection and the Rights-of-Way Advisory Panel, 

made a determination that herbicides, when used at various utilities including electric 

lines, under the guidance of an IVM program and other conditions as set forth in the 

determination, have less impact on wetlands than mechanical only techniques. 

Therefore, in accordance with the conditions of the determination, Eversource will 
selectively apply herbicides to wetland sites, except within ten feet of standing and 

flowing water and to conifers which will be cut (Appendix 5). 

Public and Private Water Supplies 
A Sole Source Aquifer (SSA) is an aquifer that has been designated by the United 

States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) as the sole or principal source of 

drinking water for an area. By definition, SSA is an aquifer that supplies at least 50% 

of the drinking water consumed in the area overlying the aquifer. As of August 2008, 

EPA Region 1, New England Office recognizes the Cape & Vineyard SSA as 

authorized by Section 1424(e) of the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974 (Public Law 

93-523, 42 U.S.C. 300 et. seq).  Eversource is aware of the nature and value of local 

ground water resources and complies with regulations to protect the resource. 



25  

Appropriate sources and references will be consulted to determine the location of 

public and private water supplies. Eversource’s YOP maps will include all known 

public and private water supplies at the time of printing using the sources listed 

above, and the mapping information used by contract treatment crews will be updated 

as necessary during the treatment cycle. 

To aid in the public and private water supply identification process, under 333 

CMR 11.01(3)11, Eversource requests that during the various federal, state, and 

voluntary notification processes and during the treatment cycle, that public and 

municipal agencies and private entities and individuals share information on new or 

unidentified public and private water supplies. 

Identified private drinking supplies within one hundred feet of a ROW are 

included in our permanent records and maps, and landowners are encouraged to 

post signs on the edge of the ROW to help identify private water supplies (the no-

spray treatment area is fifty feet from a private well).  

A point person will patrol the ROW to verify sensitive areas and buffers are 

appropriately measured and when applicable flagged and recorded for permanent 

record. 

Massachusetts Endangered Species Act 

Eversource recognizes the importance of the Massachusetts Endangered Species 

Act, M.G.L.C. 131 A, and its significance to ROW vegetation management. 

Eversource will comply with all applicable portions of this Act and the regulations 

promulgated thereunder. Eversource will also follow the rules and prohibitions 

directed at human activities which “Take” or alter their Significant Habitat (as of this 

printing there are no designated Significant Habitat in Massachusetts on Eversource 

ROW or statewide). 

 

 

11333 CMR 11.01(3): “[The Specific goals of 333 CMR 11.00 are to] Ensure ample opportunity for public 
and municipal agency input on potential impacts of herbicide application to rights-of-way in 
environmentally sensitive areas.” 

 



26  

321 CMR 10.14, Massachusetts Endangered Species Act Regulations, Part II 

Exemptions and 333 CMR 11.04(3) (a-c) exempts utility ROW vegetation 

management from the permit process under the following conditions: 

(12) The management of vegetation within existing utility rights-of-way provided 
that the management is carried out in accordance with a vegetation management 
plan approved in writing by the Division prior to the commencement of work for 
which a review fee shall be charged, the amount of which shall be determined by 
the commissioner of administration under the provisions of M.G.L. c.7, § 3B… 

[and for roadside distribution lines] 
(6) installation, repair, replacement, and maintenance of utility lines (gas, water, 
sewer, phone, electrical) for which all associated work is within ten feet from the 
edge of existing paved roads. 
To comply with exemption 10.14(12), Eversource will submit this VMP and 

YOPs to the NHESP for review. 

The NHESP has delineated areas as Priority Habitat based on the "Best Scientific 

Evidence Available" to protect State-listed species from a "take."   

Under the approval process, details about the Priority Habitat of state-listed species 

that might be affected by our activities and management recommendations are shared 

with Eversource under strict confidentiality agreements.12  

Using this data and best management practices, Eversource and contract personnel 

will follow the appropriate vegetation management treatment methods within these 

sensitive areas taking all practical means and measures to modify ROW vegetation 

management procedures to avoid damage to state-listed species and their habitat. 

To identify Priority Habitats, Eversource personnel, NHESP approved review 

botanists and vegetation management crews must use proper identification 

procedures. Contractors are, therefore, required to train their personnel to recognize 

the location of Priority Habitats using one of the following tools: paper maps, GPS 

coordinates and/or GIS systems. 

    ______________________ 
12A map layer of Priority Habitat is available to the general public at http://www.mass.gov/anf/research- 
and-tech/it-serv-and-support/application-serv/office-of-geographic-information-massgis , but it is neither 
specific to the areas of concern for herbicide applications nor does it have detailed data on the species of 
concern; the exact location and details of their habitat is kept confidential for their protection. 

http://www.mass.gov/anf/research-and-tech/it-serv-and-support/application-serv/office-of-geographic-information-massgis
http://www.mass.gov/anf/research-and-tech/it-serv-and-support/application-serv/office-of-geographic-information-massgis


27  

8. OPERATIONAL GUIDELINES FOR APPLICATORS RELATIVE TO 
HERBICIDE USE 

Eversource relies on independent vegetation management contractors and requires 

that they comply with all applicable federal and state laws and regulations. This VMP, 

the YOPs and information in the notification documentation are a part of the operational 

guidelines for applicators relative to herbicide use. Therefore, according to the 

regulations, at a minimum, the contractor’s application crews shall have a copy of the 

YOP accessible at the work site. 

In addition to the guidelines contained in other sections of the VMP, this section 

sets forth the general operational guidelines for vegetation management. 

Eversource will alter or add to these guidelines based on potential future changes 

or additions to state and federal regulations that apply to herbicide applications and all 

changes or additions must be approved by MDAR.  

 
EVERSOURCE PERSONNEL 

 
The following individual is responsible for monitoring, supervising, and 
coordinating vegetation management programs (Eversource may direct 
contractors to communicate with other Eversource personnel): 

 
William Hayes, Senior Supervisor 
Eversource Energy, 
Transmission Vegetation Management  
247 Station Drive, SW-1036 
Westwood, MA 02090-9230 
781-441- 3932 (office) 

 
Eversource arborist(s) will inform the contractor which ROW will be treated, the 
range of treatment dates and any other specification required to complete the job. 

 
Eversource will provide ROW maps with treatment restriction lists and written 
instructions outlining any special treatment considerations or instructions. 

 
Contractors will notify the Eversource company representative(s) of any questions or 
complaints from the public and/or government agencies that relate to ROW 
vegetation management. Eversource will deal with these complaints or questions in a 
timely fashion. 

 



28  

CONTRACTOR SAFETY, CONTRACT AND LEGAL COMPLIANCE GUIDELINES 
 

• Contractors must provide qualified, personnel who have been trained to recognize 
and identify compatible and incompatible vegetation and are knowledgeable in 
the safe and proper use of both mechanical and chemical vegetation management 
techniques. 

• All personnel applying herbicides in Massachusetts must hold a pesticide 
applicator license and must work under the on-site supervision of a certified 
applicator, with a Category 40 certification. 

• Herbicides must be handled and applied only in accordance with label instructions. 

• Mixing will be done according to University of Massachusetts Extension Pesticide Mixing and 
Loading Best Management Practices (BMP). 

• Contractors must not start work without the appropriate maps, restriction 
lists, landowner notifications and mixing rate instructions. 

• Contractors must follow the latest revisions of all industry standards including, 
but not limited to all applicable safety standards under the Occupational Safety 
and Health Act (OSHA) including 1910.269, Electric Power Generation, 
Transmission, and Distribution; ANSI Z133 & ANSI 300 standards, and 
Eversource Safety Procedures. 

• All contract personnel must follow label instructions regarding Personal 
Protective Equipment (PPE). 

• Applicators must immediately cease operations if adverse conditions or 
other circumstances warrant. 

• Access to a ROW will be using established roadways whenever possible. 

• All gates shall be closed. 

• Care shall be exercised to prevent the rutting or destruction of roadways, fields, 
or any other form of access. 

• No litter of any kind will be left on the ROW or adjoining land. 

 
CONTRACTOR DAILY TASKS 

 
• Call the appropriate Eversource personnel. 

• In compliance with both regulations and Eversource policy, the contractors’ 
foreman or senior crew member must complete daily vegetation management 
reports that include: 
 Date, name, and address of vegetation management contractor(s). 
 Identification of site or work area. 
 List of crew members. 
 Type of equipment and hours used, both mechanical and chemical 



29  

 Method of application and description of incompatible vegetation 
 Amount, concentration, product name of herbicide(s), adjuvants and 

dilutants (EPA registration numbers must be on file). 
 Weather conditions. 
 Notation of any unusual conditions or incidents, including public 

inquiries. 
 Recording and/or verification of sensitive areas on ROW maps. 

 
• All required forms will be distributed to the contractors by the Eversource 

representative(s). 

• Eversource request that contractor(s) call if they see a hazard tree. 

• Contractors must follow the Specifications noted in the Request for Proposal. 
 

EQUIPMENT 
 

• Eversource will not dictate the exact equipment to be used by the contractors, 
instead, all equipment shall be of adequate design to produce professional quality 
results. 

• Equipment must be maintained in good working condition, including being 
calibrated as appropriate. 

• Care and common sense shall be exercised when moving vehicles and equipment. 
 

LANDOWNERS/ABUTTERS 
 

Landowners/abutters are individuals whose property is either under Eversource's 
ROW easements/fee land and/or abuts the ROW. 

 
• Landowners will always be treated with courtesy and respect. 

• If a landowner demands vegetation maintenance cease, the contractor should 
remove the crew and equipment off the property, inform the appropriate 
Eversource representative as soon as possible. 

• When addressing complaints from a landowner, or other concerned 
person, notice will be given to the appropriate authorities at MDAR. 

 

RESULTS 
 

• Vegetation management programs must result in a control level on target 
vegetation stem count on a per span basis of at least 90% under 6 feet, and 100% 
6 feet and greater, or the contractor may be held responsible to re-work areas that 
do not meet required results.  

• Vegetation management crews will exercise care to ensure low-growing 



30  

compatible vegetation and other non-target organisms are not unreasonably 
affected by the application of herbicides. 

• Unreasonable site damage or destruction during any phase of the vegetation 
management operation by the contractor, his agents, or employees, will be 
repaired by said contractor to Eversource's satisfaction. Eversource evaluates 
claims promptly based upon an internal investigation and the information 
provided. Once the investigation is complete, Eversource will contact the 
claimant with the results.  

 

9. ALTERNATIVE LAND USES 
 

Wherever practical, as determined by the Senior Arborist or Eversource 

management, Eversource will cooperate with landowners through whose property 

Eversource owns easements, to facilitate "alternative land use" practices by the 

landowner's that may reduce or eliminate the need for vegetation management by 

Eversource. 

Acceptable uses may include but are not limited to an approved lawn, garden, or 

crops with compatible species of plants, golf courses, parking lots, approved by 

Eversource Energy. Any alternative land use proposed by a landowner within an 

electrical transmission easement must be reviewed by Eversource. Eversource will 

review a properly submitted proposal and consider conditional approval. The submittal 

should be addressed to: Supervisor, T & D Rights and Survey, Eversource Energy, 

Eastern MA, 247 Station Drive, Mail Stop SE210, Westwood, MA 02090. Any approval 

by the Company is given in the form of a written license only and with the understanding 

that Eversource’s easement rights are in no way diminished nor does the company 

assume any liability. 



31  

10. REMEDIAL SPILL AND EMERGENCY PLAN 

Eversource contracts with independent, professional, certified herbicide 

applicators that are responsible for the containment, clean up and reporting of chemical 

spills or accidents. The following is a guide to the information sources that, according to 

various regulations, must be available to the treatment crew in the event of a chemical 

spill or emergency. 

TYPES OF CHEMICAL SPILLS THAT REQUIRE ACTION 

Chemicals include, but are not limited to the following: 

• Herbicides 
• Bar and Chain Oil 
• Motor & Hydraulic Oil 
• Diesel Fuel 
• Gasoline 
• Title 3 Hazmat Materials 

REQUIRED SPILL RESPONSE EQUIPMENT 

As a minimum, the ROW crew shall have available on the job site: 

• VMP and YOP with emergency contact lists 
• Safety Data Sheets and product labels 
• Product Fact Sheets 
• Appropriate absorbent material such as “speedi dri” or “soak up” 
• Shovel 
• Broom 
• Flagging 
• Leak proof container 
• Heavy-duty plastic bags 

PERSONAL CONTACT 

In the event of Personal Contact with hazardous chemicals: 

• Wash affected area with plenty of soap and water 
• Change clothing which has absorbed hazardous chemicals 
• If necessary, contact a physician 
• If necessary, contact the proper emergency services 
• If necessary, follow the procedures for Major or Minor Spills as outlined below 
• Avoid breathing the fumes of hazardous chemicals 



32  

TECHNICAL REFERENCE MATERIALS 
A. Herbicide Information 

1. Product Label 
2. Product Safety Data Sheet (SDS) 
3. Product Fact Sheet, if available 

B. Table 1. Herbicide Manufacturers: 
MANUFACTURER TELEPHON

E NUMBER 
SPECIAL 
INSTRUCTIONS 

Albaugh Inc. (800) 247-8013  
BASF Corporation (800) 832-4357  
ENVU and Bayer Environmental Science (800) 334-7577  
Corteva AgriScience (800) 992-5994  
Nufarm (877) 325-1840  

Rainbow Treecare (877) 272-6747  
 

C. Table 2. State Agencies: 
STATE AGENCY TELEPHONE 

NUMBER 
SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS 

MDAR, Pesticide Bureau (617) 626-1700 A.S.A.P. (within 48 hours) 

Massachusetts Department of 
Environmental Protection, 
Emergency Response Section 

DEP 24 Hour 
Contact: 
(888) 304-1133 

For emergencies involving 
reportable quantities of material 
(listed in the Massachusetts 
Contingency Plan, 310 CMR 
40.0000); required info: 
City/town, street address, site 
name (if applicable), 
material 

Southeast Region: 
(508) 946-2700 

MA Department of Public 
Health, Bureau of 
Environmental Health’s 
Environmental Toxicology 
Program 

(617) 339-8351  

Massachusetts Poison 
Information Centers 

(800) 682-9211 For medical emergencies 
involving suspected or known 
pesticide poisoning symptoms 



33  

D. Table 3. Emergency Services: 
EMERGENCY SERVICE TELEPHONE 

NUMBER 
SPECIAL 
INSTRUCTIONS 

Massachusetts State Police, 
Central Office 

(617) 566-4500 or 911  

Local Fire / Police Dept. 911  
ChemTrec (800) 424-9300  
Clean Harbors (800) OIL-TANK  

Pesticide Hotline (800) 858-7378 PST: 6:30 am – 4:30 pm, 
Web: www.NPIC.orst.edu 

E. Eversource's contact in the case of a spill or accident is: 
Eversource System Control: 

Electric Ops North, (617) 541-7825 
Electric Ops South, (617) 541-7858 

 
 

F. Table 4. Local Emergency Numbers: 
 

Emergencies Services for All Municipalities: 911 
(To be filled out with the appropriate towns and included in the YOPs) 

Town Board of Health Town/City Hall Town Board of Health Town/City Hall 
      

CLEAN-UP PROCEDURES 
Education and attention will constantly be directed at accident and spill prevention; 
however, the following is a guideline in the event of an unfortunate incident: 

 
REPORTABLE SPILLS (Spills of reportable quantity of material): FOLLOW STEPS 1-9 
NON-REPORTABLE SPILLS: FOLLOW STEPS 1-4, 5-9 as appropriate & contact the 
EVERSOURCE representative. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

http://www.npic.orst.edu/


34  

G.  Table 5: HERBICIDE SPILL CHECK LIST 
Order ACTION Done 

(√) 
1 Use all PPE as directed by product label or SDS.  
2 Cordon-off spill area to unauthorized people and traffic to reduce the spread and exposure of the spill  

3 Identify source of spill and apply corrective action, if possible, stop or limit any additional amounts of spilled 
product. 

 

4 Contain spill and confine the spread by damming or diking with soil, clay, or other absorbent materials.  

5 Report spills of “reportable quantity" to the Mass. Dept. of Environmental Protection and MDAR:  

MDAR, Pesticide Bureau (617) 626-1700  

Massachusetts Department of Environmental 
Protection Emergency Response Section 

MassDEP 24 Contact Number: (888) 304-1133  

Southeast Region: (508) 946-2700  
6 If the spill cannot be contained or cleaned-up properly, or if there is a threat of contamination to any bodies of 

water, immediately contact any of the following applicable emergency response personnel: 
 

local fire, police, rescue 911  

Eversource: Operations (617) 541-7821  
Eversource Transmission: William Hayes (781) 441-3932  
Eversource Distribution - Paul Sellers (508) 957-4603  
Product Manufactures   

1. Albaugh Inc. (800) 247-8013  
2. BASF Corporation (800) 832-4357  
3. ENVU and Bayer Environmental Science (800) 334-7577  
4. Corteva AgriScience (800) 992-5994  
5. Nufarm (877) 325-1840  
6. Rainbow Treecare (877) 272-6747  
7. Chemtrec (800) 424-9300  
8. additional emergency personnel   
If there is a doubt as to who should be notified, contact 
State Police, Central Office 

(617) 566-4500 or 911  

Remain at the scene to provide information and 
assistance to responding emergency clean-up crews 

  

Refer to the various sources of information relative 
to handling and cleanup of spilled product 

  

If possible, complete the process of “soaking up” with 
absorbent materials 

  

7 Sweep or shovel contaminated products and soil into leak proof containers for proper disposal at approved 
location 

 

8 Spread activated charcoal over spill area to inactivate any residual herbicide  



35  

11. Identification and Qualification of Individual Developing 
and Submitting the Plan 

 
Mr. William Hayes is responsible for preparing and submitting this VMP, 
supervision of the IVM program and overall supervision for development and 
implementation of the VMP: 

 
William N. Hayes Jr., Senior Supervisor  
Eversource Energy 
Transmission Vegetation Management 
247 Station Drive, SW-1036 
Westwood, MA 02090-9230 
781-441- 3932 (office) 
 
He is ultimately responsible for preparation, implementation of and compliance with this 
VMP and YOP’s to be submitted annually. He is responsible for implementing the 
vegetation management programs best practices on transmission, and distribution 
systems.  He develops and evaluates methods for vegetation management to ensure 
transmission and distribution system reliability follows regulations and standards. 
Provide work scheduling, prescription of herbicides and application methods, 
procurement of necessary permits, municipal notifications, contractor selection, 
provision of technical expertise and liaison between Company right-of-way easement 
landowners, neighbors, local and state officials and other interested parties and field 
supervision of vegetation management contractors and Eversource arborists. 

 
His qualifications extend from education to over 30 years of work related to utility 
arboriculture. He has a Bachelor of Science, Majoring in Forestry Management with 
concentration in Arboriculture/Urban Forestry from the University of Massachusetts. 
Credentials include Massachusetts Certified Arborist, International Society of 
Arboriculture Certified Arborist, Massachusetts Category 40 Pesticide License, 
Consumers Power Co. Certified Basic Tree Trimmer. He is a member of the 
Massachusetts Arborist Association, Massachusetts Tree Wardens & Foresters 
Association, Utility Arborist Association, and the International Society of Arboriculture. 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 1: 
 

EVERSOURCE ENERGY 
CAPE COD AND MARTHA’S VINEYARD 
(BARNSTABLE AND DUKES COUNTIES) 

 
ELECTRIC SYSTEM MAP 



 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 2: 
 

EVERSOURCE ENERGY 
CAPE COD AND MARTHA’S VINEYARD 
(BARNSTABLE AND DUKES COUNTIES) 

LIST OF MUNICIPALITIES 



 

MUNICIPALITIES 
BARNSTABLE EDGARTOWN SANDWICH 
BOURNE FALMOUTH TISBURY 
BREWSTER HARWICH TRURO 
CHATHAM MASHPEE WELLFLEET 
DENNIS OAK BLUFFS YARMOUTH 
EASTHAM ORLEANS  



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 3: 
333 CMR 11.00 

 
https://www.mass.gov/regulations/333-CMR-1100-rights-of-way-management

https://www.mass.gov/regulations/333-CMR-1100-rights-of-way-management


 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 4: 
CHAPTER 132B 

 
HTTPS://MALEGISLATURE.GOV/LAWS/GENERALLAWS/PARTI/TITLEXIX/CHAPTER132B 

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXIX/Chapter132B


 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 5: 
SENSITIVE AREA TABLE 



 

CONTROL STRATEGIES FOR SENSITIVE AREAS 
Sensitive Area No-Spray and 

Limited Spray 
Areas (feet) 

Control Method Restriction 
Code 

Public Ground Water 
Supplies 

400' Mechanical Only None 

Primary Recharge Area Designated buffer 
zone or 1/2 mile 
radius 

Mechanical, 
Recommended Herbicides* 

24 months 

Public Surface Water 
Supplies (Class A & Class B) 

100' Mechanical Only None 
100'-400' Recommended Herbicides 24 months 

Tributary to Class A Water 
Source, within 400' upstream 
of water source 

100' Mechanical Only None 
100'-400' Recommended Herbicides 24 months 

Tributary to Class A Water 
Source, greater than 400' 
upstream of water source 

10' Mechanical Only None 

10'-200' Recommended Herbicides 24 months 

Class B Drinking Water 
Intake, within 400' upstream 
of intake 

100' Mechanical Only None 
100'-200' Recommended Herbicides 24 months 

Private Drinking Water 
Supplies 

50' Mechanical Only None 
50'-100' Recommended Herbicides 24 months 

Surface Waters 10' Mechanical Only None 
10'-100' Recommended Herbicides 12 months 

Rivers 10' from mean annual 
high-water line 

Mechanical Only None 

10'-200' Recommended Herbicides 12 months 
Wetlands 100' (treatment in 

wetlands permitted up 
to 10' of standing 
water) *+ 

Low-pressure Foliar, CST, 
Basal 
Recommended Herbicides 

12 months 

Inhabited Areas 100' Recommended Herbicides 12 months 
Agricultural Area (Crops, 
Fruits, Pastures) 

100' Recommended Herbicides 12 months 

Certified Vernal Pools 10' Mechanical Only when 
water is present 

None 

Certified Vernal Pool Habitat 10'-outer boundary of 
habitat 

No treatment without written approval per 
321 CMR 10.14(12) 

Priority Habitat No treatment without written approval per 321 CMR 10.14(12) 
Restrictions “24 Months": A minimum of twenty-four months shall elapse between applications 

“12 Months": A minimum of twelve months shall elapse between applications 
*Massachusetts recommended herbicides for sensitive sites 
+Per the DFA Decision Concerning the Wetlands Impact Study for utilities per 333 CMR 11.04(4)(c)(2). 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 6: 
PREFACE TO 310 CMR 10.00 

 
https://www.mass.gov/regulations/310-CMR-1000-wetlands-protection

https://www.mass.gov/regulations/310-CMR-1000-wetlands-protection


 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 7: 
WETLANDS STUDY 



 

 
 

C OMMONWEA LTH OF M ASSAC HUSETTS 
EXECUTIVE O FFICE OF ENVIRONMENT AL AFF AIRS 
D EPART MENT OF FOOD AND AGRICULTURE 
100 CAMDRIDGE  ST.,  BOSTON. MA 02202 617-727-3000 FAX 727-7235 

 
 

WI Li.JAM F. WE LD 
Gov ernor 

 
ARGEO PAUL CE LLUCCI 
LL Gove rno r 

 
Decision Concerning 

The Wetland Impact Study Conducted 
Pursuant to 333 CMR 11.04(4)(c)(2) 

TRUDY  CO XE 
S ecre tary 

 
JO NAT HAN  L. II EALY 

Co m miss ioner 

 
 

PUBLIC UTILITY VEGETATION 
MANAGEMENT PROGRAM FINDING 

 
 

Background 
 

The Rights of Way Management (ROW) Regulations (333 CMR 11:00) 
promulgated in 1987 prohibit the use of herbicides to control vegetation along utility 
right of ways on or within ten (10) feet of a wetland unless the following conditions 
are met: 

 
1. Submission of a study, the design of which is subject to prior review 

and approval of the Departments of Food and Agriculture and 
Environmental Protection, evaluating impacts of proposed vegetation 
management programs on wetlands; and 

2. A finding by the Department, after consultation with the Advisory 
Committee, that the proposed vegetation management program will 
result in less impacts to the wetland than mechanical control. 

3. Notwithstanding the above, no herbicides shall be applied on or within 
ten feet of any standing or flowing water in a wetland. 

 
On April 28, .1988, The Departments of Food and Agriculture and 

Environmental Protection approved the scope of the study. In the fall of 1989, 
Environmental Consultants, Inc. submitted to the Department of Food and 
Agriculture the study entitled, "Study of the Impacts of Vegetation Management 
Techniques on Wetlands for Utility Rights-of Way in the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts", dated June 1989. The Department consulted with the Vegetation 
Management Plan (VMP) Advisory panel at their November 15, 1989, December 
7, 1989 and August 1, 1991 meetings. 

 
 
 

1 

- 



2  

 



3  

 



4  

 



5  

 



6  

 



7  

 



8  

 



9  

 



10  

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 8: 
CHAPTER 85, SECTION 10 

 
HTTPS://MALEGISLATURE.GOV/LAWS/SESSIONLAWS/ACTS/2000/CHAPTER85 

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/SessionLaws/Acts/2000/Chapter85


 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 9: 
REFERENCES 



1  

REFERENCES 
SENSITIVE MATERIALS LIST: 
A current list of the Sensitive Area Materials List and individual Fact Sheets on these herbicides 
are available at: 
http://www.mass.gov/eea/agencies/agr/pesticides/rights-of-way-vegetation-management.html 
SAFETY: 
ANSI. American National Standard Z133. Champaign, IL: International Society of 
Arboriculture, Champaign, IL, 2006. 
ANSI 92-3. American National Standard 30. International Society of Arboriculture, 

Champaign, IL, 2006. 
Calvert, Geoffrey, Plate, D.K., Das, R., Rosales, R., Shafey, O., Tomsen, C., Male, D., Beckman, 

J., Arvizu, E. & Lackovic, M. “Acute Occupational Pesticide-Related Illness in the US, 
1998-1999: Surveillance Findings From the SENSOR-Pesticide Program." American 
Journal of Industrial Medicine 45:14-23, 2004. 

 

IVM and the Environment: 

Askins, Robert A. Restoring North America’s Birds; Lessons from Landscape Ecology, Yale 
University Press, New Haven, CT, 2000. 

 

   . “Sustaining Biological Diversity in Early Successional Communities: The 
Challenge of Managing Unpopular Habitats,” Wildlife Society Bulletin 29(2) (Summer, 
2001). 

Belisle, Francis. “Wildlife Use of Riparian Vegetation Buffer Zones in High Voltage Powerline 
Rights-of-Way in the Quebec Boreal Forest.” 7th International Symposium on 
Environmental Concerns in Rights-of-Way Management, 1999. 

Bramble, W.C. and Burns, W.R. “A Long-term Ecological Study of Game Food and Cover on a 
Sprayed Utility Right-of-Way.” Bulletin No. 918, Purdue University, 1974:16. 

 

Bramble, W.C; W.R. Burns; R.J. Hutnik, and S.A. Liscinsky. “Interference Factors Responsible 
For Resistance of Forb-Grass Cover Types to Tree Invasion on an Electric Utility Right- 
of-Way.” Journal of Arboriculture 22(2), March 1996: 99-105. 

Bramble, W.C., W.R. Byrnes, and R.J. Hutnik. “Resistance of Plant Cover Types to Tree 
Seedling Invasion on an Electric Utility Transmission Right-of-Way.” Journal of 
Arboriculture, 16(5), May 1990. 

 

“Central Vermont Public Service Corporations 2006 Strategy; T&D Forestry.” Rutland, VT, 2006. 
Confer, John L. “Management, Vegetative Structure and Shrubland Birds of Rights-of-Way.” 7th 

International Symposium on Environmental Concerns in Rights-of-Way Management, 
1999. 

http://www.mass.gov/eea/agencies/agr/pesticides/rights-of-way-vegetation-management.html


2  

Deubert. K.H. “Studies on the Fate of Garlon 3A and Tordon 101 Used in Selective Foliar 
Application in the Maintenance of Utility Rights-of-Way in Eastern Massachusetts.” 
Final Report prepared for New England Electric et. al.,1985. 

Environmental Consultants, Inc. “Study of the Impact of Vegetation Management Techniques 
on Wetlands for Utility Rights-of-Way in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.” Final 
report prepared for New England Electric et.al, 1989. 

 

   . “Determination of the Effectiveness of Herbicide Buffer Zones 
in Protecting Water Quality on New York State Powerline Rights-of-Way.” Final report for 
the Empire State Electric Energy Research Corporation, 1991. 

Galen Guerrero-Murphy, Tim Follensbee II, and Jeff Disorda 2015. 
“Best Management Practices (BMPs) for Protection of Threatened and Endangered Species 
during Integrated Vegetation Management and Operations and Maintenance of Electric 
Transmission Lines in Vermont.” Environmental Concerns in Rights-of-Way Management, 
11th International Symposium, Halifax, Novia Scotia. 

 
Goodrich-Mahoney, John W.; Abrahamson, Lawrence, P.; Ballard, Jennifer I.; Tikalsky, Susan 

M. 8th International Symposium Environmental Concerns in Rights-of-Way 
Management, 2004. 

Gwozdz, John, Lewis Payne, Kendra Gorski, and Jim Kooser 2015. 
“Herbicide Use Rates over Four Treatment Cycle: Proof the IVM tool is working”. 
Environmental Concerns in Rights-of-Way Management, 11th International Symposium, 
Halifax, Novia Scotia. 

 
Harrison Biotech, Inc. “A Generic Environmental Impact Report on the Control of Vegetation on 

Utility and Railroad Rights-of-Way in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.” Final Report 
prepared for the Department of Food and Agriculture, Commonwealth of Massachusetts, 
1985. 

Hickler, Matt, MA NHESP approved Review Biologist, Reports for TransCanada, National Grid, 
NSTAR, Northeast Utilities under 321 CMR 10.00 Massachusetts Endangered Species 
Act Regulations. (Also Reports in NH and VT), 2006-2010. 

Marshall, James S. “Effects of Powerline Right-of-Way Vegetation Management on Avian 
Communities.” 7th International Symposium on Environmental Concerns in Rights-of- 
Way Management, 1999. 

Marshall, James S. and Vandruff, L.W. “Impact of Selective Herbicide Right-of-Way Vegetation 
Treatment on Birds,” Environmental Management Vol. 30, No. 6, December 2002. 

Miller, R.H. 2012. Best Management Practices: Integrated Vegetation Management. 
Society of Arboriculture, Champaign, IL. 

National Grid USA Electric Companies. 5-Year Massachusetts VMP, 2009-2013, p. 9. 
Nickerson, N.H, G.E. Moore and A.D. Cutter. “Study of the Environmental Fates of Herbicides 

in Wetland Soils on Electric Utility Rights-of-Way in Massachusetts over the Short Term.” 
Final Report prepared for New England Electric et.al, December 1994. 



3  

Neiring, W.A. and R.H. Goodwin. “Creation of Relatively Stable Shrublands With Herbicides: 
Arresting Succession on Rights-of-Way and Pastureland.” Ecology 55(4), 1974. 

Niering, W.A. “Roadside Use of Native Plants: Working with Succession, An Ecological 
Approach in Preserving Biodiversity.” Roadside Use of Native Plants: 
http://www.environment.fhwa.dot.gov/ecosystems/vegmgmt_rdsduse.asp. 

Nowak, Christopher.A. and L.P. Abrahamson. “Vegetation Management on Electric 
Transmission Line Rights-of-Way in New York State: The Stability Approach to Reducing 
Herbicide Use.” Proceedings of the International Conference on Forest Vegetation 
Management, Auburn University, April 1993. 

Nowak, Christopher A. & Ballard, Benjamin D. “A Framework for Applying Integrated 
Vegetation Management on Rights-of-Way.” Journal of Arboriculture 31(1) (January 
2005). 

Oehler, James D., ed; Darrel F. Covell, ed; Steve Capel, ed, and Bob Long, ed. “Managing 
Grasslands, Shrublands and Young Forests for Wildlife; A Guide for the Northeast.” The 
Northeast Upland Habitat Technical Committee. 2006. 

Schaefer, Valentin. “Rights-of-Way in Support of Biological Conservation“ 7th International 
Symposium on Environmental Conserns in Rights-of-Way Management, 1999. 

United States Environmental Protection Agency. “Fact Sheet: Integrated Vegetation 
Management.” EPA 731-F-08-010 (Oct. 2008). 

University of California. “Definition of Integrated Pest Management.” 
http://www.ipm.ucdavist.edu. 

Vers, Frans. “The Shifting Baseline Syndrome in Restoration Ecology.” Restoration and 
History: The Search for a Usable Environmental Past. Ed. Marcus Hall: 101. 

Yahner, Richard H. “Wildlife Response to More than 50 years of Vegetation Maintenance on a 
Pennsylvania U.S., Right-of-Way.” Journal of Arboriculture 30(2), March 2004. 

   . “State Game Lands 33 Research and Demonstration Project—57 years of 
Continuous Study on the Shawville to Lewiston 230-kV line of First Energy (Penelec). 
2009. 

 

   . “2009 Annual Report to Cooperators. Green Lane Research and 
Demonstration Project: 23 Years of Continuous Study.” (2009). 

http://www.environment.fhwa.dot.gov/ecosystems/vegmgmt_rdsduse.asp
http://www.ipm.ucdavist.edu/


 

 
 

 
 

EVERSOURCE ENERGY, EASTERN (Cape), MA 
 

2023 YEARLY OPERATIONAL PLAN 
 

MASSACHUSETTS DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURAL RESOURCES 
 

INTEGRATED VEGETATION MANAGEMENT HERBICIDE PROGRAM 
 

 
 
 
Submitted by: 

      Eversource Vegetation Management 
 
       

       Submitted: 
MAY 24, 2023



 

i 
 

SUMMARY 
 
 In compliance with the Massachusetts Department of Agricultural Resources’ Rights-of-Way 
Regulations (333 CMR 11.00), this Yearly Operational Plan (YOP) informs municipalities of Eversource 
Energy, Eastern (Cape) MA’s intent to utilize an integrated vegetation management plan that includes the 
use of herbicides on electric rights-of-way (ROW) in 2023.  Our Integrated Vegetation Management 
program is outlined in our five-year Vegetation Management Plan.   
 
 This YOP identifies target vegetation; the affected rights-of-way and towns; the herbicides, rates 
and methods of application; alternative control methods; the individual responsible for supervising the 
OP, and the qualified contractors that will perform the application.  It explains how sensitive areas; buffer 
zones and sites where herbicides are either restricted or not permitted are identified, appropriately 
marked, treated and protected.  It addresses procedures for the mixing, handling and loading of herbicide 
concentrates.  Finally, it includes Herbicide Fact Sheets and Labels, a list of emergency resources and 
telephone numbers, and maps marked with known Sensitive Areas. 
 
 The YOP process provides for a forty-five-day public review and comment period, in conjunction 
with the twenty-one-day municipal rights-of-way notification period.  These review periods give 
communities an opportunity to provide information that will help identify additional areas that may 
require specific precautions or protection.  Finally, notice will be published in general circulation 
newspapers at least 48 hours before the scheduled application. 



 

ii 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
           

 SUMMARY i 
I. INTRODUCTION   1 
II. CHAPTER 132B AND 333 CMR 11.00 2 
III. LOCATION OF INTENDED TREATMENT  3 
IV. IDENTIFICATION OF TARGET VEGETATION 4 
V.  DEFINITION, IDENTIFICATION AND TREATMENT OF SENSITIVE AREAS  5 
VI. PROPOSED HERBICIDE TREATMENT METHODS 8 
VII. PROPOSED HERBICIDES, CARRIERS, ADJUVANTS AND RATES 10 
VIII. ALTERNATIVE MECHANICAL CONTROL TECHNIQUES 13 
IX. THE COMPANIES THAT WILL PERFORM THE HERBICIDE TREATMENT 14 
X. INDIVIDUAL RESPONSIBLE FOR SUPERVISING THE OP 14 
XI. HERBICIDE FACT SHEETS 14 
XII. PROCEDURES AND LOCATIONS FOR HANDLING, MIXING AND 

LOADING HERBICIDE CONCENTRATES 
 

14 
XIII. EMERGENCY RESOURCES 14 

 
APPENDICES 

 
APPENDIX I. MAPS 
APPENDIX II. SENSITIVE AREA TABLE 
APPENDIX III. HERBICIDE FACT SHEETS 
APPENDIX IV. HERBICIDE LABELS  

 
 

LIST OF TABLES 
TABLE I. 2023 RIGHTS-OF-WAY 3 
TABLE II. 2023 IVM (HERBICIDE) MUNICIPALITIES 4 
TABLE III. TANK MIXES FOR LOW VOLUME FOLIAGE APPLICATIONS 10 
TABLE IV. TANK MIXES FOR POISON IVY, VINES, AND INVASIVE SPECIES 12 
TABLE V. TANK MIXES FOR CUT SURFACE TREATMENT (CST) APPLICATIONS 12 
TABLE VI. TANK MIXES FOR LOW-VOLUME BASAL OR CUT SURFACE 

TREATMENT (CST) APPLICATIONS 13 

TABLE VII. HERBICIDE MANUFACTURERS 15 
TABLE VIII. STATE AGENCIES 15 
TABLE IX. EMERGENCY SERVICES 15 
TABLE X. LOCAL EMERGENCY NUMBERS 16 



 

1 
 

I. INTRODUCTION 
 
 

 In compliance with Commonwealth of Massachusetts’ Rights-of-Way Vegetation Management 
Regulations (333 CMR 11.00) Eversource Energy, Eastern MA’s Yearly Operational Plan (YOP) details 
our vegetation management program for 2023.  This YOP is consistent with the terms and procedures set 
forth in the Eversource Energy, Vegetation Management Plan’s (VMP’s) per 333 CMR 11.05; with the 
Massachusetts Pesticide Control Act (Chapter 132B); with all pertinent clauses in Chapter 85 of the Acts 
of 2000; with the Massachusetts Endangered Species Act (MESA; MGL c. 131 A) and regulations (321 
CMR 10.00), and with all Federal and State acts and regulations that apply to right-of-way vegetation 
management. 

 Eversource delivers electricity to 1.3 million customers in 136 municipalities.  Electricity is 
transmitted over hundreds of miles of distribution and transmission rights-of-way (ROW) throughout the 
western, eastern, southeastern, and cape and islands regions of Massachusetts. To ensure safe reliable 
electric service, Eversource must keep these ROWs free from hazards and encroachments. In this effort, 
the vegetation on the ROW corridors must be maintained at an early stage of plant succession (herbaceous 
plants and shrubs). 
 

Using the Integrated Vegetation Management Program (IVM) described in the VMP’s, 
Eversource’s program is based on a 4-year selective herbicide application and where appropriate 
mechanical treatment cycle.  This program allows for the safe delivery of reliable electric service and 
supports a healthier more diverse habitat for wildlife that depends upon early successional landscapes 
(See VMP’s for further description of Eversource’s IVM program).  The VMP’s can be viewed at: 

 
https://www.eversource.com/content/residential/about/reliability/vegetation-

management/transmission-system-vegetation-management/transmission-vegetation-management-projects 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.eversource.com/content/residential/about/reliability/vegetation-management/transmission-system-vegetation-management/transmission-vegetation-management-projects
https://www.eversource.com/content/residential/about/reliability/vegetation-management/transmission-system-vegetation-management/transmission-vegetation-management-projects


 

2 
 

II. CHAPTER 132B AND 333 CMR 11.00 
 
The purpose of this chapter is to conform the laws of the commonwealth to the Federal 
Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act, Public Law 92-516, as amended, and the regulations 
promulgated there under and to establish a regulatory process in the commonwealth. The 
exclusive authority in regulating the labeling, distribution, sale, storage, transportation, use and 
application, and disposal of pesticides in the commonwealth shall be determined by this chapter. 
(MGL 132B, Section 1) 

 
Chapter 132b (Massachusetts Pesticide Control Act) was created to ensures a clear and uniform 

set of standards for the entire Commonwealth of Massachusetts in order to protect the public from the 
negative impacts that arise from fragmented, decentralized, sets of standards.  In this effort, the 
Commonwealth, through the Department of Agricultural Resources (MDAR) retains the sole right to 
regulate the use of pesticides, including herbicides, throughout Massachusetts.  MDAR takes this 
responsibility extremely seriously and the regulations promulgated under Chapter 132b are stricter than 
Federal standards. 
 

The purpose of 333 CMR 11.00 is to establish a statewide and uniform regulatory process which 
will minimize the uses of, and potential impacts from herbicides in right of way on human health 
and the environment while allowing for the benefits to public safety provided by the selective use 
of herbicides (333 CMR 11.01). 

 
333 CMR 11.00 is the most comprehensive rights of way regulation in New England.  It requires 

an Integrated Pest Management (in this case IVM) approach to right of way vegetation management; the 
establishment of standards and procedures to prevent unreasonable risks to humans or the environment, 
and a multi-layered system of public and municipal notification that requests input about environmentally 
and culturally sensitive areas.  All of this is outlined in the Eversource VMPs, annual YOPs, The 
Environmental Monitor Notice, 21-day notification, Public Water Supplier notification and 48- hour 
newspaper notice which serve as guides for the public, state and municipal officials, vegetation 
management contractors and Eversource personnel. 
 
 To ensure compliance with Chapter 132b and 333 CMR 11.00, MDAR performs routine 
inspections of rights-of-way treatment crews, retains chemists, and perform further tests before approving 
a limited list of herbicides approved for use in Sensitive Areas (pursuant to 333 CMR 11.04 (1)(d)). 

As detailed in the VMP’s and YOP, Eversource Energy, Eastern MA’s IVM program strictly 
adheres to all the requirements of Chapter 132b and 333 CMR 11.00.  Eversource only retains herbicide 
application treatment contractors that hold Massachusetts’ certifications and licenses to apply pesticides, 
which require ongoing training to maintain.  All Sensitive Areas (see section V) are treated appropriately 
using either mechanical treatment methods or Commonwealth of Massachusetts recommended herbicides 
for use in Sensitive Areas.  In fact, Eversource only uses these recommended herbicides on the entire 
length and cleared width of its ROW corridors. 

Beyond the requirements of 333 CMR 11.00 and in compliance with Chapter 216 of the Acts of 
2012, Eversource also notifies “abutters” (houses and businesses that abut the rights-of-way being treated 
in that year) within view of the ROWs before treatments begin.  Treatment contractors are required to 
leave door hangers or talk personally with abutters which allow the contractor to answer site specific 
questions, identify private wells and help explain the program. 



 

3 
 

III. LOCATION OF INTENDED TREATMENTS 

In 2023 Eversource plans on completing vegetation maintenance on 1 transmission ROW as 
listed in Table I.  Table II is a list of municipalities where a herbicide treatment will be applied as part of 
IVM.  
 
Table I. 2023 Rights-of-Way: 
 

Massachusetts East (EMA) Cape 
ROW Segment Name 

Electric Transmission Right of Way 
180 EHV Canal (Bourne town line southeast) - Pilgrim Tap 

 
 
Table II: List of 2023 IVM (herbicide treatment) Municipalities: 
 

Eastern MA (EMA) Cape municipalities: 
Bourne     

 
  



 

4 
 

IV. IDENTIFICATION OF TARGET VEGETATION FOR HERBICIDE APPLICATIONS 
 

Pursuant to the policy and intent set forth in the Eversource VMPs, all vegetation must be removed that 
obscures the ROW corridors and grows tall enough to interfere with the safe, efficient and legal operation 
of an electrical power line.  In the wire zone, trees and brush are targeted, and native, low growing plant 
communities that have a mature height less than three feet are established.  In the border zone, 
incompatible trees and brush are targeted, and the growth of native trees and shrubs that have a mature 
height less than 15 feet is encouraged. 
 

The primary target is all trees’ species within the cleared width of the ROW; except in Priority 
Habitats that are under the purview of the Natural Heritage and Endangered Species Program of the 
Department of Fish and Game (NHESP), which will be treated on a case by case basis. 

Examples of targets include, but are not limited to:  
 

Alder Cherry Pine 
Aspen Hemlock Maple 
Beech Hickory Oak 
Birch Locust Sassafras 

 
There are more non-target vegetation species on an electric or gas ROW than targets. In fact, 

ROWs are one of the primary early successional plant communities remaining in New England. As a 
result, many plant and animal species use ROWs as their homes, feeding grounds or nurseries. Certain 
plant species, therefore, are encouraged on the ROW through the use of an IVM program (excluding 
invasive plant species):  

• Most herbaceous growth is acceptable and encouraged  
• Shrubs that mature less than 15 feet in height are only targets where due to their location or 

attributes they interfere with the function of the ROW. 
 

Certain categories of non-tree species are targets under some circumstances, because of their 
location and/or their nature.  Dense woody vegetation, shrubs and vines are targets where they are capable 
of interfering with the inspection and maintenance of the poles, wires, and along access roads, paths and 
gates which need to be kept clear, especially for emergencies. 

 
Eversource intends to control plant species including invasive, poisonous plants and vines at their 

facilities. Invasive plant species have become an increasing concern throughout Massachusetts in areas 
that include ROW corridors where they can spread rapidly and move into the adjacent landscape.  
Eversource plans to use herbicides to spot treat poisonous plants at sites under its ROWs identified as 
having an elevated risk of posing a health hazard. This vegetation, likewise, poses a risk to the safety and 
health of all individuals working on or traversing a ROW and it can impede a rapid response in an 
emergency.   
 

Examples of non-tree species considered targets, include, but are not limited to: 
 

Autumn Olive Japanese Knot-Weed Greenbriar 
Buckthorn Multiflora Rose Poison Ivy 
Buckthorn Oriental Bittersweet 
Hawthorne Staghorn Sumac  
Honeysuckle Poison Sumac  
   

 



 

5 
 

V. DEFINITION, IDENTIFICATION AND TREATMENT OF SENSITIVE AREAS 
 
 Sensitive Areas are those areas within a ROW in which public health, environmental concerns or 
agricultural interests warrant special protection to minimize the risk of unreasonable adverse effects.   
 

The map(s) in Appendix I are a resource and a tool for both the public and the vegetation 
management crews.  They contain the data necessary to identify, mark and treat Sensitive Areas 
appropriately. 

  
The map(s) include known Sensitive Areas available at the printing of this YOP.  Some Sensitive 

Areas are included in the base USGS topographic maps.  The most current data available through Mass 
GIS such as public water suppliers, certified vernal pools, etc. and any data that Eversource has collected 
to date on areas such as private wells are added on top of the USGS data.   At the time of treatment, any 
additional Sensitive Areas collected will be added to the maps utilized by our vegetation management 
contractors.  Please note that Zone II's and limited spray areas are not mapped since Eversource Energy, 
will only use herbicides approved for use within this type of Sensitive Area in their 2023 IVM program.   
 
 There is one type of Sensitive Area not included on the maps that we are not authorized to 
publish: the locations of the Priority Habitats of state listed species as regulated by the Natural Heritage 
and Endangered Species Program (NHESP) of the Division of Fisheries & Wildlife.  A map layer of 
Priority Habitats is available to the general public at https://www.mass.gov/orgs/massgis-bureau-of-
geographic-information , but it is neither specific to areas of concern for herbicide applications nor does it 
include data on the individual species since the exact location and details of their habitat is protected.  
Please be assured that we follow all necessary precautions to stay in compliance with 321 CMR 10.00 and 
this YOP was approved by NHESP. 
 
 Prior to any herbicide application, Sensitive Areas will be identified and when necessary marked 
in the field by an experienced vegetation management treatment crew point person, by individuals trained 
in the identification of Sensitive Areas that require the use of GIS (geographic information systems) and 
GPS equipment, and/or by a NHESP approved botanist trained in the delineation of state-listed species.    
 
 Two simple descriptions guide the complex identification of the Sensitive Areas listed in 333 
CMR 11.02:  Readily identifiable in the field and Not readily identifiable in the field:   
 

A. Readily identifiable in the field areas will be treated and marked according to all 
 applicable restrictions listed in 333 CMR 11.00 and the Eversource Energy,  
 5-year VMP’s.     
 
B. Not readily identifiable in the field areas are identified by the use of the data marked on 

our maps and additional data collected in the YOP and notification processes before the 
time of treatment.  

 
 Eversource and contractor personnel assigned the task of identifying Sensitive Areas in the field 
will use the following sources and methods: 
 

A. Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) water supply maps/GIS 
mapping layers available through Mass GIS 

B. Massachusetts Department of Agricultural Resources (MDAR) records of identified 
private wells along the ROW  



 

6 
 

C. Correspondence and input from municipalities within the consecutive forty-five day YOP 
and twenty-one day municipal ROW notification review and comment periods and the 48 
hour newspaper notification 

D. Correspondence and input from Eversource’s abutter notification procedure 
E. A point person who precedes the treatment crew verifying identified Sensitive Areas and 

any additional areas that may require special precautions. 
 

 The following section details some of the Sensitive Areas that require special attention, 
particularly those that are classified as either no spray or not readily identifiable in the field: 
 

A. Limited Spray Areas: 
  
Per 333 CMR 11.02, the following need to be identified in the field, require the use of herbicides 
on the MDAR Rights-of-Way Sensitive Area Materials List, and time restrictions between 
herbicide applications (see Appendix II, Sensitive Area Table).  Please note that for 2023 IVM 
herbicide applications, Eversource is only using Sensitive Area approved herbicides on our entire 
ROW system: 

 
(a) any Zone II or IWPA 
(b) a distance of between 100 feet and 400 feet of any Class A Surface 
Water Source 
(c) a distance of between 10 and 200 feet of any tributary or associated 
surface water body where the tributary or associated surface water 
body runs outside the Zone A for the Class A surface water source 
(d) a lateral distance of between 100 and 200 feet for 400 feet upstream, 
on both sides of the river, of a Class B Drinking Water Intake 
(e) a distance of between 50 and 100 feet of any identified Private Well 
(f) a distance of between 10 and 100 feet of any Wetlands or Water Over 
Wetlands 
(g) a distance of between 10 feet from the mean annual high water line of 
any river and the outer boundary of the Riverfront Area 
(h) a distance of between ten feet from any Certified Vernal Pool and the 
outer boundary of any Certified Vernal Pool Habitat 
(i) a distance of 100 feet of any Agricultural or Inhabited Area. 

 
Please Note that “(f)” is modified by the MDAR (formerly Department of Food and 
Agriculture) Decision, dated October 12, 1995, concerning the wetland impact study conducted 
pursuant to 333 CMR  11.04(4)(c)(2).  According to the Decision, Eversource may use 
herbicides within wetlands except on or within 10 feet of standing or flowing water (item “g” in 
the no-spray areas below was removed from the no spray list for utilities because it does not 
apply for the same reason). 
 
B. No-Spray Areas:  

 
Again, quoting from 333 CMR 11.02 the following no-spray areas need to be identified: 
 

No-Spray Area, any area that is both within a Right-of-Way and within: 
 
(a) any Zone I 
(b) 100 feet of any Class A Surface Water Source 
(c) 100 feet of any tributary or associated surface water body where the 



 

7 
 

tributary or associated surface water body runs within 400 feet of a 
Class A surface water source 
(d) 10 feet of any tributary or associated surface water body where the 
tributary or associated surface water body is at a distance greater than 
400 feet from a Class A surface water source 
(e) a lateral distance of 100 feet for 400 feet upstream, on both sides of the 
river, of a Class B Drinking Water Intake 
(f) 50 feet of any identified Private Well [within 100 feet of the ROW] 

… 
(h) 10 feet of the mean annual high-water line of any river 
(i) 10 feet of any Certified Vernal Pool. 

 
C. Identification and Treatment of Private Drinking Water Supplies 
 
 No herbicide treatments will take place within fifty feet of any identified private wells 
located within one hundred (100) feet of a ROW.  Eversource updates its private well records 
based on available data.  

 
Municipalities should assist in the identification process and the MDAR will be consulted 

again prior to the treatment in an attempt to keep the private drinking water supply information 
up-to-date.   
 

Identified private drinking supplies within one hundred (100) feet of a ROW will be 
permanently recorded on appropriate maps.   

 
D. State-Listed Species Habitat 
 

Eversource recognizes the importance of the Massachusetts Endangered Species Act, 
M.G.L.C. 131 A, and its significance to ROW vegetation management.  Eversource will comply 
with all applicable portions of this Act and the regulations promulgated thereunder.  Eversource 
will also follow the rules and prohibitions directed at human activities which Take Species or 
alter their Significant Habitat (as of this printing there are no designated Significant Habitat in 
Massachusetts).   

321 CMR 10.14, Massachusetts Endangered Species Act Regulations, Part II Exemptions 
and 333 CMR 11.04(3)(a-c) exempts utility ROW vegetation management from the permit process 
under the following conditions: 

(12) The management of vegetation within existing utility rights-of-way provided that the 
management is carried out in accordance with a vegetation management plan approved in 
writing by the Division prior to the commencement of work for which a review fee shall 
be charged, the amount of which shall be determined by the commissioner of 
administration under the provisions of M.G.L. c.7, § 3B… 

To comply with exemption 10.14(12), Eversource submits this YOP to the NHESP for 
review.  

The NHESP has delineated areas as Priority Habitat based on the "Best Scientific Evidence 
Available" to protect State-listed species from a "take."  Under the approval process, details about 
the Priority Habitat of state-listed species that might be affected by our activities and management 
recommendations are shared with Eversource under strict confidentiality agreements.  Using this 
data and best management practices, Eversource and contract personnel will follow the 
appropriate vegetation management treatment methods within these sensitive areas taking all 



 

8 
 

practical means and measures to modify ROW vegetation management procedures to avoid 
damage to state-listed species and their habitat. 

To identify Priority Habitats, Eversource personnel, NHESP approved review botanists 
and vegetation management crews must use proper identification procedures.  Contractors are, 
therefore, required to train their personnel to recognize the location of Priority Habitats using one 
of the following tools: paper maps, GPS coordinates and/or GIS systems.  

 
VI. PROPOSED HERBICIDE TREATMENT METHODS 
 
 Under Eversource’s IVM program, combined with mechanical "prep-cutting," mowing and side-
trimming activities, herbicide applications will be applied on foot using selective low pressure foliage 
treatments with backpack sprayers and cut stump or basal treatments.  Experienced, Massachusetts 
licensed applicators will perform the selective herbicide treatments under the direct on site supervision of 
a certified applicator as required by Chapter 132B. 
 

Eversource’s herbicide program is a selective program scheduled to sustain acceptable vegetation 
control at minimal application rates.  Using backpack sprayers, small amounts of herbicide are applied 
directly to the leaves, stumps or bark of the target vegetation.  The average per acre rate of herbicide mix 
for Eversource’s foliar program is under 5 gallons per acre and the actual amount of applied active 
ingredient is in the pints per acre range. 
 

Eversource also chooses herbicide formulations that are low in acute toxicity, do not bio-
accumulate and, as applied, have a short half-life with low soil mobility (see VMP’s, Bibliography).  
Above and beyond the review by the Federal EPA, these herbicides are all carefully reviewed jointly by 
MDAR and the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protect for use in “limited spray” sensitive 
areas (including Zone IIs).  Eversource takes this one step further and only uses sensitive area approved 
herbicides on their entire right-of-way system. 
 
A. Methods: 
 
 Eversource and contract personnel will utilize the most appropriate technique for the vegetation 
species, height, density, site and mandated restrictions.  These methods as described in detail in the 
Eversource 5-year VMP’s are briefly reviewed below: 
 

Low Volume Foliage Techniques utilize hand-operated pumps or motorized, backpack sprayers.  
The motorized, backpack sprayer produces an air current that delivers small amounts of herbicide 
mixture from a portable spray tank to the target vegetation.  The low-pressure hand-pump sprayer 
uses a column of water.  In both cases, the amount of herbicide solution applied only dampens or 
lightly wets the target vegetation.   
 
Low-Volume Stem Basal: the selective application of herbicides to the lower 6"-8" of the plant 
stem.  The herbicide concentration is applied with low-pressure, backpack sprayers with special 
wand attachments and positive shut-off nozzle tips with small orifices.  
 
Cut Stump Surface Treatment (CST):  the application of an herbicide mixture to the cut 
surface of a stump immediately following or during a cutting operation.  Application equipment 
includes low-volume, backpack, hand-pump sprayers; hand held squirt bottles; paintbrushes, or 
sponge applicators.   
 
 



 

9 
 

B. Guidelines: 
 

1. All Sensitive Area restrictions will be followed. 
 

2. Foliar and Basal treatments are used within the cleared width of the ROW for tree and shrub 
target species below 12 feet in height. 

 
3. CST treatments are used in conjunction with hand-cutting and in situations including but not 

limited to:  trees and shrubs that cannot be foliar treated, at road buffers, and around structures 
such as poles and gates. 
 

4. Only mechanical treatment methods will be used in no spray Sensitive Areas, including but not 
limited to hand cutting, trimming and mowing. 
 

C. Treatment of Wetlands 
 
 Herbicide applications in wetlands will be performed in accordance with 333 CMR 11.04 
(4)(c)(2) relative to ROW management.  Targets will be selectively treated with herbicides on the 
MDAR’s Sensitive Area Material List and will not be applied within ten (10) feet of standing or flowing 
water. 
 
D. Treatment of State-Listed Priority Habitats 
 
 All vegetation management activities will be completed in compliance with the Massachusetts 

Endangered Species Act (MESA; MGL c. 131 A) and its regulations, 321 CMR 10.00. 
 

  



 

10 
 

VII. PROPOSED HERBICIDES, CARRIERS, ADJUVANTS AND RATES 
 
 In 2023 only the Commonwealth of Massachusetts recommended herbicides listed below for use 
in Sensitive Areas—pursuant to 333 CMR 11.04 (1)(d)—will be used on the entire length and cleared 
width of Eversource Energy ROW corridors, in compliance with all labeled directions.   
 
Table III. Tank Mixes for Low Volume Foliage Applications: 
 
Tank Mix #1 for Low Volume Foliar (LVF) Treatment Applications 

 
Tank Mix #2 for Low Volume Foliar (LVF) Treatment Applications 

  

Herbicides & Adjuvants Active Ingredient EPA Registration 
Number(s) 

Mix Concentration 
(per 100 gals. 
water) 

Estimated 
Application 
Rate Per Acre 

Krenite S Fosamine 
Ammonium 

42750-247 6-10% 32-128 oz. 

Escort XP or Patriot Metsulfuron-
Methyl 

432-1549 or 228-
391 

2-4 oz. 0.125-0.8 oz. 

Arsenal Powerline or 
Polaris1 

Imazapyr 241-431 or 228-
534 

0.125%-0.5% 2-8 oz. 

Induce, Clean Cut, 
Methylated Seed Oil 
(MSO)3, or Aqua Fac or 
equivalent surfactant2 

n.a. n.a. 0.125%-1% 1-16 oz. 

Point Blank, Clasp, or 
equivalent drift retardant 

n.a. n.a. 0.125%-0.5% 1-2 oz. 

Carrier: Water n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. 
Gallons per acre – 3 to 15 

Herbicides & Adjuvants Active Ingredient EPA Registration 
Number(s) 

Mix Concentration 
(per 100 gals. 
water) 

Estimated 
Application 
Rate Per Acre 

Rodeo, Aquaneat, Roundup 
Pro, or Roundup Custom4,5 

Glyphosate 62719-324, 228-
365, 524-475, 
524-343 

3-5% 16-128 oz. 

Escort XP or Patriot Metsulfuron-
Methyl 

432-1549 or 228-
391 

2-4 oz. 0.125-0.8 oz. 

Arsenal Powerline or 
Polaris1 

Imazapyr 241-431 or 228-
534 

0.125%-0.5% 2-8 oz. 

Induce, Clean Cut, MSO3, or 
Aqua Fac or equivalent 
surfactant2 

n.a. n.a. 0.125%-1% 1-16 oz. 

Point Blank, Clasp, or 
equivalent drift retardant2 

n.a. n.a. 0.125%-0.5% 1-2 oz. 

Carrier: Water n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. 
Gallons per acre – 3 to 15 



 

11 
 

Tank Mix #3 for Low Volume Foliar (LVF) Treatment Applications  
(can be used in MA only if MDAR approved Sensitive Materials List) 

 
Tank Mix #4 for Low Volume Foliar (LVF) Treatment Applications 

 
Tank Mix #5 for Low Volume Foliar (LVF) Treatment Applications 
 

Herbicides & Adjuvants Active Ingredient EPA Registration 
Number(s) 

Mix Concentration 
(per 100 gals. 
water) 

Estimated 
Application 
Rate Per Acre 

Escort XP or Patriot Metsulfuro
n- Methyl 

432-1549 or 228- 
391 

2-4 oz. 0.125-0.8 oz. 

Arsenal Powerline or 
Polaris1 

Imazapyr 241-431 or 228- 
534 

0.125%-0.5% 2-8 oz. 

Induce, Clean Cut, MSO3, or 
Aqua Fac or equivalent 
surfactant2 

n.a. n.a. 0.125%-1% 1-16 oz. 

Point Blank, Clasp, or 
equivalent drift retardant2 

n.a. n.a. 0.125%-0.5% 1-2 oz. 

Carrier: Water n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. 
Gallons per acre – 3 to 15 

 
  

Herbicides & Adjuvants Active Ingredient EPA Registration 
Number(s) 

Mix Concentration 
(per 100 gals. 
water) 

Estimated 
Application 
Rate Per Acre 

Vastlan Triclopyr choline 62719-687 2-3% 12-64 oz. 
Escort XP or Patriot Metsulfuron-

Methyl 
432-1549 or 228-
391 

2-4 oz. 0.125-0.8 oz. 

Arsenal Powerline or 
Polaris1 

Imazapyr 241-431 or 228-
534 

0.125%-0.5% 2-8 oz. 

Induce, Clean Cut, MSO3, or 
Aqua Fac or equivalent 
surfactant2 

n.a. n.a. 0.125%-1% 1-16 oz. 

Point Blank, Clasp or 
equivalent drift retardant2 

n.a. n.a. 0.125%-0.5% 1-2 oz. 

Carrier: Water n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. 
Gallons per acre – 3 to 15 

Herbicides & Adjuvants Active Ingredient EPA Registration 
Number(s) 

Mix Concentration 
(per 100 gals. 
water) 

Estimated 
Application 
Rate Per Acre 

Escort XP or Patriot Metsulfuron-
Methyl 

432-1549 or 228-
391 

2-4 oz. 0.125-0.8 oz. 

Arsenal Powerline or 
Polaris1 

Imazapyr 241-431 or 228-
534 

0.125%-0.5% 2-8 oz. 

Induce, Clean Cut, MSO3, or 
Aqua Fac or equivalent 
surfactant2 

n.a. n.a. 0.125%-1% 1-16 oz. 

Point Blank, Clasp or 
equivalent drift retardant2 

n.a. n.a. 0.125%-0.5% 1-2 oz. 

Carrier: Water n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. 
Gallons per acre – 3 to 15 



 

12 
 

Tank Mix # 6 for Low Volume Foliar (LVF) Treatment Applications 
 

Herbicides & Adjuvants Active Ingredient EPA Registration 
Number(s) 

Mix Concentration 
(per 100 gals. 
water) 

Estimated 
Application 
Rate Per Acre 

Garlon 4 Ultra Triclopyr 62719-527 2-4% 12-64oz 
Escort XP or Patriot Metsulfuron- 

Methyl 
432-1549 or 228- 
391 

2-4 oz. 0.125-0.8 oz. 

Arsenal Powerline or 
Polaris1 

Imazapyr 241-431 or 228- 
534 

0.125%-0.5% 2-8 oz. 

Induce, Clean Cut, MSO3, or 
Aqua Fac or equivalent 
surfactant2 

n.a. n.a. 0.125%-1% 1-16 oz. 

Point Blank, Clasp, or 
equivalent drift retardant2 

n.a. n.a. 0.125%-0.5% 1-2 oz. 

Carrier: Water n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. 
Gallons per acre – 3 to 15 

 
Table IV: Tank Mix for Poison Ivy, Vines, and Invasive Species 

 
Table V. Tank Mixes for Cut Surface Treatment (CST) Applications: 

 
  

Herbicides & Adjuvants Active Ingredient EPA Registration 
Number(s) 

Mix Concentration (per 
100 gals. water) 

Rodeo, Aquaneat, Roundup Pro, 
or Roundup Custom4,5 

Glyphosate 62719-324, 228-
365, 524-475, 524-
343 

2-5% 

Garlon 4 Ultra Triclopyr 62719-527 2-4% 

Escort XP or Patriot Metsulfuron-Methyl 432-1549 or 228-
391 

1.25-4 oz. 

Induce, Clean Cut, MSO3, or Aqua 
Fac or equivalent surfactant2 

n.a. n.a. 0.125%-1% 

Point Blank, Clasp or equivalent 
drift retardant2 

n.a. n.a. 4-16 oz. 

Carrier: Water n.a. n.a. n.a. 
Gallons per acre – 3 to 15 

Herbicides & Adjuvants Active Ingredient EPA 
Registration 
Number(s) 

Mix Concentration 
(per 100 gals. 
water) 

Estimated 
Application Rate 
Per Acre 

Rodeo, Aquaneat, Roundup 
Pro, or Roundup Custom4,5  

Glyphosate 62719-324, 
228-365, 524-
475, 524-343 

40% to 50% Per density of 
target stems 

Arsenal Powerline or 
Polaris1 

Imazapyr 241-431 or 228-
534 

3%-5%  (mixed 
with Glyphosate) 

Per density of 
target stems 

Carrier: Water or 
Windshield Washing Fluid 

n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. 



 

13 
 

Table VI. Tank Mixes for Low-Volume Basal or Cut Surface Treatment (CST) 
Applications: 
 
Tank Mix #1 Low Volume Basal or Cut Surface Treatments (CST) Applications 
 

 
Tank Mix #2 Low Volume Basal or Cut Surface Treatments (CST) Applications 
 

 
1 – Imazapyr will not be applied on the same right-of-way in two consecutive years 
2 – Equivalent surfactants, drift retardants, and basal oils will be used if those listed are no longer available or more effective alternatives  

become available 
3 -Methylated Seed Oil (MSO) will be labeled for wetland uses 
4- Roundup Custom ATU will only be used if added to the Massachusetts Sensitive Materials List 
5- Additional Glyphosate products may be substituted depending on the availability of products or if additional products become available 

 
VIII. ALTERNATIVE MECHANICAL CONTROL TECHNIQUES 
 
 Areas not treated or prohibited from herbicide use, such as protective buffers for Sensitive Areas, 
will be maintained mechanically according to the specifications in the VMP’s.  The following is a brief 
review of these methods: 
 

Hand Cutting: the use of chain and brush saws to remove the stem and/or branches from the 
plant’s root system; can be combined with CST except in no-chemical restricted areas. 
 
Mowing: the cutting, severing or shattering of vegetation by large rotary or flail mowers. 
 
Side Pruning: side pruning or removal of encroaching tops and/or branches of trees growing on 
or near the ROW's and access roads.   
 

Herbicides & Adjuvants Active Ingredient EPA Registration 
Number(s) 

Mix 
Concentration 
(per 100 gals.) 

Estimated 
Application Rate 
Per Acre 

Garlon 4 Ultra Triclopyr 62719-527 20%-30% Per density of 
target stems 

Polaris Imazapyr 228-534 3%-5%  (mixed 
with Garlon 4 
Ultra) 

Per density of 
target stems 

Carrier: Arborchem's low 
odor basal oil or Aqumix 
Plus basal oil with dye or 
equivalent2 

n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. 

Maximum of 8 gals. Per acre 

Herbicides & Adjuvants Active Ingredient EPA Registration 
Number(s) 

Mix 
Concentration 
(per 100 gals.) 

Estimated 
Application Rate 
Per Acre 

Garlon 4 Ultra Triclopyr 62719-527 20%-30% Per density of 
target stems 

Carrier: Arborchem's low 
odor basal oil or Aqumix 
Plus basal oil with dye or 
equivalent2  

n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. 

Maximum of 8 gals. Per acre 



 

14 
 

IX. COMPANIES THAT MAY PERFORM THE HERBICIDE TREATMENT 
 

Lewis Tree Service, Inc  
300 Lucius Gordon Drive  
West Henrietta, NY 14586 
(585) 436-3208 

X. INDIVIDUAL RESPONSIBLE FOR SUPERVISING THE OPERATION PLAN 
 

William Hayes 
 Senior Supervisor 
Eversource Energy  

Transmission Vegetation Management 
247 Station Drive, SW-1036 
Westwood, MA 02090-9230 

781-441-3932 (office) 
 
XI. HERBICIDE FACT SHEETS 
 
 Herbicide Fact Sheets prepared and provided by the MDAR, explain technical information 
relative to the herbicide concentrates proposed for use during the 2023 treatment cycle.  These are 
included in Appendix III, along with the manufacturer's labels in Appendix IV. 
 
XII. PROCEDURES FOR HANDLING, MIXING AND LOADING HERBICIDE 
CONCENTRATES 
 
 All herbicides will be handled, mixed and applied strictly according to Label Instructions and in 
compliance with all applicable federal and state laws and regulations.  If possible, herbicide mixing 
should be done at the contractor's facilities and extreme care shall be exercised during all mixing, 
handling and loading in order to prevent careless spills or splashes.  No herbicide concentrates will be 
mixed, handled or loaded on a ROW within one hundred (100) feet of a Sensitive Area. 
 
XIII. EMERGENCY RESOURCES 
 
 Eversource contracts with independent, professional, certified herbicide applicators that are 
responsible for the containment, clean up and reporting of chemical spills or accidents.  The following is a 
guide to the information sources that, according to various regulations, must be available to the treatment 
crew in the event of a chemical spill or emergency situation: 
 

A. Technical Reference Materials: 
a. Product Label 
b. Product Material Safety Data Sheet (SDS) 
c. Product Fact Sheet, if available 

  



 

15 
 

B. Table VII. Herbicide Manufacturers: 
MANUFACTURER TELEPHONE 

NUMBER 
SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS 

Albaugh Inc. 800-247-8013  
BASF Corporation 800-832-4357  
ENVU and Bayer Environmental 
Science 

800-334-7577  

Corteva AgriScience 800-992-5994  
Nufarm 877-325-1840 Medical Emergencies 

 
C. Table VIII. State Agencies: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D. Table IX. Emergency Services: 
EMERGENCY SERVICE TELEPHONE NUMBER SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS 
Massachusetts State Police, 
Central Office 

617-566-4500 or 911  

Local Fire / Police Dept. 911  
Chem Trec 800-424-9300  
Clean Harbors 800-OIL-TANK  
Pesticide Hotline 800-858-7378 PST: 8:00 am to 12:00 pm,  

Web: www.NPIC.orst.edu 
 

 
E. Eversource contact in the case of a spill or accident is: 
 

System Control 
Eversource 

247 Station Drive 
Westwood, MA 02090-9230 

(617)-541-7858 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STATE AGENCY TELEPHONE NUMBER SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS 
Massachusetts Pesticide 
Bureau 

(617) 626-1700 A.S.A.P. (within 48 hours) 

Massachusetts Department 
of Environmental 
Protection, Emergency 
Response Section 
 

DEP 24 Hour 
Contact:  
(888) 304-1133 

For emergencies involving 
reportable quantities of 
hazardous materials; required 
info:  City/town, street address, 
site name (if applicable), 
material  

Southeast Region:  
(508) 946-2700 

Massachusetts Dept. of 
Public Health, Bureau of 
Env. Health Assessment 
Toxicology Program 

(617) 624-5757  

Massachusetts Poison 
Information Centers  

(800) 682-9211 For medical emergencies 
involving suspected or known 
pesticide poisoning symptoms 

http://www.npic.orst.edu/


 

16 
 

 
F. Table X. Local Emergency Numbers:  

Non-911 Emergencies Services for Eversource Electric Municipalities 
 

Town Board of Health Town/City Hall Town Board of Health Town/City Hall 
Bourne (508) 862-4644 (508) 862-4610    

 



Select Board Meeting 7.24.23

For Your Information (FYIs) 

1. Cape Cod Sea Camps Community Forum #2 
2. Housing Coordinator Update June 2023 
3. Recommended Appointments: 

a. Nancy Evans – Barnstable County Human Rights Advisory Commission 
b. Scott Weissman – Natural Resources Advisory Committee 
c. Adrienne Jones- Housing Partnership 

4. Community Development Block Grant Quarterly Report 
5. South Coastal Counties Legal Services, Inc. Report 
6. Independence House, Inc. Reports 
7. Resident Feedback regarding Free Drinking Water Program 
8. Letter from Senator Warren Regarding the Impacts of the Cape Cod Bridges 
9. MassPRIM June 2023 Reports 



Town of Brewster 
Cape Cod Sea Camps Planning 

Date: Saturday, August 5th 2023
Attend one of three sessions:  
 
1pm-2pm, 2pm-3pm or 3pm-4pm 
 
Location: Bay Property Dining Hall 

Join us for community forum #2! 

Community Forum #2 will be an engaging community event that shares preliminary planning scenarios for both 
the Bay and Pond properties based on resident feedback from Community Forum #1 and the survey. 

Each session will begin with introductory remarks. The remainder of the meeting will be a community workshop 
where residents will be invited to learn about the planning scenarios, indicate their preference and share 
feedback. This event will be the second public community workshop in a series of six that takes place over the 
course of the planning process. 

The Council on Aging will be offering rides to and from community forum sessions. Please call the Council on 
Aging at 508-896-2737 by Thursday August 3rd to arrange for transportation.

For more details about the long-term planning process, information on Bay Property and Pond Property 
Planning Committee meetings and interim activities at both properties, please visit the project page, 
https://www.brewster-ma.gov/cape-cod-sea-camps-properties. To provide feedback to one of the committees, 
please email us at bppc@brewster-ma.gov (Bay property) or pppc@brewster-ma.gov (Pond property).

The Bay Property will be open to the public to 
explore by foot anytime between 12pm-5pm 

Registration for the forum is limited to town residents.  To register for one of the workshop times, 
scan the QR code or follow this link: 
https://www.brewster-ma.gov/cape-cod-sea-camps-properties



Community 
Forum

Committee 
Meetings

Town 
Vote

Identify your 
priorities with the 

planning team

 Tune in to public meetings where 
community representatives workshop 

ideas with the planning team

Vote to approve the 
comprehensive plans at the 
Spring 2024 Town Meeting

Comprehensive 
Planning Document

See the vision for the future of 
the Sea Camp Properties



Housing Coordinator Update June 2023 

Jill Scalise  

Ongoing Activities/ Projects  
1. Community Outreach and Education (Housing Production Plan (HPP) Strategy #14) 

 Responded to email and phone requests for information and assistance, 50 total requests for housing 
information (35) or assistance (15). Open office hours Thursday from 10-noon. 

2. Brewster Affordable Housing Trust (BAHT) (HPP assorted strategies, Select Board (SB) Strategic Plan H-1)  

 Prepared Community Preservation Act application for funding of the Affordable Buydown program. 

 Met with Human Resources and Donna Kalinick regarding initial job description and hiring process for the 

Housing Program Assistant position, which will be funded by Housing Trust. 

 With Donna Kalinick, prepared and presented Housing update to Select Board. 

3. Community Housing Parcel off Millstone (SB Strategic Plan H-4, HPP Strategies #12 & 16)  

 Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) approved Preservation of Affordable Housing (POAH) and Housing 

Assistance Corporation (HAC) Comprehensive Permit application at the June 13th meeting.   
4.Comprehensive Permit Projects (HPP Strategy #16) 

 Habitat for Humanity on Phoebe Way off Red Top Road (2 affordable homes): Applications now open, see 

link below. Lottery expected to be held in fall. 
5. Preservation of Housing and Related Support of Brewster Residents (SB H-3, HPP Strategy #20) 

 Brewster’s Rental Assistance Program (BRAP)-  HAC Quarterly report: 11 households received $42,034 in 
financial assistance. Additionally, 7 active BRAP households. Request for Quotes (RFQ) completed and 
then issued by Donna Kalinick. This will continue program for 3 years. Funded by BAHT with CPA funds. 

 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)-  Program progressing well. 15 housing rehab projects 
approved, 27 children currently receiving childcare assistance.  

6. Subsidized Housing Inventory (SHI) (HPP Strategy #21 & 22) 

 212 Yankee Drive- Continued work with The Rehab Inc. on scope of work. Invitation for Bid (IFB) 
completed and issued by Donna Kalinick. IFB walk through. Site visit with Building Commissioner. 

 Serenity Apartments- Met with managing director. Provided regulatory agreement which lays out 
requirements for operation of affordable units. 

 6 Sachemus Trail- affordable home resale approved by Town and state. Waiting on marketing by HAC. 
7. Housing Production Plan (HPP) (Select Board Strategic Plan Goal H-2) 

 ADU Bylaw: Assisted Town Planner Idman & Asst. Town Manager Kalinick with research, presentation, 
and outreach for Planning Board ADU discussion and listening session. 

 Jon Idman submitted MA Community Planning Grant application for funds to examine the current zoning 
bylaw & identify impediments & opportunities for multi-unit and mixed-use residential housing. 

 Assisted with housing review and updates for the Local Comprehensive Plan. 

8.  Collaboration (HPP Strategy #7)  

 Attended virtual and in-person Housing Institute, first time in-person component held since 2019. 

 Participated in Brewster Seniors Needs Assessment meeting. Wrote letter of support for COA grant. 
Upcoming Events: 

 Applications open for 2 Habitat for Humanity 3 bedroom homes on Phoebe Way. Due August 14th. 

To Apply for a Home | Habitat for Humanity Cape Cod (habitatcapecod.org)

 Local Preference Information Session planned for August 17th at 6PM. 
Personnel 

 Participated in Planning Board, Select Board and ZBA meetings. Worked with: Assessors, Building, 

Council on Aging, CPC, Finance, Health, Planning, Public Works, Town Administration & ZBA. Attended 
year-end Finance Training and De-escalation Strategies for Uncivil Discourse training. 

https://habitatcapecod.org/to-apply-for-a-home/


FINAL Select Bd Appt Policy; version Oct. 28 

 

Appendix C 
 

SELECT BOARD COMMITTEE APPLICATION SCREENING FORM 
 

Applicant Name           Requested Committee       
 

 
1. TOWN CLERK REVIEW 

a. Applicant is a registered Brewster voter:     Yes   No 
b. Date confirmed         

 
 

2. SELECT BOARD LIAISON RECOMMENDATION TO SELECT BOARD 
a. Select Board Liaison Applicant Interview: 

i. Interviewer name (Select Board Liaison):       
ii. Interview date:       

 
b. Select Board Liaison Consultation with Committee Chair: 

iii. Committee Chair name:        
iv. Consultation date:       
v. Did Committee Chair also interview applicant?  Yes  No 

 
c. Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted:  Yes  No        N/A 

 
d. Select Board Liaison Recommendation: 

i.  Recommend appointment. 
 

ii.  Recommend appointment to other committee that is a better fit for 
applicant qualifications. 
 

iii.  Recommend holding application for future opening.  
 

iv.  Not recommended.  
 
3. SELECT BOARD ACTION 

a. At a Select Board meeting held      , the Applicant was appointed to       
for a term ending       year term. 
 

4. NOTIFICATION OF APPOINTEE AND TOWN CLERK 
a. Date notification of appointment sent to appointee and Town Clerk:       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 















FINAL Select Bd Appt Policy; version Oct. 28 

 

Appendix C 
 

SELECT BOARD COMMITTEE APPLICATION SCREENING FORM 
 

Applicant Name           Requested Committee       
 

 
1. TOWN CLERK REVIEW 

a. Applicant is a registered Brewster voter:     Yes   No 
b. Date confirmed         

 
 

2. SELECT BOARD LIAISON RECOMMENDATION TO SELECT BOARD 
a. Select Board Liaison Applicant Interview: 

i. Interviewer name (Select Board Liaison):       
ii. Interview date:       

 
b. Select Board Liaison Consultation with Committee Chair: 

iii. Committee Chair name:        
iv. Consultation date:       
v. Did Committee Chair also interview applicant?  Yes  No 

 
c. Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted:  Yes  No        N/A 

 
d. Select Board Liaison Recommendation: 

i.  Recommend appointment. 
 

ii.  Recommend appointment to other committee that is a better fit for 
applicant qualifications. 
 

iii.  Recommend holding application for future opening.  
 

iv.  Not recommended.  
 
3. SELECT BOARD ACTION 

a. At a Select Board meeting held      , the Applicant was appointed to       
for a term ending       year term. 
 

4. NOTIFICATION OF APPOINTEE AND TOWN CLERK 
a. Date notification of appointment sent to appointee and Town Clerk:       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FINAL Select Bd Appt Policy; version Oct. 28 

Appendix B 
 

Town of Brewster 
SELECT BOARD COMMITTEE APPOINTMENT APPLICATION 

 
APPLICANT DIRECTIONS:  
 Thank you for your interest in serving Brewster. The Town aims to match applicants 

with committee service best aligned to your skills and interests as well as the 
committee’s needs.  

 The Town may consider the information in this application, any supplemental 
information, and any other publicly available information. An appointment to any 
committee, board or commission is at the discretion of the Select Board. 

 Please complete this form online, or on paper, and submit a résumé if desired to 
Erika Mawn, Town Administrator’s Executive Assistant:  

o Email: EMawn@Brewster-MA.gov 
o Mail: Erika Mawn, 2198 Main St., Brewster, MA 02631, or  
o In person: Town Administrator’s Office or drop-box outside Town Hall.  

 After your application materials are received, you’ll be contacted regarding next 
steps. Vacancies will be filled by applicants deemed best qualified to serve in a 
particular capacity, which discretion lies solely with the appointing authority. 
Submitting this form does not guarantee appointment.  

______________________________________________________________________ 

1. Applicant name:        

2. Address:   

3. Phone Numbers:   Home:    Cell:       

4. Email:   

5. This is an application for:    Full member status  Alternate status 

6. Are you a full-time Brewster resident?        Yes   No 

7. Years you’ve lived in Brewster:       

8. Are you registered to vote in Brewster?   Yes   No 

9. Committees you are interested in serving on in order of preference: 
a.       
b.       
c.       

 

NOTE: You may attach a résumé or CV instead of completing items 10-14. 

Doc ID: fc1e0b7140b622985c36abf9b734bd7db3607883



FINAL Select Bd Appt Policy; version Oct. 28 

10. EDUCATION. List schools attended, degrees/diplomas/certificates received, 
and date of completion. 

     

11. OCCUPATION:          Active  Retired   Not currently working  

12. EMPLOYMENT EXPERIENCE. List employers, job titles and dates of 
employment for at least previous 3 years.  

     

13. GOVERNMENT POSITIONS. List any Town of Brewster or other government 
volunteer, elected, or appointed positions you now hold or have held. 

     

14. COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES. List all civic, non-profit, or other organizations that 
you belong to or have belonged to in the previous 5 years: 

a. Organizations and dates:       
 

15. GOALS: Please explain why you’d like to serve on a particular committee. 
     

16. EXPERIENCE & SKILLS: Please list any experience, achievements, skills, or 
interests you have that would assist you to serve effectively on the committee
you wish to serve on. 

     

17. TOWN EMPLOYMENT: Are you or any member of your immediate family 
employed by or receiving financial consideration from the Town of Brewster? 

     

18. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. Do any of your activities or relationships present 
the possibility or probability of a conflict of interest if you are appointed?(Does 
not automatically disqualify but may need to be disclosed) 

     

19. LOCAL REFERENCES: Please provide the names and contact information for 
references (Brewster residents preferred): 

a. Name:       
Address: 
Phone:       
Email:  
Relationship to you:       
 

b. Name:       
Address:       
Phone: 
Email:       
Relationship to you:       

Doc ID: fc1e0b7140b622985c36abf9b734bd7db3607883



FINAL Select Bd Appt Policy; version Oct. 28 

20. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. Please add any additional information you’d like. 
      

21. SIGNATURE. By signing below, you state that you understand and agree. 
 My completion of this form does not guarantee my appointment and my 

application will be kept on file for two (2) years.  
 If appointed to a position, I will be considered a Municipal Employee under MGL

Ch. 268A and will be subject to: 
 Massachusetts Conflict of Interest Law, MGL Ch. 268A; 
 Massachusetts Financial Disclosure Law, MGL Ch. 268B; 
 Massachusetts Open Meeting Law, MGL Ch. 30A, Sections 18-25, and the 

implementing regulations, 940 CMR 29.00; 
 Massachusetts Public Records Law, MGL Ch. 66, and the implementing 

regulations, 950 CMR 32.00; 
 Massachusetts Campaign Finance Law, MGL Ch. 55; and 
 Brewster Charter, when in force, and Town bylaws, and all other applicable

federal, state, and local laws or regulations. 
 If appointed, I must be sworn in by the Town Clerk before serving, and I will 

complete State Conflict of Interest training after appointment, as well as any
other certifications required by law.  

 When submitted, I understand that this form becomes a public document.  

Signature:            Date:       

Doc ID: fc1e0b7140b622985c36abf9b734bd7db3607883



Scott R. Weissman, DNP, ACNP-BC, FNP-BC  
 

 
Professional Experience 
DynaMed Decisions, Ipswich, MA      
Senior Clinical Editor      July 2002 - Present 

• Provide clinical and editorial oversight for development and implementation of evidence-based point-of-care 
decision-making tools for clinicians and patients 

 
Outer Cape Health Services, Provincetown, MA    
Family Nurse Practitioner      April 2019 – July 2022 
Program Medical Director for Urgent Care Services    

• NP in non-profit, rural, community health center for Urgent Care and Primary Care Departments  

• Provide clinical and operational oversight for Urgent Care department 

• Member of Clinical Leadership Team 

• Team Leader for Harvard Center for Primary Care Advancing Teams in Community Health 2019 Cohort focusing 
on improving pediatric vaccination rates in the Outer Cape community  

• Team Member and Clinical Content Expert for successful 2019 Joint Commission and HRSA accreditation visits 

• OCHIN/EPIC EHR Subject Matter Expert 
 
Brewster Medical Associates, Brewster, MA       
Nurse Practitioner      September 2017-April 2019 

• NP in full-service family practice 
 
Martha’s Vineyard Hospital, Oak Bluffs, MA       
Nurse Practitioner      September 2016-September 2017 

• NP in rural, critical access hospital for Family Medicine, Emergency, and Pediatric Departments 

• EPIC EHR Implementation Team 
 
Lynn Community Health Center, Lynn, MA     
Nurse Practitioner                      September 2013-September 2016 

• NP in non-profit, urban, community health center for Urgent Care and Primary Care Departments 

• Developed and implemented facility-wide Rapid Response Team 

• OCHIN/EPIC EHR Implementation Team 
 

Northeastern University, Boston, MA 
Clinical Preceptor            September 2015-April 2019 

• Clinical preceptor Nurse Practitioner programs 
 
Endicott College, Beverly, MA 
Adjunct Faculty                       January 2014-June 2015 

• Adjunct faculty Endicott College School of Nursing 
-NU 564 Family Nurse Practitioner Adult Medicine (Graduate Level) 
-NU 564 Family Nurse Practitioner clinical preceptor (Graduate Level) 
-NU 489 Thesis I (Undergraduate/Senior) 
-NU 306 Nursing Research (Undergraduate/Junior)  

 
Massachusetts College of Pharmacy and Health Science, Boston, MA 
Adjunct Clinical Faculty        July 2014-September 2016 

• Clinical preceptor Physician Assistant programs 
 
 



2 

North Shore Medical Center-Salem Hospital, Salem, MA 
Registered Nurse-Emergency Services       August 2008-August 2013 

• RN in high acuity regional trauma center/emergency department  

• Emergency Department Evidence-Based Practice Education Committee Member 

• Cardiac Arrest Quality Improvement Representative from Emergency Department 

• Clinical preceptor for multiple regional nursing and paramedic programs 

• Schwartz Center for Compassionate Care featured speaker for Ethics Rounds 

• Recipient 2012 Partners in Excellence Award 
         
Northeast Regional Ambulance Service, Inc., Peabody, MA  
Massachusetts Certified EMT-B       September 2006-June 2008 

• Performed EMT duties for 911-emergency contract city 

• Performed BLS inter-facility transfers, assisted with ALS inter-facility transfers 
 
Education 
 
Northeastern University (Doctor of Nursing Practice) 
Bouve College of Health Sciences 
360 Huntington Avenue 
Boston, MA 02115 
Doctor of Nursing Practice-Graduated May 2017 
-Research: Exploring the Reasons Nurse Practitioners in Massachusetts Choose Whether or Not to Precept Students 
 
University of Massachusetts Boston (FNP-BC) 
College of Nursing and Health Sciences 
100 Morrissey Boulevard  
Boston, MA 02125 
Post-MSN Family Nurse Practitioner Certificate-Graduated August 2014 
 
Northeastern University (ACNP-BC, MSN) 
Bouve College of Health Sciences 
360 Huntington Avenue 
Boston, MA 02115 
Adult-Gero Acute Care Nurse Practitioner (ACNP), Master of Science in Nursing (MSN)-Graduated May 2013 
 
Endicott College (RN, BSN) 
376 Hale Street 
Beverly, MA 01915 
Bachelor of Science in Nursing (BSN)-Graduated May 2008     
-Senior Thesis: Improving Nursing Care with Family Presence in the Emergency Department 
-Student Nurses Association: President ’07-’08, Secretary ’06-‘07 
 
Professional Certifications/Memberships 
 

• Member Sigma Theta Tau International Nursing Honors Society 

• Member Massachusetts Coalition of Nurse Practitioners 

• Certified Nurse Practitioner-Commonwealth of Massachusetts (283179) 

• Family Nurse Practitioner-Board Certified 

• Adult-Gerontology Acute Care Nurse Practitioner-Board Certified 

• Registered Nurse-Commonwealth of Massachusetts 

• Advanced Cardiac Life Support (ACLS) 

• Basic Life Support (BLS) 



FINAL Select Bd Appt Policy; version Oct. 28 

 

Appendix C 
 

SELECT BOARD COMMITTEE APPLICATION SCREENING FORM 
 

Applicant Name           Requested Committee       
 

 
1. TOWN CLERK REVIEW 

a. Applicant is a registered Brewster voter:     Yes   No 
b. Date confirmed         

 
 

2. SELECT BOARD LIAISON RECOMMENDATION TO SELECT BOARD 
a. Select Board Liaison Applicant Interview: 

i. Interviewer name (Select Board Liaison):       
ii. Interview date:       

 
b. Select Board Liaison Consultation with Committee Chair: 

iii. Committee Chair name:        
iv. Consultation date:       
v. Did Committee Chair also interview applicant?  Yes  No 

 
c. Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted:  Yes  No        N/A 

 
d. Select Board Liaison Recommendation: 

i.  Recommend appointment. 
 

ii.  Recommend appointment to other committee that is a better fit for 
applicant qualifications. 
 

iii.  Recommend holding application for future opening.  
 

iv.  Not recommended.  
 
3. SELECT BOARD ACTION 

a. At a Select Board meeting held      , the Applicant was appointed to       
for a term ending       year term. 
 

4. NOTIFICATION OF APPOINTEE AND TOWN CLERK 
a. Date notification of appointment sent to appointee and Town Clerk:       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 









1

Donna Kalinick

From: Cassie Boyd Marsh <cboyd@baileyboyd.com>

Sent: Wednesday, July 12, 2023 3:04 PM

To: Donna Kalinick; Jill Scalise

Subject: Brewster CDBG Quarterly Report

Attachments: FY21 Brewster QR 6_30_23.pdf

Good afternoon-  

I hope you’re both well and enjoying the summer so far.  

Please find attached the most recent CDBG quarterly report. Both programs are moving forward well, we’re very happy 
with their progress. 

Also, I realized it’s not in the report but of the 27 children currently funded through the childcare program, 12 are from 
Brewster. 

As always, feel free to reach out with any questions. 

Have a great day, 

Cassie 
Cassie Boyd Marsh
9 Hillside Road
Scituate, MA 02066
508-430-4499 x1
she/her/hers



FY	21	Brewster	Regional	CDBG	Grant	
Quarterly	Report	for	the	period	ending	6/30/23	

	
	

Grant	Administration	
The	administration	of	the	Brewster	CDBG	grant	is	progressing	well.	During	this	quarter	the	grant	administrator	held	
three	 trainings	with	 the	 sub-grantee,	 completed	 a	 single	 case	waiver,	 and	 provided	 guidance	 on	 applicant	 and	
construction	 issues.	There	are	no	concerns	at	 this	 time.	The	program	 is	on	schedule,	and	we	anticipate	a	 timely	
completion	of	this	grant.	
	
Housing	Rehab	Program	
We	have	15	projects	in	the	pipeline:	14	under	contract	of	which:	8	are	completed	and	closed	out,	5	in	construction	phases:		
3	in	active	construction	nearing	completion;	1	septic	project	which	experienced	multiple	delays	from	town	water	hookup	
to	homeowner	family	health	crisis	and	the	GC	dropping	out	due	to	his	own	family	issues.	We	are	now	in	the	“rescue”	phase	
with	the	final	work	to	be	completed	by	a	new	GC;	1	SCW	approved,	and	materials	ordered.		A	Brewster	project	is	pending	
their	second	meeting	with	Brewster	Historic	Committee;	and	1	pending	the	septic	design	with	a	construction	WWU	ready	
to	go	once	there	is	a	handle	on	the	septic	expenses.	Twelve	households	are	elderly	(8	single	females	and	4	couples)	and	3	
are	families,	two	with	children	under	6.		Lead	and	septic	are	the	big	money	items	this	grant	cycle.		Three	projects	have	
significant	lead	hazards	that	must	be	addressed:	one	being	a	young	family	with	two	children	under	two	years	old	living	in	
an	antique	home	circa	1740.		The	other	2	lead	projects	were	approved	for	Single	Case	Waivers.			We	have	a	list	of	approx.	
10	full	applications	to	approve	if	FY22/23	funding	is	awarded.	
	
Operations	
We	are	exploring	a	new	collaboration	with	Cape	Light	Compact.		They	have	a	program	that	is	not	getting	much	traction	–	
funds	to	cover	replacement	windows;	windows	much	be	single	paned	with	no	storms	and	will	need	to	be	replaced	with	
triple	paned	energy	efficient	windows.		This	potential	collaboration	could	be	a	huge	help	in	covering	windows	costs	for	
our	homeowners	but	there	are	a	several	kinks	to	iron	out	before	we	can	assess	the	true	benefit	and	possibility.		We	had	3	
new	GCs	join	in	on	walk	throughs,	another	is	working	on	getting	his	own	GC	license	after	working	as	a	sub	for	several	
years;	2	others	are	working	on	their	moderate	risk	deleading	license.		We	are	fortunate	that	our	two	mainstay	GCs	that	
have	been	in	the	program	for	10-15	years	are	carrying	the	yeoman’s	work;	one	has	two	crews	and	the	other	is	primarily	
a	one	man	show.		We	are	giving	leeway	with	deadlines	to	accommodate	the	number	of	projects	per	GC	and	working	to	
support	the	effort	by	approving	“materials	only”	payments	for	windows	given	the	lead	time	and	the	GC	capital	tied	up	in	
the	wait.		One	of	the	many	hats	staff	has	had	to	wear	lately	is	“Project	Manager”	to	help	them	bring	the	projects	across	the	
finish	line.		We	are	increasingly	doing	the	work	normally	accomplished	by	the	GC’s	so	that	we	keep	projects	moving.	We	
are	working	diligently	to	get	all	projects	under	contract	by	the	end	of	August	and	have	decided	to	put	a	hold	on	septic	
work	until	the	FY22/23	grant,	if	funded.	Designs	are	a	minimum	of	3-4	months	and	installs	are	between	1-2	months	if	
there	are	no	issues.			
	
Marketing	in	the	Community		
Towns	continue	to	do	an	excellent	job	of	updating	their	sites	and	sharing	information.		Word	of	mouth	is	by	far	the	most	
effective	and	widespread.		The	COAs	are	featuring	a	blurb	about	the	Housing	Rehab	Program	in	each	newsletter.	
	
FY21	Program	~	Labor	Shortages	&	Inflation.	
High	cost	of	everything	on	Cape	Cod	and	a	labor	shortage	due	to	the	lack	of	affordable	housing	for	workers	still	haunt	the	
construction	world.	 	 Everything	 is	 taking	 longer	 to	 schedule,	 i.e.,	 permitting,	 septic	designs	&	 installations,	 plumbers,	
electricians,	and	our	high	risk	deleader	is	coming	from	off	Cape	and	we	are	using	him	more	and	more	due	to	the	increased	
presence	of	lead	in	these	projects.		Prices	are	coming	in	very	high,	so	we	are	working	diligently	to	enlist	other	collaborators	
to	leverage	funds.	So	far	we	have	7	households	that	have	been	referred	to	Cape	Light	Compact	for	heat	pumps	due	to	their	
failed	or	non-existent	heating	situations.	 	Lead	paint	hazards	and	septic	systems	are	prevalent	 in	 this	grant	cycle	and	
almost	every	project	is	hitting	their	funding	capacity	and	some	exceeding.			
	
PERFORMANCE MEASURES - HOUSING REHABILITAION: 
# of homeowner units occupied by elderly: 12 
# of homeowner units moved from substandard to standard:  12 
# of homeowner units made accessible: 3 
# of homeowner units brought into compliance with lead safety rules: 5 
 



LEAD PAINT REPORTING 
        *Applicable Lead Paint Requirement:   *Lead Hazard Remediation Action 

Housing constructed before 1978  11  Lead safe Work Practices ~ (Hard costs <$5k) 7 
Exempt: housing constructed 1978 or later  4  Interim Control or Std Practices ~ (Hard costs $5K -$25K) 2 

Otherwise exempt    Abatement ~ (Hard costs > $25,000) 2 
Exempt: Hard costs <= $5,000      

Total  15  Total  11 
***as projects come under contract, the performance measures & the lead hazard remediation action will be filled in. 
 

An	elderly	couple,	newly	retired,	finds	its	not	all	gardening	and	fishing.		An	elderly	couple	bought	their	
tiny	cottage	on	the	pond	25	years	ago	in	hopes	of	a	peaceful	retirement;	fishing	and	gardening.		Juggling	the	high	costs	of	
repairs,	living	on	social	security	while	trying	to	manage	an	elderly	parent’s	care	from	afar	proved	to	be	a	larger	and	more	
costly	task	than	anticipated.		The	good	news	~	it’s	a	tiny	cottage,	with	no	lead….	which	turns	out	to	be	a	VERY	good	thing.	
	

Ø Replace	 roof,	 siding	 (Cedar	 Impressions-PVC	 white	 cedar	 look-a-like	 cheaper	 than	 the	 real	 thing	 and	 more	
sustainable!),	windows	and	doors.			

Ø Replace	soggy	countertop.	
Ø Leverage	funds	from	Cape	Light	Compact	provided	new	heat	pumps	that	cover	heat	AND	AC.	

	

Before ~ Tiny cottage needs the basics ~ roof, siding, windows & doors 
	

 
 



 



  

 
 

The basics come in at $37,116.20 ~ good news!  With plenty left for suprises 
under the roof and siding…where the usual trouble lies… 
 
 
 



During ~ The job progresses nicely, on schedule, no issues. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

After ~ The FINAL!  New roof, new siding, door and windows!  ALMOST… 

 

 
 

THE LAST STEP... Kitchen counter and faucet …. SURPRISE!	



 
This is exactly why there are single case waivers~$11,380 change order 

Severe health & structural problems averted!! 

 



FY21 Brewster Childcare Subsidy Program 

The FY21 Brewster Regional Childcare Subsidy Program continues to make steady progress, with 
new applications arriving & approved families utilizing their funds. Now fully into summer, we’ve seen 
many families in need of childcare during the busy tourist season. We’ve approved new applications 
and additional children from previously approved families, which will help their parents sustain 
employment over the summer.  To date we have received 24 family applications and approved 17. 
This program is serving a total of 27 children and has encumbered just approximately three-quarters 
of the available funds so far. We’re looking forward to continuing our progress over the remaining 2 
quarters of this grant year. 

Performance Measures: 



New Access:  21 

Improved Access:  6 

No Longer Substandard: 0 

 



















1

Erika Mawn

From: Bojczyk, Mark B CIV (USA) < >

Sent: Tuesday, July 11, 2023 8:59 AM

To: Erika Mawn

Cc: Bojczyk, Mark B CIV (USA)

Subject: Free water

Good morning,  

This email is in regard to the new free drinking water program in Brewster. As a Brewster resident I personally feel that 
is unreasonable that residents are expected to pay for water while the town is simultaneously providing free water to 
whoever chooses to take advantage of it.  

While I understand the environmental implications of bottled water I truly believe that this program will have little to no 
effect on the consumption of bottled water. The receptacle at which this water is being supplied bears no difference 
from your average tap water. This is going to be a deterrent to bottled water drinkers because they choose to consume 
bottled water for its purity. It is unlikely without a costly filtration system and consistent water quality tests that these 
people will cease their bottled water consumption.  

As for providing clean drinking water for those who cannot afford it, it is unclear why we that responsibility falls on tax 
payers. There are countless resources in our immediate area that provide resources such as this without placing further 
burdens on tax payers.  

Thank you in advance for allowing me to voice my concerns.  

Very Respectfully,  

Mark Bojczyk 

emawn
Text Box




 

 

 

 

 

     July 19, 2023 

 

 

Peter Lombardi 

Town Administrator 

Town of Brewster 

2198 Main Street 

Brewster, MA 02631 

 

 

Dear Mr. Lombardi: 

 

We are writing regarding the impacts of the crumbling Cape Cod bridges on your 

community, businesses, and residents, and the economic and quality of life benefits that replacing 

those bridges would have on your community. 

 

 The Bourne and the Sagamore Bridges, which are owned by the federal government, were 

built in 1933, and fundamentally “changed the relationship between the Cape and the rest of 

Massachusetts.”1 The bridges are the sole access point for the more than 35 million vehicles that 

cross the canal each year, and serve as the gateway to Cape Cod for more than 260,000 Cape and 

Islands residents and roughly 5 million visitors annually.2 They are vital assets for the Cape Cod 

economy and surrounding communities,3 and also serve as essential routes for general 

transportation, tourism, and evacuations in case of an emergency. However, the current bridges are 

nearly 90 years old, functionally obsolete, and require increasingly costly and disruptive 

maintenance.4 The bridges’ structural deficiencies present an ongoing risk to the accessibility and 

economic stability of the Cape Cod region. 

                                                 
1
 Massachusetts Department of Transportation, “History of the canal and bridges,” https://www.mass.gov/info-

details/history-of-the-canal-and-bridges.  
2
 Cape Cod Times, “Sagamore, Bourne bridges have brought prosperity, loyalty and now worries to Cape Cod,” Asad 

Jung, May 27, 2022, https://www.capecodtimes.com/story/news/2022/05/27/cape-cod-canal-bridges-brought-

prosperity-loyalty-worries/9688301002/; WGBH, “Federal funding for Cape Cod bridges project denied a second 

time,” Bob Seay, January 5, 2023, https://www.wgbh.org/news/local-news/2023/01/05/federal-funding-for-cape-cod-

bridges-project-denied-a-second-time. 
3
 Cape Cod Times, “Sagamore, Bourne bridges have brought prosperity, loyalty and now worries to Cape Cod,” Asad 

Jung, May 27, 2022, https://www.capecodtimes.com/story/news/2022/05/27/cape-cod-canal-bridges-brought-

prosperity-loyalty-worries/9688301002/; WGBH, “Federal funding for Cape Cod bridges project denied a second 

time,” Bob Seay, January 5, 2023, https://www.wgbh.org/news/local-news/2023/01/05/federal-funding-for-cape-cod-

bridges-project-denied-a-second-time.  
4
 U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, “Cape Cod Canal Highway Bridges Bourne, Massachusetts, Major Rehabilitation 

Evaluation Report,” November 9, 2018, 

https://www.nae.usace.army.mil/Portals/74/docs/Topics/Cape%20Cod%20Canal%20Bridges/Reports/MRERAppendi

xF.pdf; WGBH, “Federal funding for Cape Cod bridges project denied a second time,” Bob Seay, January 5, 2023,  
https://www.wgbh.org/news/local-news/2023/01/05/federal-funding-for-cape-cod-bridges-project-denied-a-second-

time. 



2 
 

 

 

The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), the Massachusetts Department of 

Transportation (MassDOT), and other stakeholders are working to replace both the Bourne and 

Sagamore Bridges and the highway approaches to the bridges.5 The project will ultimately result 

in new bridges that vastly improve travel conditions, meet modern safety standards for vehicle and 

pedestrian traffic, and provide significantly improved multimodal travel.  

 

I have been advocating for federal funding for this project since taking office in 2013, and 

have worked to bring federal agencies to the table to ensure collaboration. The urgency of 

replacing the Cape Cod bridges was one of the reasons I supported the Infrastructure Investment 

and Jobs Act (the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law). This legislation provided USACE with $17.1 

billion in new funding – including $11.6 billion for new construction – and more than $9 billion in 

formula funds for Massachusetts.6 In the 14 months since the bill was signed into law by President 

Biden, we have advocated with the White House, the federal Department of Transportation 

(USDOT), and other federal agencies to ensure the Cape Cod bridges project is a priority.  

 

Largely due to our efforts, the Biden administration in December 2022 awarded 

Massachusetts a $1.6 million planning grant for the bridges project, signaling their strong 

commitment to this critical infrastructure need.7 The Biden Administration also included a $350 

million down payment toward a $600 million allocation in the President’s FY2024 budget for the 

Army Corps.8 We are working hard to ensure we secure the rest of the funding necessary to 

replace these bridges. 

 

                                                 
5
 Massachusetts Department of Transportation, “Memorandum of Understanding Reached Between MassDOT and the 

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Regarding Bourne and Sagamore Bridges,” July 7, 2020, 

https://www.mass.gov/news/memorandum-of-understanding-reached-between-massdot-and-the-us-army-corps-of-

engineers-regarding-bourne-and-sagamore-bridges.  
6
 U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, “Additional Army Civil Works Studies, Projects and Programs to Be Accomplished 

with Bipartisan Infrastructure Law Funding,” March 30, 2022, 

https://www.usace.army.mil/Media/News/NewsSearch/Article/2982769/additional-army-civil-works-studies-projects-

and-programs-to-be-accomplished-wi/; Boston Globe, “Massachusetts is poised to receive $9 billion from Biden’s 

infrastructure bill. Here’s where it’s going,” Neya Thanikachalam and Taylor Dolven, November 15, 2021, 

https://www.bostonglobe.com/2021/11/15/nation/infrastructure-bill-signed-by-biden-allocates-least-9-billion-

massachusetts-transportation-advocates-have-ideas-how-spend-it/. 
7
 U.S. Department of Transportation, “Biden-Harris Administration Announces $2.1 Billion to Improve Four 

Nationally Significant Bridges Through the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law’s First Large Bridge Grants,” press release, 

January 4, 2023, https://www.transportation.gov/briefing-room/biden-harris-administration-announces-21-billion-

improve-four-nationally-significant.  
8
 The White House Office of Management and Budget, “Budget of the U.S. Government Fiscal Year 2024,” p. 119, 

https://www.whitehouse.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/03/budget_fy2024.pdf; Boston Globe, “Biden budget includes 

some funding for Cape Cod bridges — but a long path awaits in Congress,” Emma Platoff, March 9, 2023, 

https://www.bostonglobe.com/2023/03/09/nation/biden-budget-includes-some-funding-cape-cod-bridges-long-path-

awaits-congress/; Boston.com, “Here’s what Biden’s proposed budget would mean for the replacement of the Cape 

bridges,” Christopher Gavin, March 10, 2023, https://www.boston.com/news/politics/2023/03/10/biden-budget-cape-

cod-bridges/. 



3 
 

 

Given the bridges’ vital role as “passageways to the rest of the world, and an integral part 

of the economy,”9 full funding to replace these bridges is essential. The “economic vitality of 

Cape Cod and the quality of life for people who live, work, and visit these communities is 

dependent on these bridges.”10 Local leaders have continually highlighted the impact of current 

bridge repair closures, and future impacts if the bridges are not replaced. Deputy Director of the 

Cape Cod Commission Steven Tupper warned that “residents, visitors and local officials can count 

on more intensive traffic impacts if the replacement project doesn't come to pass…[and that] 

continued maintenance of the existing bridges would lead to intense cycles of ongoing repair 

work, some on the order of three to five years in length.”11 Cape Cod Chamber of Commerce CEO 

Paul Niedzwiecki said that the bridges “affect every single part of the Cape’s economy,”12 and that 

“the Bourne and Sagamore bridges provide the economic link between Cape Cod and [the] rest of 

the Commonwealth.… [T]he reliability of the bridges directly impacts the long-term viability of 

[the] region’s economy and the ability of local businesses to survive and thrive.”13 As Mr. 

Niedzwiecki put it, “our economic livelihood is sort of connected to those two automotive 

bridges.”14 

 

The Cape Cod Bridges replacement is key to modernizing Massachusetts’ physical 

infrastructure to meet the economic, social, and environmental challenges of the 21st century. As 

local stakeholders who live, work in, and lead communities surrounding these bridges, we seek 

your input as we press the federal government to live up to its commitments to replace the assets 

they own. In order to better understand the impacts of the current state of the bridges – and the 

benefits of replacing them – for your communities, we ask that you provide answers to the 

following questions no later than August 2, 2023:  

 

1. What impact has the state of disrepair of the bridges had on your community to date, 

including the impact of previous closures of the bridges? 

a. What are the economic impacts to tourism, local workers, businesses, families, and 

community members? 

                                                 
9
 Cape Cod Times, “Sagamore, Bourne bridges have brought prosperity, loyalty and now worries to Cape Cod,” Asad 

Jung, May 27, 2022, https://www.capecodtimes.com/story/news/2022/05/27/cape-cod-canal-bridges-brought-

prosperity-loyalty-worries/9688301002/. 
10

 The Commonwealth of Massachusetts, “About the Cape Cod Bridges Program,” https://www.mass.gov/info-

details/about-the-cape-cod-bridges-program. 
11

 The Cape Cod Chronicle, “Too Soon To Plan For Bridge Replacements, Lower Cape Officials Say,” Ryan Bray, 

March 1, 2023, https://capecodchronicle.com/en/5809/orleans/10014/Too-Soon-To-Plan-For-Bridge-Replacements-

Lower-Cape-Officials-Say-Bridges-Roads-highways-and-transportation-cape-cod-commission-Massachusetts-

Department-of-Transportation-transportation.htm. 
12

 Cape Cod Times, “Sagamore, Bourne bridges have brought prosperity, loyalty and now worries to Cape Cod,” 

Asad Jung, May 27, 2022, https://www.capecodtimes.com/story/news/2022/05/27/cape-cod-canal-bridges-brought-

prosperity-loyalty-worries/9688301002/.  
13

 Cape Cod Commission, “Regional Organizations Form Canal Bridges Task Force,” December 6, 2022, 

https://capecodcommission.org/about-us/newsroom/regional-organizations-form-canal-bridges-task-force/. 
14

 The Cape Cod Chronicle, “Too Soon To Plan For Bridge Replacements, Lower Cape Officials Say,” Ryan Bray, 

March 1, 2023, https://capecodchronicle.com/en/5809/orleans/10014/Too-Soon-To-Plan-For-Bridge-Replacements-

Lower-Cape-Officials-Say-Bridges-Roads-highways-and-transportation-cape-cod-commission-Massachusetts-

Department-of-Transportation-transportation.htm. 



4 
 

 

b. What have the impacts been to the community at large, such as supply chains and 

the availability and accessibility of retail goods and other items that come across 

the bridges? Does the state of the bridges make it more difficult or more expensive 

for residents to have access to everyday items? 

2. What are the benefits of replacing the bridges? 

a. How will replacing the bridges benefit the economy, tourism, businesses and local 

industries, and the community at large? 

3. What would the future impacts be on your community if the bridges do not get replaced, 

and they continue to deteriorate? 

4. What are the job creation and economic benefits of the bridge replacement project to your 

community? 

 

We remain fully committed to working with federal, state, and local partners until Cape 

Cod residents get the safe, secure public infrastructure they deserve. Thank you for your attention 

to this important matter. We look forward to your response. 

 

      

 Sincerely, 

 

 

 

_____________________ 

      Elizabeth Warren 

United States Senator 



NAV $ (000)

Target 

Allocation 

Range

Actual 

Allocation % Month QTD Calendar YTD  1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year

Since 

Inception

GLOBAL EQUITY 37,899,025              32 - 42% 39.3% 6.02 6.08 13.90 17.43 11.94 8.01 9.02 6.64

 

CORE FIXED INCOME 12,831,262              12 - 18% 13.3% 0.01 -1.27 2.96 -2.72 -5.09 1.07 2.65 6.42

VALUE ADDED FIXED INCOME 6,890,430                5 - 11% 7.1% 1.52 2.43 5.46 7.70 7.35 5.00 4.69 7.41

 

PRIVATE EQUITY 16,776,635              13 - 19% 17.4% 0.38 2.08 2.90 -3.45 28.50 21.30 20.35 15.76

REAL ESTATE 10,523,221              7 - 13% 10.9% -0.92 -0.53 -1.93 -2.81 12.59 8.88 9.81 6.98

TIMBERLAND 2,995,974                1 - 7% 3.1% 2.00 1.74 2.21 5.93 8.40 4.99 6.27 8.09

PORTFOLIO COMPLETION STRATEGIES 8,093,441                7 - 13% 8.4% 1.16 1.81 3.18 3.52 5.87 2.78 3.77 4.15

OVERLAY 452,538                   0.0% 0.5% 6.34 2.94 11.71 13.67 6.72 7.33 10.96

TOTAL CORE 96,499,777              100% 100% 2.55 2.84 6.69 6.02 10.18 7.77 8.51 9.24

2.57 2.39 5.75 5.55 9.21 7.44 7.90 9.54

TOTAL CORE BENCHMARK (using private equity) 
2

2.39 2.66 6.64 8.92 7.70 6.70 7.21 9.32

PARTICIPANTS CASH 24,472                     0.43 1.28 2.44 3.98 1.42 1.65 1.12 3.46

TEACHERS' AND EMPLOYEES' CASH 37,168                       0.43 1.26 2.40 3.91 1.40 1.62 1.10 2.36

 

TOTAL FUND 96,561,417                2.54 2.84 6.68 6.01 10.16 7.75 8.48 9.28

PENSION RESERVES INVESTMENT TRUST

SUMMARY OF PLAN PERFORMANCE

RATES OF RETURN (GROSS OF FEES)

Periods Ending June 30, 2023

IMPLEMENTATION  BENCHMARK (using short term private equity benchmark) 
1

3












	Town Manager's Report
	Consent Agenda
	Drummer Boy Park Advisory Committee
	Building Department Fee Schedule
	Public Hearing- Seasonal Liquor License
	Cape Light Compact Update
	Eversource 2023-2027 Vegetation Management Plan
	For Your Information

	Full member status: On
	Alternate status: Off
	6 Are you a fulltime Brewster resident: 6 Are you a fulltime Brewster resident_Yes_On
	8 Are you registered to vote in Brewster: 8 Are you registered to vote in Brewster_Yes_On
	Text1: Pleasant Bay Alliance Watershed Committee
	Text2: 
	Text3: 
	Text57: Kimberley Crocker Pearson
	Text62: Most recently: 4 years
	Active: Off
	Retired: Off
	Not currently working: Off
	Text4: 
	Text5: 
	Text6: 
	Text7: 
	Text8: To assist in planning and policy in regard to the Pleasant Bay Watershed
	Text9: Water Quality Testing and Response, Graduate research in coastal management
	Text10: No
	Text11: No
	Text12: Chris Miller
	Text13: Town of Brewster
	Text14: 
	Text15: 
	Text16: colleague
	Text17: Peter Lombardi
	Text18: Town of Brewster
	Text19: 
	Text20: 
	Text21: colleague
	Text22: 
	Text23: July 6, 2023
	Textfield: 
	Textfield-0: Allyson K Felix
	Textfield-2: 
	Textfield-5: x
	Textfield-6: 
	Textfield-7: x
	Textfield-8: 
	Textfield-9: 2
	Textfield-10: 
	Textfield-11: x
	Name of School: Pace University
	DegreeDiplomas Certificates: Bachelors in Communications./Marketing
	Date of Completion: 1980
	Name of School-0: UCLA EXTENSION
	DegreeDiplomas Certificates-0: College Counseling Certificate
	Date of Completion-0: 2015
	Name of School-1: 
	DegreeDiplomas Certificates-1: 
	Date of Completion-1: 
	11 OCCUPATION: Independent Educational Counselor
	Textfield-12: xSelf
	Textfield-13: 
	Textfield-14: 
	Name of Employer: Self
	Job Title: Founder of College Counseling Business, Rivertowns College Counseling
	Dates of Employment: 2012-present
	Name of Employer-0: Town of Chatham, MA
	Job Title-0: Shellfish Warden (boating -seasonal)
	Dates of Employment-0: 2008-present
	Name of Employer-1: 
	Job Title-1: 
	Dates of Employment-1: 
	Name of Employer-2: 
	Job Title-2: 
	Dates of Employment-2: 
	Name of Employer-3: 
	Job Title-3: 
	Dates of Employment-3: 
	Textfield-15: 
	Textfield-16: x
	Textfield-17: 
	Textfield-18: x
	Textfield-19: Allyson K Felix
	Textfield-20:  4/20/23
	_RB: Off
	a Applicant is a registered Brewster voterb Date c: COSName{a Applicant is a registered Brewster voterb Date c_Yes_On}
	a Applicant is a registered Brewster voterb Date c_Yes_On
	a Applicant is a registered Brewster voterb Date c_Yes_On
	a Applicant is a registered Brewster voterb Date c_Yes_On
	a Applicant is a registered Brewster voterb Date c_Yes_On
	a Applicant is a registered Brewster voterb Date c_Yes_On
	a Applicant is a registered Brewster voterb Date c_Yes_On
	a Applicant is a registered Brewster voterb Date c_Yes_On
	a Applicant is a registered Brewster voterb Date c_Yes_On
	a Applicant is a registered Brewster voterb Date c_Yes_On
	a Applicant is a registered Brewster voterb Date c_Yes_On
	a Applicant is a registered Brewster voterb Date c_Yes_On
	a Applicant is a registered Brewster voterb Date c_Yes_On

	v Did Committee Chair also interview applicant: COSName{1}
	v Did Committee Chair also interview applicant_No_On
	v Did Committee Chair also interview applicant_No_On
	v Did Committee Chair also interview applicant_No_On
	v Did Committee Chair also interview applicant_No_On
	v Did Committee Chair also interview applicant_No_On
	v Did Committee Chair also interview applicant_No_On
	v Did Committee Chair also interview applicant_No_On
	v Did Committee Chair also interview applicant_No_On
	v Did Committee Chair also interview applicant_No_On
	v Did Committee Chair also interview applicant_No_On
	v Did Committee Chair also interview applicant_No_On
	v Did Committee Chair also interview applicant_No_On

	c Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted: COSName{0}
	c Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted_Yes_On
	c Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted_Yes_On
	c Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted_Yes_On
	c Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted_Yes_On
	c Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted_Yes_On
	c Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted_Yes_On
	c Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted_Yes_On
	c Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted_Yes_On
	c Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted_Yes_On
	c Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted_Yes_On
	c Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted_Yes_On
	c Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted_Yes_On
	c Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted_Yes_On
	c Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted_Yes_On
	c Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted_Yes_On
	c Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted_Yes_On
	c Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted_Yes_On
	c Was at least 1 Brewster reference contacted_Yes_On

	Recommend appointment: On
	Recommend appointment to other committee that is a: Off
	Recommend holding application for future opening: Off
	Not recommended: Off
	Text60: 


